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BIBHE B E R
FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

BZNANMALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2020% 20194 20184 20174 20164
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AR®TR ARE®TT ARETT ARETE ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
E RESULTS
WA Revenue 146,118,718 86,851,178 54,780,995 40,820,316 28,232,094
BRFTS T AT Profit before income tax 26,385,564 21,625,171 18,647,500 10,742,410 4,135,368
PSR Income tax expense (10,267,182)  (9,018,982)  (6,599,934)  (4,728,785)  (1,668,208)
FEEFE Profit for the year 16,118,382 12,606,189 12,047,566 6,013,625 2,467,160
IR R - Profit for the year attributable to:
ARREREEA Equity holders of the Company 10,178,247 7,812,268 6,761,004 3,793,998 1,383,953
g di Non-controlling interests 5,940,135 4,793,921 5,286,562 2,219,627 1,083,207
16,118,382 12,606,189 12,047,566 6,013,625 2,467,160
AARERFE A Earnings per share for profit
TR GRRA T attributable to equity holders
of the Company
BN Basic RMB1.65 RMB1.32 RMB1.15 RMBO0.67 RMBO.24
BE Diluted RMB1.65 RMB1.32 RMB1.12 RMBO.67 RMB0.24
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BELR Total assets 544,488,072 468,242,359 336,855,538 189,398,346 104,879,456
BELE Total liabilities 463,018,100 410,426,558 (291,134,755) (164,765,802) (89,704,051)
81,469,972  57,815801 45,720,783 24,632,544 15,175,405
ANERERFE ARG Capital and reserves attributable
PR Kt to equity holders of the Company:
JRA : HE Share capital: nominal value 5,081 4,807 4,813 4,609 4,609
[ Reserves 35,763,189 24,987,914 19,147,278 12,776,397 9,230,441
35,768,270 24,992,721 19,152,091 12,781,006 9,235,050
e R Non-controlling interests 45,701,702 32,823,080 26,568,692 11,851,538 5,940,355
81,469,972 57,815,801 45,720,783 24,632,544 15,175,405

B RIZEREMR D F Seazen Group Limited | 5
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MR REE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2016 FE 2020 F = BB #5812 ¥

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

34 FROM 2016 TO 2020
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The following charts compare the financial indicators of our
performance from 2016 to 2020:

#ZAEFIM Core Earnings™
(AR®EEIT) (RMB million)
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Core earnings equal to net profit less after-tax fair value gains or losses on
investment properties and financial assets, and unrealized foreign exchange gains
or losses relating to borrowings and financial assets and after-tax gains or losses on
disposal of subsidiaries.

Net debt-to-equity ratio equals to the ratio between the difference of total
borrowings less cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and the total equity.
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RfE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE (ERPER CRIEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
ZFEEIER ZEM maE R 193,134 482,412 -
Ankang Hanbin Project Ankang Complex Under
development
L5 X IEHE zlam Fae EE 260,592 520,288 -
Anyang Wenfeng Project Anyang Complex Under
development
HIRGERE SR % 3= 159,035 - -
Bengbu Yuejun Tianzhe Bengbu Residential Under
development
IR R LR SR FE sz - 130,524 -
Seazen Yikang Shiguang Yinxiang Bengbu Residential Proposed for
development
HREIIER SEIETH mARE BT - - 144,119
Bengbu Bengshan Project Bengbu Complex Completed
BHEEIER BEm etk gz 139,778 - -
Baotou Kunbei Project Baotou Complex Under
development
BEERER BT mAR R 397,942 - 155,672
Baotou Kunqu Project Baotou Complex Under
development
BERAIER BET mARE i 658,176 - -
Baotou Donghe Project Baotou Complex Under
development
FHRMER 3l HAwE rE 358,352 - 119,842
Baoji Hi-Tech Project Baoji Complex Under
development
BNEREIRR BEm AR iz 252,024 - 136,001
Yangzhou Baoying Project Baoying Complex Under
development
RE MR R wEM EE 234 - 213,274 -
Land Parcel in Great Wall, Lianchi District, Baoding Residential Proposed for

Baoding City

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
RILEFIAR tRILT AR R 482,919 786,713 -
Baoshan Longyang Project Baoshan Complex Under
development
BlAEEiVEN ! tam FAE EE 524,844 - -
Beihai Yinhai Project Beihai Complex Under
development
ERBEEER/AfFER il fFE ER 570,852 - 82,860
Beijing Wulichungiu/Xifuhaitang Beijing Residential Under
development
ERHRE R R FE E# 203,521 - -
Beijing Seazen Guoyufu Beijing Residential Under
development
LA & BB BT Sl F=E feg = 200,939 - -
Beijing Seazen Capital Wisdom Mansion  Beijing Residential Under
development
IR ERALENR B R T=E g = 120,898 - -
Beijing Seazen Xihongyin Project Beijing Residential Under
development
ENERE R M ey R 104,153 658,514 -
Binzhou Bincheng Project Binzhou Complex Under
development
ZMEHAT 2 FE e 226,069 - -
Bozhou Xiyuefu Bozhou Residential Under
development
BB ERE BT = R 313,503 - -
Cangzhou Yuejun Fenghua Cangzhou Residential Under
development
BMBEERR R Fx Zig= 137,576 - -
Cangzhou Yuejun Shidai Cangzhou Residential Under
development
EMERRNT7EMSR BT EE jiage - 169,428 -
117 Mu Land Parcel in Yunhe District, Cangzhou Residential Proposed for

Cangzhou

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BNMNEAIER BN maE R 492,240 - -
Cangzhou Yunhe Project Cangzhou Complex Under
development
RiERMIER wEm ooy - sz - 1,186,184 -
Changde Dingcheng Project Changde Complex Proposed for
development
BAMEE BT % i 137,067 - -
Changshu Riverside Garden Changshu Residential Under
development
FINHE RS BNm % %I - - 30,010
Changzhou Yuehua Mingyuan Changzhou Residential Completed
HERBEE BN F= EE 154,763 - -
Shangjun Tianjiao Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
BRETLE BN TF=E EE 167,989 - -
Jintan Yijun Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
SEEEREIA - BN FE ge - 155,177 -
KB E
Land Parcel in the north of Jintan Jingui ~ Changzhou Residential Proposed for
East Road and west of Yongging Road development
BRRERA - EERARMMA B F=E i - 165,778 -
Land Parcel in the south of Xincheng Changzhou Residential Proposed for
Avenue and west of Huaging Road development
BB SMIEE BT = KR 294,322 - 54,451
Jintan Seazen Golden County Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
FINBEREATLTESE BT = e 128,003 - 21,160
Changzhou Puyue Heshan Huayuan Changzhou Residential Under

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 %k 2020 Annual Report
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FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EMNPIESR BT FE e 89,266 - 24,685
Changzhou Mendi Jingyuan Changzhou Residential Under
development
W TEE BN TFE e 156,544 - -
Changzhou Yuejun Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
EETEE B FE k@ 174,205 - -
Huijun Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
BINERESR BN FE EE 223,581 - -
Changzhou Yunjing Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
BNERRE BN F=E E# 144,274 - -
Changzhou Yunyi Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
BMEM BRER BMT = ®T - - 59,803
Continuing construction project Changzhou Residential Completed
of Tai He Zhi Chun Yuan in Changzhou
BNEBELE M Fx Zig 70,486 - -
Changzhou Yujun Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
FMAEGTR BT E=E KR 203,527 - 33,400
Changzhou Jiuxi Taiyuan Changzhou Residential Under
development
A AETEE BT = %I - - 28,932
Changzhou Huyue Langjun Garden Changzhou Residential Completed
BMHEBENETEE wiMm Fx Zig= 323,448 - -
Changzhou Yuecui Jiujun Garden Changzhou Residential Under
development
BMER DGR BT E=E %®T - - 146,909
Changzhou Seazen Legend Mansion Changzhou Residential Completed
BN AR AR BN = %I - - 29,198
Changzhou Seazen Future County Changzhou Residential Completed

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RfE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BMBEERE i Fx BT - - 65,188
Changzhou Taoli Garden Changzhou Residential Completed
FMNMBERTE M - XEHR BMm F=x %I - - 26,031
Changzhou Heyu Yunjingyuan, Changzhou Residential Completed
Linyinyuan and Wencuiyuan
REHSE B FE %I - - 21,454
Liyang Mingyu Bay Changzhou Residential Completed
wINEREE A B F=x EE 78,335 659,384 95,861
Changzhou Green City Wanhecheng Changzhou Residential Under
development
BN EIME= BN F=E HE - 45,270 -
Changzhou Golden Seazen West Changzhou Residential Proposed for
Phase Il development
BEFHES BN TF=E KT - = 284,629
Wujin Wuyue Plaza Changzhou Residential Completed
wNETE BN F=E TR 65,499 - 61,847
Changzhou Seazen Town Changzhou Residential Under
development
BNFHRBERE BN FE R - 315,481 -
Eastern Area of Changzhou Seazen Changzhou Residential Proposed for
Long Island development
LEERN B = i3 - 31,841 -
Jintan Wanijian City Changzhou Residential Proposed for
development
BINREIEE BN mak %®T - - 198,532
Changzhou Tianning Project Changzhou Complex Completed
EINRGIEE FINE maE BT - - 264,717
Changzhou Liyang Project Changzhou Complex Completed
HHLBEE AR =z %T - - 161,746
Xindu Bandao Celestial Mansion Chengdu Residential Completed
BE R ERE BT F=E %I - - 22,917
Jianyang Yuejun Fenghua Chengdu Residential Completed
BEEHETL AT F=x %®T - - 35,138
Jianyang Yuejun Jiangshan Chengdu Residential Completed

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
i & AT 2% FE e 78,171 - 53,394
Seazen Jinyuefu Chengdu Residential Under
development
R BRI 2% FE %®T - - 52,058
Longquan Xinli Taoxichuan Chengdu Residential Completed
BRIERIHMER 28 2%} F=x RT - - 13,727
Chingbaijiang Vanke Seazen Time Chengdu Residential Completed
Glory Phase |
ERIEBEMER 2 =5 %l % ®T - - 27,266
Chingbaijiang Vanke Seazen Time Chengdu Residential Completed
Glory Phase I
BRIEMFHABERT AR F=E RT - - 195,385
Chingbaijiang Meidi Seazen Gongyuan Chengdu Residential Completed
Tianxia
BRIHERTE % il T=E EE - 224,720 110,151
Chingbaijiang Yuejun Glorious Century Chengdu Residential Under
development
SMFR IR 5 7T 2%l FE i 42,369 - -
Chongzhou Seazen Ruisheng Yuejun Chengdu Residential Under
Xijiang development
BL22E R R FE de - 53,049 -
22 Mu Land Parcel in Wenjiang Chengdu Residential Proposed for
development
&R T = rE 50,220 - -
Jianyang Yuejun Jincheng Chengdu Residential Under
development
BEHERT R FE e 56,793 - -
Jianyang Yuejun Xiangjiang Chengdu Residential Under
development
TRk & HAEE AT 2% EE EE 237,139 - -
Qionglai Jinyue Huafu Chengdu Residential Under

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
SR 2% FE e 160,951 - -
Seazen Jinyue Shijia Chengdu Residential Under
development
BIMERIEE T FE iz 35,952 - 27,164
Chuzhou Yijing Garden Chuzhou Residential Under
development
AR ] A k@ 325,213 - 175,769
Chuzhou Nangiao Project Chuzhou Complex Under
development
ARERER KR oR=) - EE 339,726 510,149 -
Datong Yungang Project Datong Complex Under
development
EEESRR Gonil AR E# 443,415 - 82,077
Deyang Jingyang Project Deyang Complex Under
development
AR il T=E g = 67,552 - 17,332
Qihe Seazen Yuejun Dezhou Residential Under
development
EAFTmEM (EEE ) M FE R 215,166 - 9,750
Qihe Seazen Xiyue Asset Package | Dezhou Residential Under
development
BB EM (EER D) B TF=E e - 577,318 -
Qihe Seazen Xiyue Asset Package Il Dezhou Residential Proposed for
development
REHEBEE REM = E 109,167 - -
Dongguan Xiyue Garden Dongguan Residential Under
development
RERERR RE™ FE KR 96,798 - -
Dongying Yuejun Shidai Dongying Residential Under
development
REREER REW TR jiage - 694,818 -
Dongying Dongying Project Dongying Complex Proposed for

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
20204 %k 2020 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EIEH oA RE B Fx BT - - 21,401
Gedian Seazen e Xinjinghui Ezhou Residential Completed
SBINSEEIE B SBNT e s - 784,866 -
Ezhou Echeng Project Ezhou Complex Proposed for
development
BLEBIEE T F=x kg 351,624 - 63,373
Foshan Yiming Garden Foshan Residential Under
development
—KBERE LT F=x EE 141,584 - 19,903
Sanshui Jinghui Haoyuan Foshan Residential Under
development
BMTBEE B mear EE 5,000 538,613 -
Fuzhou Pingtan Project Fuzhou Complex Under
development
R AL T L3 Ll T=E g = 675,407 - -
Fuyang Jingshi Guofu Fuyang Residential Under
development
EfEA#E Bf5m FE = 157,880 - -
Fuyang Daduhui Fuyang Residential Under
development
RBREERA Ll F=E i 165,747 27,291 -
Fuyang Yunyu Dongfang Fuyang Residential Under
development
REEMNER BB ooy KR 328,842 - 116,072
Fuyang Yingzhou Project Fuyang Complex Under
development
BNBEIEE BHH Fak i 428,662 163,312 145,651
Yangzhou Gaoyou Project Gaoyou Complex Under
development
BxEZIAR BEZh HeR i3 275,355 388,912 -
Guang'an Guang'an Project Guang'an Complex Under

development

14 | W BBEERBER AT Seazen Group Limited
20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BEAEILER ol maE R 496,099 - 122,147
Guigang Gangbei Project Guigang Complex Under
development
EGE#A ElGm FE EE 226,250 - -
Guiyang Xiyuetai Guiyang Residential Under
development
B5&HIER glam maR kg 151,232 1,374,924 -
Guiyang Economic Development Guiyang Complex Under
Zone Project development
E5BHER L hil mas EE 452,146 - 89,563
Guiyang Qingzhen Project Guiyang Complex Under
development
BSEEER Enil mARE g - 746,878 -
Guiyang Yunyan Project Guiyang Complex Proposed for
development
BENE)|X#Hg T F=E g = 99,082 113,705 -
Guilin Lingchuan Daduhui Guilin Residential Under
development
EMEREIER EEMTT maw = 295,539 - 341,893
Guilin Lingui Project Guilin Complex Under
development
e RE T HBER T F=E e - 186,236 -
Seazen ¢ Gongyuan Shangfu Handan Residential Proposed for
development
EPERER Eh Y %®T - - 190,864
Hanzhong Hantai Project Hanzhong Complex Completed
MNE R AR M FE %T - - 31,621
Hangzhou Future Legend Mansion Hangzhou Residential Completed
MR ELED M FE %I - - 41,915
Hangzhou Jingjun Mingdi Hangzhou Residential Completed
MMER AR M EE i 135,453 - -
Hangzhou Shichen Mingfu Hangzhou Residential Under

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
e R i Fx BT - - 54,480
Hangzhou Haiming Yayuan Hangzhou Residential Completed
BONEBSERT i FE i3 94,374 - -
Yanzhou Yujingfu Hangzhou Residential Under
development
LT o FE kg 186,242 - -
Xiangyue Hemingfu Hangzhou Residential Under
development
MMEAE N F=x EE 227,794 - -
Hangzhou Tangyuewan Hangzhou Residential Under
development
REHENE Uil FE 3 130,493 - 7,608
Changfeng Yuejun Jiuli Hefei Residential Under
development
EREHEER BHET TF=E EE 146,657 - -
Feidong Yunyue Guantang Hefei Residential Under
development
AL REA Ll FE %®T - - 35,428
Hefei Beichen France Hefei Residential Completed
BEHREE BT i BT - - 14,423
Hefei Taolijun Hefei Residential Completed
B ER AL = i 22,216 - 58,291
Binhu Shiguang Yinxiang Hefei Residential Under
development
BAAEE AiEm £ R 833 - 36,497
Binhu Daduhui Hefei Residential Under
development
BT 2N AR = BT - - 70,639
High-Tech Xizi Mancheng Hefei Residential Completed
R+ EER =l FE %®T - - 45,211
Feidong Shili Chunfeng Hefei Residential Completed
RIEEHER AT FE i 177,108 - -
Hefei Binhu Yunjing Hefei Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
AERRIER Gl AR R 303,259 - 52,124
Hefei Feidong Project Hefei Complex Under
development
N R A B T e iz 368,495 - 155,633
Huzhou Wuxing Project Huzhou Complex Under
development
WNERE LEE——H M = KT - - 39,606
Huzhou Nanxun Haishangfenghua Huzhou Residential Completed
Phase | & Il
MNEEE EEE=H BN FE ®T - - 26,186
Huzhou Nanxun Haishangfenghua Huzhou Residential Completed
Phase Il
MINEEE R BN F=x ®T - - 20,961
Huzhou Country Garden Jadeite Bay Huzhou Residential Completed
MNEEEES SN T Fx %®T - - 18,976
Huzhou Country Garden Jiayu Huzhou Residential Completed
Henk M FE i34 187,726 - -
Duhui Mingdi Huzhou Residential Under
development
MR RDE M F=E iz 147,123 - -
Huzhou Central Park Huzhou Residential Under
development
HeawsH M FE i3 137,021 - -
Duhui Lanxuan Huzhou Residential Under
development
HeRRE N = BT - - 6,849
Duhui Lanting Huzhou Residential Completed
MMEEIEE M FeR i 671,768 - -
Huzhou Nanxun Project Huzhou Complex Under
development
LN ERE ERT E=E EE 147,655 - 406
Jinhu Yuejun Fenghua Huai'an Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
ERE R F=x R 243,824 111,473 41,998
Huai‘an Yuejun Huai'an Residential Under
development
R R EILE EZ T FE %®T - - 33,543
Huai'an Shangjun Garden Huai'an Residential Completed
ERBEERE LT F=x E# 76,998 - 41,320
Huai'an Jiulong Yuanzhe Huai'an Residential Under
development
USEET EZT % e 212,844 - -
Lianshui Yuejun Xuefu Huai'an Residential Under
development
EREWMTIAR il FE w2 - 157,577 -
Huai'an Jinyuefu Project Huai'an Residential Proposed for
development
E1318A EZT % e - 92,566 -
Pu 13 Project Huai‘an Residential Proposed for
development
ERERIHIER LT mAae i 7,952 - 214,244
Huai'an Eco-City Project Huai‘an Complex Under
development
ERETHRIRR ERT AR k7 249,557 131,439 -
Huai'an Xuyi Project Huai‘an Complex Under
development
EIHEIER il Ak i 348,451 - 170,677
Huaibei Duji Project Huaibei Complex Under
development
ERERERR R FAER KR 2,644 - 202,403
Huainan Tianjiaan Project Huainan Complex Under
development
EF B EEHNG e i E= KR 126,640 - 236
Huanggang Country Garden Seazen Huanggang Residential Under
Yangguangcheng ¢ Chengpin development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BERMEE &AM FE R 99,765 - 32,835
Huangshi Seazen Langjun Huangshi Residential Under
development
BORERHE EOW FE EE 314,909 - -
Huangshi Yuejun Daduhui Huangshi Residential Under
development
BMNEHTE Vi = k@ 361,852 561,068 -
Huizhou Jinyue Jiangnan Huizhou Residential Under
development
EMNESTEE LYl FE EE 549,244 - 20,047
Huizhou Yunyu Garden Huizhou Residential Under
development
BMAEEE Lyl FE BT - - 79,389
Huizhou Mingyu Garden Huizhou Residential Completed
EMBE Lyl FE EE 121,318 - 14,696
Huizhou Yuejun Huizhou Residential Under
development
FWER BT FE KR 229,540 - -
Jiacheng Xuefu Huizhou Residential Under
development
5 LB BEMm FE 3 - 221,099 -
Land Parcel in Luoyang Shangtoutang Huizhou Residential Proposed for
development
ERARE ERT FE jiate - - 25,419
Jinan Fragrant Legend Jinan Residential Proposed for
development
ERERERE EEm = 2 210,284 - 22,344
Jinan Fragrant Xiangyi Huating Jinan Residential Under
development
TR AT 2 4 B AL ER™ EE i3 - - 30,618
Jinan Seazen Hechang Lakeview Yueshan Jinan Residential Under
development
BEEAES EEm BE ®RT - - 53,037
Jinan Seazen Ling Yu Jinan Commercial ~ Completed
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BRI EEE EEm F=x R 133,547 22,056 -
Jinan Seazen Yuejun Fenghua Jinan Residential Under
development
B IR IE R ER™ FE iz 44,943 - -
Seazen Shiguang Yinxiang Project Jinan Residential Under
development
EE/ SRR EEm = EE 129,458 62,803 9,094
Jinan Xiaoya Project Jinan Residential Under
development
BEABHER EEM oR=) - EE 595,571 - -
Jining Taibai Lake Project Jining Complex Under
development
BERARE L] FE ®T - - 9,168
Haiyan Jingjun Lanting Jiaxing Residential Completed
FHET R 28 e T=x ®IT - - 57,660
Pinghu Seazen Jinyue Jiaxing Residential Completed
RENARE FEm FE ®T - - 10,521
Jiashan Weiwu Chenzhang Jiaxing Residential Completed
RERUAR REm FE %I - - 5,764
Jiashan Xiyue Xitang Jiaxing Residential Completed
RENRELS RET F=E ®BT = - 29,491
Jiashan Yuejun Bandao Jiaxing Residential Completed
FEEERE REM FE i3 102,164 - -
Jiashan Feili Fenghua Jiaxing Residential Under
development
EREEH RET = = 176,823 - -
Feicui Fenghua City Jiaxing Residential Under
development
FEREHE201819% 18 REM = g - 87,390 -
Land Parcel No. 201819 in Economic Jiaxing Residential Proposed for
Development Zone, Jiashan County development
et mEm FE i 101,190 - -
Pinghu Haiyue Fenghua Jiaxing Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
T E R Fx BT - - 12,093
Pinghu Seazen Yuejun Jiaxing Residential Completed
FEBHEIER FET maE KR 141,827 - 199,690
Jiaxing Haiyan Project Jiaxing Complex Under
development
BYEHAE TP F=x kg 131,748 - -
Enping Future Legend Mansion Jiangmen Residential Under
development
I EERe AR TFI F=x E# 65,339 108,631 -
Seazen Bofu Linghui International Jiangmen Residential Under
development
Ik FREse IR FE EE 450,035 - -
Jiangyin Shangpin Jingyuan Jiangyin Residential Under
development
SEER SEM FE ®T - - 32,056
Jinhua Yunyu Jinhua Residential Completed
RIGHT SEM = BT - - 46,771
Dongyang Yue Palace Jinhua Residential Completed
BIRE SEM FE BT - - 101,813
Pujiang Shengyu Jinhua Residential Completed
REBREZX TEM F=E BT = - 28,568
Dongyang Shengyu Zhiguang Jinhua Residential Completed
EHEM SEM FE i3 196,931 - -
Xiangyue Lancheng Jinhua Residential Under
development
N E B B R K AT F = iz 135,662 - -
Jingzhou Country Garden Seazen Jingzhou Residential Under
Chutianfu development
FIMNPTIRE Fi HaE R 434,816 - 118,713
Jingzhou Shashi Project Jingzhou Complex Under
development
NTHEPRAE il FE i 253,214 - -
Jiujiang Yuejun Central Park Jiujiang Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
ETRAER BRm maE ®T - - 163,802
Zhenjiang Jurong Project Jurong Complex Completed
B BRI T 1 B FE i3 133,802 - 45,728
Kunming Seazen Yayue Kunming Residential Under
development
EBRTRIRGE B F=x E# 277,427 - 70,876
Kunming Seazen Langyue Kunming Residential Under
development
ERERMHZER DEKER EHm F=x E# 301,566 478,251 -
Kunming Languang Seazen Country Kunming Residential Under
Garden Gudian Shuiyuncheng development
B SRR A =2l TF=E EE 173,038 - -
Kunming Seazen Heyue Kunming Residential Under
development
BB esmit iR EAm FE e - 197,438 -
68 Mu Land Parcel in Economic Kunming Residential Proposed for
Development Zone, Kunming development
BEREEE E M mAae %®T - - 197,839
Kunming Wuhua Project Kunming Complex Completed
ERRERA BT AR g = 453,333 332,416 161,490
Kunming Anning Project Kunming Complex Under
development
BEREEEA ERm mak i3 1,083,583 - -
Kunming Jinning Project Kunming Complex Under
development
EHE2HER EHm ey ER 405,066 - 224,076
Kunming Chenggong Project Kunming Complex Under
development
EHAFIEE M N ji23<d - 1,267,406 -
Kunming Taiping Project Kunming Complex Proposed for
development
HEFTHNLE ™ E=E %®T - - 19,069
Laiwu Seazen Yuejun Laiwu Residential Completed

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report



E=E:37E Sk

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
RN EIEE BT HeR i 418,838 - -
Lanzhou Anning Project Lanzhou Complex Under
development
HREzE B TF=E EE 220,956 - -
Hyatt Garden Langfang Residential Under
development
BELEHER FLm FE Hz - 109,595 -
Emeishan Jinyue Yunxi Leshan Residential Proposed for
development
L EERE Zim FE ®T - - 22,775
Emeishan Jinyue Tianxi Leshan Residential Completed
EREBIMNER EEED TFE i - 120,009 -
Lianyungang Haizhou Project Lianyungang  Residential Proposed for
development
R ERED TF=E EE 180,117 - -
Donghaifu Lianyungang  Residential Under
development
Hme B k5 ERET FE i 58,183 60,837 -
Seazen ¢ Haiyue Mingzhu Lianyungang  Residential Under
development
EEEHRIER EEET mae BT = - 219,249
Lianyungang Ganyu Project Lianyungang ~ Complex Completed
EERENIER ETEM mak i 221,437 - 151,556
Lianyungang Haizhou Project Lianyungang ~ Complex Under
development
EZRKER KT A ER 430,449 235,444 -
Huai'an Lianshui Project Lianshui Complex Under
development
BELER By = ®T - - 20,834
Gaotang Jinyuefu Liaocheng Residential Completed
BAaS B EE EE 226,200 - -
Yanggu Jinyuefu Liaocheng Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
WS RER 1183 5% B FE e - 260,146 -
Land Parcel 118 in Liaocheng Resort Liaocheng Residential Proposed for
development
B eir s eyl FE iz 89,359 - -
Linyi Jinyue Mendi Linyi Residential Under
development
e RIE B Vi mam BT - - 173,972
Linyi Hedong Project Linyi Complex Completed
NEWRIAR AR ra = 326,623 - 210,694
Lu‘an Yu'an Project Lu‘an Complex Under
development
e EE A FNEBKT FE EE 220,759 537,259 -
Seazen e Fenghuangtai Liupanshui Residential Under
development
RAEE BA T FE i3 109,728 135,540 -
Xihe Celestial Mansion Luohe Residential Under
development
BRILEA BRILT FE TR 206,923 - -
Ma'anshan Jingyue Ma'anshan Residential Under
development
B REXT B F=E ®IT - - 86,645
Shigao Yuejun Tianfu Meishan Residential Completed
REBRMm K Bl F=E BT - - 35,182
Shigao Vanke City Glory Meishan Residential Completed
BEEHERR B Fx ®I - - 44,690
Xingsheng Yuejun Tianjiao Meishan Residential Completed
BEMA A Mam F=E KR 70,648 - -
Nanchang Seazen Legend Mansion Nanchang Residential Under
development
F R ERRIER HEM EE i3 64,851 - -
Seazen Yuejun Shidai Project Nanchang Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
MESSMBT0255 0 D FE He - 121,336 -
Land Parcel No. 025 in Xianghu Binjiang,  Nanchang Residential Proposed for
Nanchang County development
AR AT 365 mt 5 Z=hil FE sz - 525,250 -
365 Mu Land Parcel in west of Nanchang Residential Proposed for
Xueyuan Road, High-Tech Industrial development
Development Zone
HEEEBIER D FAR R 464,396 - -
Nanchang Jinxian Project Nanchang Complex Under
development
HRERKES HRm [GES EE 24,233 - 4,450
Nanjing Xingyue Tiandi Plaza Nanjing Commercial ~ Under
development
BHREH KM ES GO R F=x EE 30,945 - -
Nanjing Xingyue Tiandi Plaza GO1 Nanjing Residential Under
development
BRE WA BRM FE 3 159,302 - -
Nanjing Jinyuefu Nanjing Residential Under
development
HRITRIE R R MR F=x KT - - 96,369
Nanjing Seazen Flourish France Nanjing Residential Completed
B RATRUKEER BRm F=E e - 73,522 -
Nanjing Seazen Riverbank Yuniji Nanjing Residential Proposed for
development
B REHE L B FE BT - - 32,442
Nanjing Puyue Zhongshan Nanjing Residential Completed
BREMKM, BRM F=E iz 1,244 - 45,675
Nanjing Poly Tiandi Nanjing Residential Under
development
I RBEHAN L BRM FE ®I - - 31,467
Nanjing Puyue Heshan Nanjing Residential Completed
ERERRD BRm = KR 32,282 - 154,122
Nanjing Lingdongyuan Nanjing Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
ERbiE ERm FE BT - - 67,360
Nanjing Yuefeng Nanjing Residential Completed
ARHRE AL BRM FE ®T - - 37,705
Nanjing Seazen Xiangyue Lanshan Nanjing Residential Completed
HREFRET HRm FE EE 160,119 175,904 -
Nanjing Yunyang Binjiang Nanjing Residential Under
development
HRMERR mRm FAR EE 79,586 - 181,210
Nanjing Yuhua Project Nanjing Complex Under
development
HRERIER R FAR EE 360,616 - -
Nanjing Jianye Project Nanjing Complex Under
development
HEGERE MEmM FE K7 269,198 - -
Nanning Yuejun Fenghua Nanning Residential Under
development
HERMA HEM = KR 132,467 - -
Nanning Jinyuefu Nanning Residential Under
development
Fe A2 A HEM FE e 64,338 - -
Seazen e Mingyu Park Nanning Residential Under
development
BERET HEM FE i 131,625 - -
Nanning Yuejun Jiangshan Nanning Residential Under
development
eyl ezl = %I - - 94,338
Nantong Shang Yuecheng Nantong Residential Completed
EFEE Epn FE BT - - 54,864
Nantong Xinduhui Nantong Residential Completed
HREMLERE HET EE EE 252,608 - -
Nantong Haimen Jianghaiduhui Nantong Residential Under
development
ERpIESVE A MM FE ER 203,364 - 988
Nantong Rugao Yuejun Shi Dai Nantong Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
HEEMNESE MM F=x R 173,247 - 33,507
Nantong Tongzhou Yungjingwan Nantong Residential Under
development
HREE KA kil FE iz - 147,656 61,941
Nantong Future France Nantong Residential Under
development
FeRRTETE BEm = feg = 89,183 168,084 -
Guangqi Huayuan Nantong Residential Under
development
ERHR (a0l FE R 178,025 - -
Yunjing Yayuan Nantong Residential Under
development
RUR™ R RAE 8 HEm F=E Rz - 420,048 -
Land Parcel in Central Avenue, Nantong Residential Proposed for
Qidong City development
BimE)IIR20021 573 8% Ea} il T=E e - 190,859 -
Land Parcel No. R20021 in Chongchuan,  Nantong Residential Proposed for
Nantong development
BET it AT FE R 178,093 - 33,022
Qidong Diehu Shijiewan Nantong Residential Under
development
AITHIER AL HafE e 394,482 156,901 -
Neijiang Shizhong Project Neijiang Complex Under
development
RO BERH FE R 105,292 - -
Ningbo Lakeview Yueshan Ningbo Residential Under
development
EEUEHNN =y Fx Zig= 148,570 - -
Ninghai Yuejun Minghufu Ningbo Residential Under
development
BRI ERm FE i 228,821 - -
Ningbo Yuefu Ningbo Residential Under

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 %k 2020 Annual Report



28

FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RE A
EE o HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EREZRR ERT maE R 101,330 - 118,863
Ningbo Cixi Project Ningbo Complex Under
development
ERRAE (ETiiR) ERT F=x EE 158,761 - -
Ningbo Cixi (Residential Land Parcel) Ningbo Residential Under
development
RAOEHIAEE EHm maE feg = 607,278 - -
Changsha Ningxiang Project Ningxiang Complex Under
development
SERSBIRAAT 2] FE R 103,336 - -
Pingxiang Guoyuefu Pingxiang Residential Under
development
HE T BEmkic  EE feg = 46,754 1,138,394 -
Eik BN
Seazen Longyuefu Qiannan Buyei Residential Under
and Miao development
Autonomous
Prefecture
M RrEE FoHm mer feg = 174,354 - 128,703
Qinzhou Qinnan Project Qinzhou Complex Under
development
ERRHERE EBM T=E BT - - 82,918
Qingdao Excellent Queen's Road Qingdao Residential Completed
EEMHEM BEBM FE i34 105,512 530,700 17,870
Qingdao Seazen Xiyue Qingdao Residential Under
development
BEEVRASERE &M s BT - - 74,657
Qingdao Seazen Hongdaowan Shengyu  Qingdao Residential Completed
ERABFEH TR 55m [EES ji23<4 - 107,225 -
Land Parcel No. 1 at Wool Beach, Qingdao Commercial  Proposed for
Hongdao, Qingdao development
BERIMBABEME 55M i = 237,449 - -
Qingdao Seazen Hongdaowan e Langjun  Qingdao Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BB B58m FE R 189,116 261,883 27,046
Qingdao Yuefu Qingdao Residential Under
development
BB E B BEM FE iz 245,577 - 93,713
Qingdao Seazen Yunyue Xiaoyuan Qingdao Residential Under
development
ERABFEESTIR &M [GES kg 189,431 - -
Land Parcel No. 5 at Wool Beach, Qingdao Commercial ~ Under
Hongdao, Qingdao development
EERALSE B8 T=E ER 206,748 - 3,208
Qingdao Rongchuang Hongdaowan Qingdao Residential Under
development
BERMAEE &M F=x feg = 291,010 - -
Qingdao Baoli Hongdaowan Qingdao Residential Under
development
ERABTER 2N 8™ [GES i §e4 - 187,905 -
Land Parcel No. 2 at Wool Beach, Qingdao Commercial ~ Proposed for
Hongdao, Qingdao development
B AR B5Bm FE RT - - 17,330
Jiaozhou Yuejun Qingdao Residential Completed
TEMBHEALSE BEEM F=E Zig = 125,467 - -
Pingdu Seazen Yuejun Daduhui Qingdao Residential Under
development
EEMALSERE &M E=E id = 246,668 - -
Qingdao Rongcuang Hongdaowan Qingdao Residential Under
Shengyu development
REFAHEREER BEBm = KR 156,233 - -
Laixi Seazen Yuejun Gongyuanli Qingdao Residential Under
development
FERE HE 55m FE i3 131,642 - -
Pingdu Yuejun Daduhui Phase I Qingdao Residential Under
development
H B AR AT B58m = Rz 88,725 176,060 -
Qingdao Jimo Yuefu Qingdao Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
ERGE—m AR FE e 159,803 - -
Yuejun Yipin, Ju County Rizhao Residential Under
development
EGeln AR FE EE 211,386 - -
Jinyuefu, Ju County Rizhao Residential Under
development
ARER AR HER™ F=x k@ 61,504 50,411 -
Rizhao Time Glory Project Rizhao Residential Under
development
ARRBER HER™ maR faged - 615,902 -
Rizhao Donggang Project Rizhao Complex Proposed for
development
M MEET F=E E# 448,826 598,044 -
Haifeng Heyue Shanwei Residential Under
development
LRBEEER N3l TFE ®T - - 14,913
Shanghai Shengyu Shijia Shanghai Residential Completed
LEREREAR HEm FE i 17,581 - 63,418
Shanghai Seazen Xi‘an Park Shanghai Residential Under
development
HEFBAASKE gm FE e 89,436 - -
Shanghai Seazen Hongkou Jinmaofu Shanghai Residential Under
development
PEEEZH Rl EE EE 91,868 - 63,855
Shanghai Yunluzhicheng Shanghai Residential Under
development
LBEMR +gm = %I - - 145,218
Shanghai Yonghefu Shanghai Residential Completed
LEsin is=3] = R 102,398 - -
Shanghai Jinganying Shanghai Residential Under
development
TR TELEEE & FE EE 109,569 - -
Seazen Millennium Park Project Shanghai Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
2R L&m FE He - 214,972 -
Taolijun Shangrao Residential Proposed for
development
FE+EER s i) FE jates - 835,387 -
Shangrao Shili Chunfeng Shangrao Residential Proposed for
development
Lt&RERERR L& mam kR 2,000 - 189,430
Shangrao Guangxin Project Shangrao Complex Under
development
REGHZNE R AR FE ®T - - 14,242
Shaoxing Didanghu No.1 Shaoxing Residential Completed
BREUEENE AR ET FE BT - - 25,750
Shaoxing Yuejun Mansion Shaoxing Residential Completed
BERTA BEm FE K7 102,270 - -
Shaoxing Xijiangyue Shaoxing Residential Under
development
AREE BED F=E BT - - 81,893
Shaoxing Tangyue Shaoxing Residential Completed
REEELR BB F=E BT - - 63,825
Shaoxing Baolong Shijia Shaoxing Residential Completed
LA FEEGI2314104 Ay FE e - 228,830 -
Land Parcel G12314 in Shijing Subdistrict, Shenzhen Residential Proposed for
Pingshan District development
BT ER el FawE rE 1,081,588 - -
Shenyang Shenbei Project Shenyang Complex Under
development
AREIRMIAR M T ] %I - - 253,478
Shaoxing Shengzhou Project Shengzhou Complex Completed
HTIE AR REHET F=E e 96,154 92,880 -
Seazen Zhenghongfu Shijiazhuang  Residential Under
development
#HINMOCTHIETE B —3F BN F=x %I - - 37,785
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part | Suzhou Residential Completed

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 %k 2020 Annual Report



32

FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
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EE o HEER HEME HETEE R(ERPER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
HMMOCT I EIE B — 3 BN Fx BT - - 27,950
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part Il Suzhou Residential Completed
#FIMMOCHHEIE R =4 BN F=x KR 64,849 204,348 -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part Il Suzhou Residential Under
development
#INMOC I FE T8 B 7Y 2 M F=x kg 286,249 - -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part IV Suzhou Residential Under
development
#NMOCT EIE B 12 ENm F=x EE 158,932 - -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part V. Suzhou Residential Under
development
ERINMOCTETE B /<8 FNT F=E 3 107,677 - -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part VI Suzhou Residential Under
development
EMMOCTMEIE B 3 EINm % e - 169,304 -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part VIl Suzhou Residential Proposed for
development
FMMOCTEEIR B /A5 MM FE i3 59,781 178,034 -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part VIl Suzhou Residential Under
development
B MMOCT R IE B /1 M FE i3 - 94,197 -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part IX  Suzhou Residential Proposed for
development
FMMOCTEIMIER B 15 M FE 234 - 39,337 -
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Part X Suzhou Residential Proposed for
development
HMNEEHTE BT = 2 - 15,028 131,880
Suzhou Jinshuang Lake Garden Suzhou Residential Under
development
HMn R M EE %T - - 90,955
Suzhou Shili Garden Suzhou Residential Completed
BRSO AR g FE EE 181,822 - -
Weitang Lakeview Chunxiao Project Suzhou Residential Under
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AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BLEFIB K M FE R 104,427 112,017 -
Fengqgi Heming Yayuan Suzhou Residential Under
development
HMEZR #Mm FE %®T - - 106,654
Suzhou Xiangxiyuan Suzhou Residential Completed
HEMRHERKRE &M Fx i 95,478 - -
Suzhou Dongfang Xingzhuo Tower Suzhou Residential Under
development
HwH=TFE2 M FE ®T - - 199,900
Suzhou Sangianyi Suzhou Residential Completed
RRREHSE M FE %®T - - 12,002
Taicang Tiangin Yayuan Suzhou Residential Completed
RERUIARS M F=E RT - - 17,926
Taicang Longyue Tianjing Suzhou Residential Completed
RRBHERNE #HMT FE ®T - - 145,411
Zhangjiagang Feicui Mansion Suzhou Residential Completed
HKERR #MT FE i 345,738 271,422 107,933
Linshuiwan Jingyuan Suzhou Residential Under
development
REE T 2R #N T F=E ®IT - - 23,434
Zhangjiagang Shili Jinxiu Suzhou Residential Completed
REBAEE1790 BN F=E ®T - - 60,918
Zhangjiagang Mansion 1790 Suzhou Residential Completed
KRB LHRE M FE %®T - - 18,762
Zhangjiagang Jiangcheng Yuanzhe Suzhou Residential Completed
SNRITIEE FNT F=x e - 128,769 -
Waiguoyu Project Suzhou Residential Proposed for
development
NETHIER M FE i3 24,900 - -
Jiuli Jiangnan Garden Suzhou Residential Under
development
BARERR EMNm F=x KT - - 32,688
Changshu Yonglanyuan Suzhou Residential Completed
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
FN =R B Fx i 8,113 - 67,184
Suzhou Yuejun Pinglanfu Suzhou Residential Under
development
RAMEERE M FE %®T - - 25,903
Changshu Shangjun Huating Suzhou Residential Completed
HENRBE M F=x RT - - 31,948
Suzhou Jiuyuwan Suzhou Residential Completed
BN EERE M Fx = 182,181 - -
Changshu Yuejun Huating Suzhou Residential Under
development
FARRIHE BN FE ®T - - 86,848
Changshu Yuanjiangzhu Suzhou Residential Completed
EHEM= M F=E e 184,539 - -
Feili Paradiso Pavilion Suzhou Residential Under
development
ABBHEWG391 5tk M F=E 3 - 126,915 -
Land Parcel No. WG391 in High-tech Suzhou Residential Proposed for
Zone, Taicang development
FEEELE BT = = 196,832 - -
Tangsong Celestial Mansion Garden Suzhou Residential Under
development
MHTEE I = s 185,535 - -
Heyue Garden Suzhou Residential Under
development
OETERE BT = EE 142,573 - -
Xinwang Yayuan Suzhou Residential Under
development
I RIEE EMm % Zig= 170,582 - -
Huiying Shidai Garden Suzhou Residential Under
development
R AR g FE EE 94,052 - -
Jiayue Shidai Garden Suzhou Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
SE) B FE %®T - - 61,097
Mangrove Bay Suzhou Residential Completed
HE:E M FE i3 - 49,200 17,773
Beautiful Harbour Suzhou Residential Under
development
#NiEmIA R N [GES fide - 238,678 -
Suzhou Xiangcheng Project Suzhou Commercial  Proposed for
development
EREM BEM FE R 424,713 - -
Sugian Xiyuefu Sugian Residential Under
development
BRKAEE BEM F= ®T - - 85,841
Sugian Shuimuginghua Sugian Residential Completed
EEBRHIEE Gl F=E i 317,966 - 62,158
Sugian Lakeview Park Sugian Residential Under
development
S E B BEm FE i3 104,560 - 47,941
Shuyang Country Garden Seazen Sugian Residential Under
development
e+ ER i il i iz 308,233 - -
Seazen e Shili Jinyue Sugian Residential Under
development
TEEEH10MEIER Gt FE i 23<3 - 234,126 -
Land Parcel 10 in Sucheng, Sugian Sugian Residential Proposed for
development
LSS ARIES Gl F= = 158,804 - -
Siyang Shiguang Yinxiang Sugian Residential Under
development
BENAER BEm REE i3 487,042 430,231 -
Sugian Sihong Project Sugian Complex Under
development
THENGIEE Byl ] i 364,005 442,324 -
Sugian Siyang Project Sugian Complex Under

development
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HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BENMNBRBIER Ehi maE R 245,410 - 4,545
Suzhou Yong Qiao Project Suzhou Complex Under
development
FE N & #018 B BEM T FAE EE 390,089 163,663 133,296
Suizhou Zengdu Project Suizhou Complex Under
development
AMNEETLLE R =i FE ®T - - 217,694
Taizhou Huangyan Jiangshan Yipinyuan  Taizhou Residential Completed
AMIE R ERE A F=x BT - - 15,309
Taizhou Xianju Shangjun Mansion Taizhou Residential Completed
ANREENEE =ikl FE EE 381,962 - -
Taizhou Wenling Yunyueguanling Taizhou Residential Under
development
R B EMRT Al F=E e = 208,100 108,751 -
Seazen Jingling ® Yunyue Dongfang Taizhou Residential Under
development
EfEE NE =ik FE i 131,559 - -
Yunyue Fenghua Xiaoqu Taizhou Residential Under
development
AMEZER aMm mAfE ®T - - 196,144
Taizhou Huangyan Project Taizhou Complex Completed
aMEER A AR BT - - 188,566
Taizhou Xianju Project Taizhou Complex Completed
AREBMIER NG FAwE i3 523,646 - 52,724
Taiyuan Wanbailin Project Taiyuan Complex Under
development
ARARHUEIER AR FAMR iz 198,007 - -
Taiyuan Dajingyu Project Taiyuan Complex Under
development
FRRERE e FE EE 374,061 244,146 -
Tai‘an Wuyue Fenghua Tai‘an Residential Under
development
T R EER LM F=x R 148,703 - -
Seazen ¢ Wuyue Capital Tai'an Residential Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
FLEFRIIER FRH maE R 196,904 - 6,185
Tai'an Taishan Project Tai'an Complex Under
development
ZFriEwER R e i3 142,716 635,518 -
Tai'an Feicheng Project Tai‘an Complex Under
development
RRHFIAR ESgy] maR kg 714,831 - -
Tai'an Xintai Project Tai‘an Complex Under
development
REMETLE ZMm FE R - 209,038 60,786
Taixing Danxia Garden Taizhou Residential Under
development
RN ZMH F= ®T - - 66,875
Taizhou Rongyue Taizhou Residential Completed
KEFR%E M TF=E EE 113,436 182,119 -
Riverbank Garden Taizhou Residential Under
development
TMZEER FMm mak %®T - - 188,541
Taizhou Taixing Project Taizhou Complex Completed
FNE(LIRR FMT mAfE iz 441,647 115,519 122,745
Taizhou Xinghua Project Taizhou Complex Under
development
FINEHEER ZMT mak H - 677,848 -
Taizhou Hailing Project Taizhou Complex Proposed for
development
LR T BT i = 149,014 - -
Tangshan Seazen Ruifu Tangshan Residential Under
development
LA HR R I = R 457,349 - 8,923
Tangshan Seazen Lanyuefu Tangshan Residential Under
development
LB it EILH F= EE 44,234 - -
Tangshan Xitangshangyuan Tangshan Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EILBRILIER FIm AR ER 277,621 - 162,570
Tangshan Lubei Project Tangshan Complex Under
development
RAERBREMRALE RET FE EE 160,619 - -
Tianjin Wuging Wutong Mansion Tianjin Residential Under
development
RERBURERE REM = E# 260,929 - -
Tianjin Wuging Yuejun Yangzhe Tianjin Residential Under
development
RRRBNEFE RET T=E  §e - 217,236 -
Tianjin Wuging Yuejun Nianhua Tianjin Residential Proposed for
development
HeEHER R RET F=E feg = 178,459 - -
Seazen e Xiyue Xitang Tianjin Residential Under
development
KA R E S RET T=E g = 89,037 - -
Tianjin Wuging Lakeview Fenghua Tianjin Residential Under
development
REEEAE R FE R 388,217 - 184,949
Tianjin Baodi Dajing Tianjin Residential Under
development
RBERIIST R FE KR 156,000 - -
Tianjin Eco-City Yuefu Tianjin Residential Under
development
PSR =il £ R 464,649 - 38,495
Tianjin Beichen Yuefenghua Tianjin Residential Under
development
REKBBR KT FE BT - - 3,981
Tianjin Dagang Gangdongfu Tianjin Residential Completed
REE M RET FE EE 189,300 - -
Tianjin Jinnan Hexingfu Tianjin Residential Under
development
REEEMEET REM = e 207,809 - -
Tianjin Baodi Yuejun Capital Tianjin Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
RegatiEie REM F=x R 111,301 - -
Tianjin Binhai Yuejun Duhui Tianjin Residential Under
development
RERBUREAT KAEN TF=E ER 128,152 - -
Tianjin Dongli Yuejun Gongyuan Tianjin Residential Under
development
KRB RESH REM FE E# 80,310 - -
No. 8, Guangming Road, Ninghe, Tianjin  Tianjin Residential Under
development
BETEEE 195 KA FE EE 147,843 84,877 -
Land Parcel No. 19 in Airport Economic  Tianjin Residential Under
Zone, Binhai New District development
ERERERE A1 SR REM F=x feg = 91,730 - -
Land Parcel No. 41 in Eco-City, Tourism  Tianjin Residential Under
Area development
bR/ NBR004 5% M 3% RE F=x EE 70,435 - -
Land Parcel No. 004 in Xiaodian, Beichen  Tianjin Residential Under
development
REEWHERE (95%) REM FE = 132,109 - -
Tianjin Ninghe Yuejun Mansion Tianjin Residential Under
(Land Parcel No.9) development
RKHO15 - 01778F R FE KR 192,847 - -
Projects 015, 017 in Dazhangzhuang Tianjin Residential Under
development
RERMER REM Y %I - - 222,983
Tianjin Jinnan Project Tianjin Complex Completed
REEEBHEIEE KR FAER KR 494,910 - -
Tianjin Binhai New Area Project Tianjin Complex Under
development
REEARERE RET FE EE 392,154 - -
Tianjin Ninghe Yuejun Mansion Tianjin Residential Under
development
RELRBERE REM F=x e 145,971 - -
Tianjin Beichen Yuejun Fenghua Tianjin Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
REEWIEAR REM AR R 168,270 - -
Tianjin Ninghe Project Tianjin Complex Under
development
MK FIE R AE ooy - EE 480,618 143,164 -
Chuzhou Tianchang Project Tianchang Complex Under
development
fkAERR ol A k@ 392,933 - 155,798
Tongling Tongguan Project Tongling Complex Under
development
EIDRR I AE YN E4=ail T=E E# 235,060 - -
Rongcheng Seazen Yuejun Mansion Weihai Residential Under
development
ZEFBHETER ) 2l F=E RT - - 71,077
Angiu Seazen Yuejun Qingyunfu Weifang Residential Completed
AU RRUAL G ST EE EE 276,860 666,759 -
Zhucheng Seazen Rongyue Daduhui Weifang Residential Under
development
BINHLHRUG BT F=E KR 204,990 - -
Wenhzhou Rui'an Feicuiyuefu Wenzhou Residential Under
development
SR B3 BT FE Zig = 168,673 - -
Wenzhou Rui‘an Guoruifu Wenzhou Residential Under
development
BRI EBRI BT FE ®I - - 42,038
Wenzhou Yueging Guanlanyuan Wenzhou Residential Completed
BN PR SR = ER 161,340 - -
Wenzhou Pingyang Yuefu 01 Wenzhou Residential Under
development
IR 02 R FE e 154,460 - -
Wenzhou Pingyang Yuefu 02 Wenzhou Residential Under
development
BMNEFRAEE RN FE EE 113,618 - -
Wenzhou Yueqing Dongchao Yunzhu Wenzhou Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BT BN F=x R 243,112 195,468 -
Seazen e Oujiang Bay Wenzhou Residential Under
development
BMEEEIER R e iz 512,722 - 224,566
Wenzhou Longwan Project Wenzhou Complex Under
development
IR A ERIE B BN maR E# 372,788 - -
Wenzhou Future Community Project Wenzhou Complex Under
development
BRAREKRIER BEAET FAR i3 105,547 759,151 -
Urumgi Midong Project Urumgi Complex Under
development
SEAEKEBER REAEW HARE feg = 210,562 620,548 -
Urumgi Shuimogou Project Urumgi Complex Under
development
EHNRER EHT TFE ®T - - 67,546
Wuxi Baicui Chunju Wuxi Residential Completed
X5 EHT FE i3 204,877 - -
Wenhui Mingyuan Wuxi Residential Under
development
EHAHE AT F=E iz 165,883 - -
Wuhu Daduhui Wuhu Residential Under
development
REFREER BUET FE i3 291,785 - 84,193
Wuhan Seazen Yuejingtai Wuhan Residential Under
development
RERZR BUET = BT - - 46,317
Wuhan Jingtang Wuhan Residential Completed
EUE T o2 2P FUEm FE i3 74,271 - -
Wuhan Seazen e Jinjun Wuhan Residential Under
development
A B IE B FUET Fx i 269,863 - 60,343
Seazen Tingrui Junyue Guanlan Project Wuhan Residential Under

development
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BURHT B MPT 2 R F=x R 553,123 - -
Wuhan Seazen e Puyue Mendi Wuhan Residential Under
development
BUE A FUET FE iz 219,974 456,747 -
Wuhan Seazen Taolijun Wuhan Residential Under
development
FRAGER BUET = EE 108,050 137,978 -
Seazen Tianyue Guanlan Wuhan Residential Under
development
AL BRI ikl FE ®T - - 158,059
Xi'an Xiyuelifu Xi'an Residential Completed
AZBEELEE k=gl FE %®T - - 53,758
Xi'an Yuejun Gongyuanli Xi'an Residential Completed
B2 118/IER [kl F=x wHz - 125,581 -
118 Mu Project in Lintong Xi'an Residential Proposed for
development
M2 RE ikl FE e - 217,287 -
Seazen Shengyu Lanwan Xi'an Residential Proposed for
development
B [kl ia i 171,293 - -
Seazen Capital Xi'an Residential Under
development
AZERER kgl e Gege 77,857 213,155 158,860
Xi'an Fengxi Project Xi'an Complex Under
development
A RIER kgl mAae BT - - 202,964
Xi‘an Fengdong Project Xi'an Complex Completed
HERRER FE mAfE i 253,533 - 91,274
Xining Chengdong Project Xining Complex Under
development
EEWILER AEM ey rE 126,889 451,085 -
Xining Chengbei Project Xining Complex Under
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
HERE HET F=x R 141,561 405,496 49,775
Xiangtan Jingjun Xiangtan Residential Under
development
BRI E E T FE iz 22,932 - 16,089
Nanzhang Seazen Yuejun Xiangyang Residential Under
development
EGRHER EGm A feg = 568,669 - 116,338
Xiangyang Hi-Tech Project Xiangyang Complex Under
development
ZRIR BB ZRm T=E ER 127,375 - 17,141
Xiaogan Seazen e Jingyuefu Xiaogan Residential Under
development
E3T ZRM F=E E# 284,200 - 27,301
Xiaogan Seazen Xi Yue Xiaogan Residential Under
development
EREEENNER ZRM FE g3 126,701 - 42,996
Xiaogan Country Garden Seazen Huafu  Xiaogan Residential Under
development
BN EEE M FE = 370,166 123,942 64,446
Pizhou Country Garden Xuzhou Residential Under
development
TR EE A A N FE e 212,509 - -
Pizhou Xiyuefu Xuzhou Residential Under
development
R ERELIT M = ER 62,247 - 88,815
Pizhou Xiyuefu Xuzhou Residential Under
development
MR wM FE iz 219,450 160 -
Xuzhou Jiulonghu Xuzhou Residential Under
development
SRIZ IR e EE EE 101,604 22,730 -
Gulou Yingyue Xuzhou Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
Hie B RN FE e 34,583 - -
Seazen e Yunjing Xuzhou Residential Under
development
Bl HIRBC IR M FE sz - 120,134 -
Puyue e Yulonghu Land Parcel BC Xuzhou Residential Proposed for
development
Bl fR AR RN FE Hz - 236,055 -
Puyue ® Yulonghu Land Parcel A Xuzhou Residential Proposed for
development
MR R il oR=) - EE 402,761 476,814 -
Xuzhou Xinyi Project Xuzhou Complex Under
development
®NEZER RN mARE E# 310,426 590,613 174,042
Xuzhou Jiawang Project Xuzhou Complex Under
development
®HNEKRR wM AR 34 - 993,774 -
Xuzhou Feng County Project Xuzhou Complex Proposed for
development
FELEE FEM FE = 255,892 222,608 -
Xuchang Jinyutang Xuchang Residential Under
development
RESHG FEM FE e 116,098 - 31,218
Changge Jinyuefu Xuchang Residential Under
development
ML T2 R E ji:¥qul = R 151,868 - 73,589
Ya'an Seazen Ruisheng Jinyue Lan'an Ya'an Residential Under
development
EARHEZ Bam = s 155,140 - -
Yantai Puyue Yuanzhe Yantai Residential Under
development
EaHm SRR EaTm FE EE 81,732 - -
Yantai Seazen Mingyu Jinyuan Yantai Residential Under

development
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GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
RLZEHEERR T maE ER 357,675 - 132,286
Yan'an Baota Project Yan'an Complex Under
development
BYRAER By FAE EE 528,825 - 152,513
Yancheng Dongtai Project Yancheng Complex Under
development
ERAgiE By FE kR 5,777 142,508 62,774
Yancheng Dafeng Yuejun Yancheng Residential Under
development
B RERK ST FE EE 73,794 - 7,060
Yancheng Yuejun Shi Dai Yancheng Residential Under
development
E R & R i FE BT - - 27,589
Yancheng Dongtai Tianyuefu Yancheng Residential Completed
HRRaMRERE il T=x g - 30,771 26,004
Yancheng Dongtai Yujing Huating Yancheng Residential Proposed for
development
S HAT il FE i 140,994 117,921 -
Jinyuefu Yancheng Residential Under
development
B R RS LR R B FE 3 - 317,89 -
Yandangshang Road Project in Economic ~ Yancheng Residential Proposed for
Development Zone, Yancheng development
S AEIER ol HAE i 583,885 - 162,236
Yancheng Dafeng Project Yancheng Complex Under
development
SRR Eym mawE iz 28,846 - 176,050
Yancheng Yandu Project Yancheng Complex Under
development
HERRANEER By E= KR 118,053 - 12,203
Yancheng Jianhu Yuejun Capital Yancheng Residential Under
development
EWIGIER Bhm A KR 428,672 - 87,655
Yancheng Sheyang Project Yancheng Complex Under

development
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FEYIZ A

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER BRTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BMNER R B F=x R 194,720 - -
Yangzhou Yunhe Shangchen Yangzhou Residential Under
development
MR etk wmMm FE EE 63,933 - -
Yangzhou Shiguangyue Yangzhou Residential Under
development
BIKETESR BMm FE KT - - 30,692
Yangzhou Shuiyang Huayuan Yangzhou Residential Completed
HMITEE i mer ®T - - 173,996
Yangzhou Hanjiang Project Yangzhou Complex Completed
HEREIER ==Ll FAR EE 389,323 - -
Yichang Xiling Project Yichang Complex Under
development
RNEERR FT FAER KR 609,470 - -
Yinchuan Xingging Project Yinchuan Complex Under
development
AaMERER EE&RM AR ®T - - 173,917
Taizhou Yuhuan Project Yuhuan Complex Completed
EYERIEA BEm ey jode - 662,704 -
Yunfu Yuncheng Project Yunfu Complex Proposed for
development
ENEHNIER ER GAE e 289,297 505,863 -
Yuncheng Yanhu Project Yuncheng Complex Under
development
REHNRER &M Y %I - - 283,079
Changchun New District Project Changchun Complex Completed
RDHEHA% =01l FE KR 254,013 - -
Changsha County Langjun Changsha Residential Under
development
HiolBR o [EE RHW FE EE 117,273 - -
Seazen ¢ Hengwei ¢ Huijun Fenghua Changsha Residential Under
development
ROGHEM =3/ an] FE %®T - - 16,373
Changsha County Xiyue Changsha Residential Completed

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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FEYIZEAAH

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.)
RABHE =900 Fx i 237,545 - -
Changsha County Yuejun Changsha Residential Under
development
EABRELNE =92l FE iz 118,691 138,172 -
Changsha County Yuejun Gongyuan Changsha Residential Under
development
KM =] FE %®T - - 11,298
Changsha Heyue Changsha Residential Completed
RAOWGRHEKE =30 F=x EE 305,599 - -
Changsha Meixi Lake Jinmaowan Changsha Residential Under
development
KD BRI =324l FE 3 33,233 - 83,930
Changsha International Metropolis Changsha Residential Under
development
Hg e B £ KA T=E e - 561,469 -
Seazen ¢ Guanshanyin Changsha Residential Proposed for
development
ROEHER =Sl FE g 174,837 - -
Changsha Meixi Lake Xiyue Changsha Residential Under
development
ROBRER =20l F=E iz 262,682 - -
Changsha Meixi Huafu Changsha Residential Under
development
RAOBHERFIEE =924l FE i3 185,215 184,252 -
Changsha Mingyu Dongfang Project Changsha Residential Under
development
ROMLER =] maE 2 218,554 - 108,798
Changsha Yuhua Project Changsha Complex Under
development
fRAmR5IAE fRiE ™ HeR g 672,562 - 115,900
Zhaotong Zhaoyang Project Zhaotong Complex Under
development
EEMMASRRER EEm F=x e 197,600 - 2,003
Zhaoqing Seazen Heyu Construction Zhaogqing Residential Under

Project

development
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FTEYFAMA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AfAER
HE - HE
REAN
HH W HEER HEME HETER FETER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FT7K) (F77%K) (FT7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EENEEE BB HeR i 594,031 - -
Zhaoqing Sihui Project Zhaoqing Complex Under
development
EEMILAE BEM TF=E ER 121,592 - -
Zhaoging Yueshan Mansion Zhaoging Residential Under
development
BIREENYS BIm FE EE 15,242 - 14,529
Zhenjiang Yuejun Wuyuefang Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
BLRGT HIH FE EE 85,916 - 7,535
Zhenjiang Longyuefu Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
BT BT F=E E# 167,190 - 14,865
Zhenjiang Jiangshanyue Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
B BEH BIm T=E g = 320,246 - -
Yangzhong Jiuli Xiangpan Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
HTEMG EIm FE = 88,692 - -
Zhenjiang Yonghefu Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
AERL #EIm FE KT - - 75,347
Jurong Yuanshan Zhenjiang Residential Completed
DR #Im EE ®I - - 48,597
Jurong Yuefu Zhenjiang Residential Completed
AREHRE EIT = ER 85,239 - 34,532
Jurong Heyuefu Zhenjiang Residential Under
development
FTHHEA = REE e 282,337 383,064 -
Zhenjiang Yangzhong Project Zhenjiang Complex Under
development
EEAELE M FE EE 135,516 - -
Gongyi Xi‘an Park Zhengzhou Residential Under

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
REAN
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BEEWME B Fx i 194,172 - -
Gongyi Xiyue Mendi Zhengzhou Residential Under
development
HH i 2P N FE iz 496,760 571,551 36,282
Seazen Shangjun Zhengzhou Residential Under
development
M 15555058 B Fx hige - 163,963 -
Land Parcel No. 5 in Jindai, Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Residential Proposed for
development
S5 EMEST B 1R BN FE s - 151,104 -
87 Mu Land Parcel in Donglinhu, Zhengzhou Residential Proposed for
Xingyang development
T B F=E feg = 93,036 - -
Seazen Xiyue Lanting Zhengzhou Residential Under
development
PR EERE B T=E e - 92,538 -
Seazen Xiyue Huating Zhengzhou Residential Proposed for
development
G TEYNT g FE = 126,664 - -
Seazen e Yuejun Mansion Zhengzhou Residential Under
development
B F5IE A B wafE i 277,545 - -
Zhengzhou Xingyang Project Zhengzhou Complex Under
development
RLEF AR i = ER 106,712 - 119,987
Zhongshan Lancai Mingyuan Zhongshan Residential Under
development
BERPE EEM F=E BT - - 46,936
Chongging Taolijun Chongging Residential Completed
EESHA EEW E= %T - - 64,394
Chongging Jinyuefu Chongging Residential Completed
ESE PN 1 HEW F=x EE 173,307 - 89,259
Chongging Langjun Daduhui Chongging Residential Under

development

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RfE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
EENERE EEW F=x %®T - - 57,456
Chongging Yuejun Fenghua Chongging Residential Completed
EERmELE EEW F=x %I - - 84,147
Chongging Xizhe Qili Chongging Residential Completed
BEREWNE EEW FE i 536,065 - 40,148
Chongging Xiyue Jiuli Chongging Residential Under
development
EFRITIL EEM F=x EE 283,717 - 12,173
Chongging Langyue Jiangshan Chongging Residential Under
development
EENEBE E0il F=x TR 317,019 - 35,676
Chongging Heyu Linyun Chongging Residential Under
development
BEEIE8H EEM F=E Zig = 241,196 - 95,272
Chongging Daishandao No.8 Chongging Residential Under
development
EERE BEM FE T 169,362 - -
Chongging Langcui Chongging Residential Under
development
EEMILIAR EEM mAawE iz 440,227 - -
Chongging Yubei Project Chongging Complex Under
development
EEILEER EET mak T 111,715 247,621 -
Chongging Beibei Project Chongging Complex Under
development
EEARER EEm ey jige 421,005 573,550 -
Chongging Dazu Project Chongging Complex Proposed for
development
BEETRER EET HaE R 244,486 425,748 -
Chongging Jiangjin Project Chongging Complex Under
development
RLFER Rl FE i 55,109 - -
Zhoushan Donghaifu Zhoushan Residential Under

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHALE
HE  HE
RfE A
EE W HEER HEME HETEE R(EPER ERTEEER
GFA Available
for Sale,
Property Property GFA Under  GFA Under Lease or Use
Projects City Type Status Development Planning by the Group
(FHRK) (FFHXK) (FHRK)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
BNBERS il F=x R 187,025 - 30,201
Zhuzhou Yuefu Zhuzhou Residential Under
development
CE R ATE ARl JEET FE iz 223,696 103,849 4,774
Zibo Seazen Yuejun Jiangshan Zibo Residential Under
development
B RN IER HEET FeR i 262,195 - -
Zibo Zhoucun Project Zibo Complex Under
development
BENERE BET % ER 159,148 - -
Zunyi Yuejun Fenghua Zunyi Residential Under
development
BE LML HEM F= feg = 260,049 - -
Zunyi Jinyue Heshan Zunyi Residential Under
development
BRAIEHIER BET maRE R 497,924 20,952 90,889
Zunyi Honghuagang Project Zunyi Complex Under
development
Hitc IR - - 3,595,206
Other completed projects
At 77,976,655 42,161,044 22,738,673
Total
BEREEEN 41,211,118 22,803,083 12,711,458

Attributable to the Group

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Property Development

In 2020, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately
RMB250,963 million. Contracted sales was approximately 23.49
million sq.m. in gross floor area ("GFA"). A total of 112 cities across
the country have contributed to our contracted sales. The aggregate
contracted selling price (excluding carparks sales) for the year was
RMB12,015 per sq.m..



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

£R1:2020FE REEAHNHELEPRMA Table 1: Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2020

TREVA 20205 KAEE S NIHESTE R The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of the Group's

e == = contracted sales* in 2020:
EHHE EHHE
EEmE -]
Contracted Contracted
W B City/Region GFA sold sales
(FrK) (ARBEST)
(sg.m.) (RMB million)

R=AME Yangtze River Delta Area

M Changzhou 1,142,396 13,647
&M Suzhou 912,036 13,604
BN Wenzhou 587,721 11,094
A Hangzhou 304,835 8,735
i Shanghai 171,023 8,466
B Yancheng 1,026,715 8,154
R Nanjing 245,827 7,608
Pl Huzhou 616,847 6,628
=N Xuzhou 582,747 5,827
/e Sugian 639,107 4,848
= Ningbo 334,095 4,768
a M Taizhou 275,401 4,257
Eap il Nantong 385,895 4,170
BN Chuzhou 354,579 3,120
EZ Huai'an 464,567 2,964
i Jiaxing 250,205 2,846
M Yangzhou 296,440 2,801
= Hefei 226,115 2,682
B Fuyang 340,268 2,678
T Zhenjiang 265,058 2,517
BE Jinhua 254,747 2,501
Z=M Taizhou 266,464 2,147
gl Shaoxing 117,145 2,078
EEE Lianyungang 220,640 1,677
NE Lu‘an 164,510 1,136
iRpE Tongling 142,962 1,133
=55 Wuxi 134,102 980
VEAE Huaibei 142,891 911
HE L Ma'anshan 101,427 797
R Wuhu 56,364 699

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERHE EHHE
EEmE -]
Contracted Contracted
W & City/Region GFA sold sales
(FrK) (ARBESET)
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
I Bozhou 72,397 530
‘M Suzhou 44,002 376
Al Zhoushan 18,309 209
iR Bengbu 26,200 119
YEF Huainan 9,163 52
it E Central and Western China Area
$-97 Changsha 555,504 5,288
EZ Wuhan 339,474 5,142
ER Kunming 685,676 5,058
5E Chongging 416,468 3,793
5 Guiyang 327,711 3,574
D Chengdu 394,857 3,304
1 Zhengzhou 263,416 2,053
fRim Zhaotong 272,258 1,979
BE Zunyi 306,708 1,868
R Yinchuan 234,136 1,733
%[5 Xiangyang 221,728 1,612
=5 Deyang 202,901 1,368
FiM Jingzhou 168,050 1,289
B Nanning 140,617 1,194
KR Taiyuan 101,667 1,126
mE Xining 84,305 1,053
[iifs Xi'an 73,257 961
NG Datong 154,981 896
ZRX Xiaogan 152,407 871
B Lanzhou 61,711 840
=A Huangshi 132,622 774
VAY--YN Liupanshui 127,158 706
T E Xuchang 112,520 697
blais! Beihai 63,089 637
panas Jiujiang 87,269 632
B&E Suizhou 91,858 625
FEMR Guilin 122,245 608
R Baoshan 81,627 595

54 | #EBBEERER AT Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERHE EHHE
EEmE -]
Contracted Contracted
W & City/Region GFA sold sales
(FAK) (AREBET)
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
pan Neijiang 71,169 538
&5 Guigang 83,705 538
E Yuncheng 74,082 526
HE Xiangtan 136,376 511
=H Baoji 75,561 506
TR Ankang 54,213 443
SEA Pingxiang 58,008 413
ma Nanchang 29,343 341
M Zhuzhou 44,088 285
25 Anyang 25,852 265
M Qinzhou 53,152 243
% Ya'an 29,915 176
= Meishan 18,560 170
BramukiE B ik 8 aM Qiannan Buyei and Miao Autonomous Prefecture 12,368 163
Er Hanzhong 24,777 153
240 Leshan 36,329 143
S5BARE Urumaqi 17,513 120
B Ezhou 15,589 101
[ Huanggang 16,603 95
T Shangrao 13,333 54
REE Bohai Rim
b= Beijing 279,568 11,504
K Tianjin 860,256 10,742
55 Qingdao 349,385 3,650
Bl Tangshan 289,864 3,501
BN Cangzhou 272,042 2,969
R Tai'an 357,579 2,773
P Jining 229,193 2,230
&5 Shenyang 241,882 2,044
(25 Baotou 221,208 1,549
BER Rizhao 195,345 1,454
Vil Ji'nan 163,053 1,398
B0 38, Liaocheng 133,925 757
=M Dezhou 99,649 630
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBRHE EHHE
EEmE X
Contracted Contracted
W & City/Region GFA sold sales
(FAK) (AREBET)
(sgq.m.) (RMB million)
EiE Zibo 82,761 522
i35} Weifang 119,456 442
ERh Langfang 42,406 380
Ea Yantai 26,252 265
B8 Weihai 39,316 243
R Dongying 18,956 138
BN Binzhou 14,348 133
T Linyi 15,887 110
k& Changchun 16,574 32
REE Greater Bay Area
=M Huizhou 387,403 2,801
Ed- Zhaoging 307,196 1,989
1L Foshan 118,118 1,334
= Dongguan 50,812 1,188
2 Shanwei 84,833 436
7P Jiangmen 21,872 191
Fi Zhongshan 13,104 155
Hfth Others 376,352 2,584
= Total 23,488,547 250,963
* B e * Including joint ventures and associates’ projects
8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

+ b ke

M2020F 12 A31H » AEEHLHMFEELY
142,876,372 F 5K » L HEEWNE £ FHUk
BRANASTFHAARBE2,6157T - REBK
202012 A31 B i fEE IO MHaT

}2:AEENLBEERA

LAND BANK

As at 31 December 2020, the land bank of the Group was
approximately 142,876,372 sg.m.. The historical average acquisition
cost of land bank was approximately RMB2,615 per sq.m.. The
geographic spread of the land bank of the Group as at 31 December

2020 was as follows:

Table 2: Details of land bank of the Group

EAEE
ke F AEEERD
HEEER HEADL BEEE

GFA
Percentage of attributable to
the Group’s the Group’s

EAEEER
EEEEES L
Percentage of

GFA
attributable to
the Group’s

b City/Region Total GFA total GFA interests interests
(FFFAK) (%) (FEF7K) (%)
(sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.) (%)

R=AE Yangtze River Delta Area
# M Suzhou 5,663,525 3.96% 2,639,821 3.44%
BN Changzhou 5,093,981 3.57% 2,240,850 2.92%
EAl Xuzhou 4,605,273 3.22% 2,615,187 3.41%
G Sugian 3,467,944 2.43% 2,082,759 2.71%
EE b Yancheng 3,232,025 2.26% 1,986,320 2.59%
R Huai'an 2,429,288 1.70% 1,530,487 1.99%
BN Wenzhou 2,393,775 1.68% 710,049 0.93%
[E2B Nantong 2,279,828 1.60% 805,012 1.05%
Z M Taizhou 2,178,555 1.52% 1,049,073 1.37%
$E)T Zhenjiang 1,787,131 1.25% 901,833 1.18%
AN Huzhou 1,780,344 1.25% 907,538 1.18%
B Nanjing 1,748,553 1.22% 843,252 1.10%
&M Taizhou 1,622,002 1.14% 673,011 0.88%
M Yangzhou 1,588,991 1.11% 1,008,393 1.31%
= Fuyang 1,471,239 1.03% 739,026 0.96%
RN Chuzhou 1,187,879 0.83% 766,042 1.00%
Ahe Hefei 1,100,787 0.77% 651,051 0.85%
HEE Lianyungang 1,011,387 0.71% 517,862 0.68%
=E Jiaxing 933,782 0.65% 454,198 0.59%
=R Ningbo 861,637 0.60% 364,037 0.47%
Al Hangzhou 771,878 0.54% 200,584 0.26%
37 Wuxi 722,458 0.51% 203,388 027%
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MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HEEE

P AEBEES HAEEER
BEREE HEBESL EXEEE BEERASL
Percentage of
GFA GFA
Percentage of attributable to attributable to
the Group’s the Group’s the Group’s
W B City/Region Total GFA total GFA interests interests
(FAK) (%) (FAHAK) (%)
(sg.m.) (%) (sq.m.) (%)
s Shanghai 698,256 0.49% 206,260 0.27%
iRpE Tongling 548,731 0.38% 365,151 0.48%
4R Shaoxing 541,457 0.38% 262,010 0.34%
NE Lu‘an 537,317 0.38% 358,169 0.47%
b Huaibei 519,128 0.36% 345,451 0.45%
3 Bengbu 433,677 0.30% 240,514 0.31%
ST Jinhua 406,138 0.28% 144,704 0.19%
B Suzhou 249,955 0.17% 166,332 0.22%
=Z M Bozhou 226,069 0.16% 73,068 0.10%
B8 Ma'anshan 206,923 0.14% 133,329 0.17%
YR Huainan 205,047 0.14% 136,448 0.18%
O Wuhu 165,883 0.12% 106,751 0.14%
A Zhoushan 55,109 0.04% 12,286 0.02%

R E Central and Western China Area
=1 Kunming 5,803,332 4.06% 3,296,118 4.30%
BE Chongging 4,710,477 3.30% 2,476,370 3.23%
597 Changsha 3,619,212 2.53% 1,547,188 2.02%
&5 Guiyang 3,040,994 2.13% 1,949,421 2.54%
LI Zhengzhou 2,339,131 1.64% 1,036,251 1.35%
HZE Wuhan 2,302,642 1.61% 1,250,902 1.63%
BB Urumgi 1,695,808 1.19% 854,779 1.11%
&R Chengdu 1,575,195 1.10% 730,657 0.95%
iz Xi'an 1,378,815 0.97% 884,022 1.15%
R Baoshan 1,269,632 0.89% 844,872 1.10%
1= Nanchang 1,246,481 0.87% 547,544 0.71%
+& Shangrao 1,241,790 0.87% 385,634 0.50%
BiE Changde 1,186,184 0.83% 789,342 1.03%

L ki Qiannan Buyei and Miao

EizaAM Autonomous Prefecture 1,185,148 0.83% 406,235 0.53%
JEES Zunyi 1,028,962 0.72% 687,508 0.90%
i Xining 922,780 0.65% 614,061 0.80%

58 N RIEREPR A A Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
HEEE

P rEEERE hAREERER
BEREE HEBESL EXEEE BEERASL
Percentage of
GFA GFA
Percentage of attributable to attributable to
the Group’s the Group’s the Group’s
W B City/Region Total GFA total GFA interests interests
(FAK) (%) (FAHAK) (%)
(sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.) (%)
Y Guilin 850,219 0.60% 509,985 0.66%
NG Datong 849,875 0.59% 571,201 0.74%
E Ezhou 806,267 0.56% 535,985 0.70%
ek Yuncheng 795,161 0.56% 530,045 0.69%
A im Zhaotong 788,463 0.55% 574,808 0.75%
Z 5 Anyang 780,880 0.55% 519,633 0.68%
KR Taiyuan 774,376 0.54% 419,429 0.55%
7NERK Liupanshui 758,017 0.53% 506,101 0.66%
B Xiangyang 724,028 0.51% 527,031 0.69%
FIM Jingzhou 689,191 0.48% 397,001 0.52%
BE M Suizhou 687,049 0.48% 500,875 0.65%
TR Ankang 675,545 0.47% 451,037 0.59%
BZ Guang'an 664,267 0.46% 442,034 0.58%
EE=) Xuchang 625,816 0.44% 208,501 0.27%
Z Rk Xiaogan 625,714 0.44% 248,504 0.32%
B Guigang 618,246 0.43% 411,409 0.54%
811 Yinchuan 609,470 0.43% 409,625 0.53%
FE Nanning 597,629 0.42% 366,241 0.48%
M= Xiangtan 596,832 0.42% 396,678 0.52%
span Neijiang 551,383 0.39% 366,916 0.48%
=5 Deyang 525,493 0.37% 349,687 0.46%
plais! Beihai 524,844 0.37% 349,255 0.46%
EZ Yan'an 489,961 0.34% 326,043 0.42%
= Baoji 478,193 0.33% 318,212 0.41%
=5A Huangshi 447,508 0.31% 187,015 0.24%
R Lanzhou 418,838 0.29% 279,193 0.36%
BHE Yichang 389,323 0.27% 259,073 0.34%
o Qinzhou 303,057 0.21% 201,668 0.26%
T Jiujiang 253,214 0.18% 101,107 0.13%
SBIT] Luohe 245,268 0.17% 39,250 0.05%
Viigy Ya'an 225,457 0.16% 93,812 0.12%
TR Zhuzhou 217,226 0.15% 72,196 0.09%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
HEER
g rEEERE hAEEER
BEREE HEBESL EEEE EEEERIL
Percentage of
GFA GFA
Percentage of attributable to attributable to
the Group’s the Group’s the Group’s
W B City/Region Total GFA total GFA interests interests
(FFF2K) (%) (FFRK) (%)
(sq.m.) (%) (sg.m.) (%)
E Hanzhong 190,864 0.13% 127,010 0.17%
=yl Meishan 166,517 0.12% 66,824 0.09%
1) Leshan 132,370 0.09% 84,731 0.11%
i Huanggang 126,875 0.09% 26,801 0.03%
S Pingxiang 103,336 0.07% 35,073 0.05%
REEHE Bohai Rim Area

K= Tianjin 5,003,573 3.50% 2,651,924 3.46%
5 Qingdao 3,794,093 2.66% 1,369,027 1.78%
L Tai'an 2,463,064 1.72% 1,414,432 1.84%
(2FL] Baotou 1,351,569 0.95% 902,394 1.18%
i Beijing 1,179,069 0.83% 312,158 0.41%
M Cangzhou 1,112,747 0.78% 771,769 1.01%
& Tangshan 1,099,711 0.77% 592,928 0.77%
HER Rizhao 1,099,006 0.77% 617,778 0.81%
&5 Shenyang 1,081,588 0.76% 719,739 0.94%
%) Weifang 1,014,696 0.71% 663,586 0.86%
=M Dezhou 887,118 0.62% 590,329 0.77%
S Dongying 791,616 0.55% 504,619 0.66%
] Ji'nan 762,670 0.53% 392,195 0.51%
BN Binzhou 762,667 0.53% 508,488 0.66%
B Jining 595,571 0.42% 398,402 0.52%
1 Zibo 594,514 0.42% 329,581 0.43%
ik Liaocheng 507,180 0.35% 269,691 0.35%
®& Changchun 283,079 0.20% 186,490 0.24%
BT Linyi 263,331 0.18% 175,779 0.23%
Ea Yantai 236,872 0.17% 127,814 0.17%
BE Weihai 235,060 0.16% 110,494 0.14%
R Langfang 220,956 0.15% 111,304 0.15%
IRIE Baoding 213,274 0.15% 70,237 0.09%
AR Shijiazhuang 189,035 0.13% 84,107 0.11%
HO &R Handan 186,236 0.13% 125,169 0.16%
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KR
MR sE rEBEER hAEEER
BEREEE HEBIL EEEE BEEEEAIL
Percentage of
GFA GFA

Percentage of attributable to attributable to
the Group’s the Group’s the Group’s

W B City/Region Total GFA total GFA interests interests
(FHAK) (%) (FAHAK) (%)
(sq.m.) (%) (sq.m.) (%)

REE Greater Bay Area
=0 Huizhou 2,158,252 1.51% 1,010,256 1.32%
R Shanwei 1,046,870 0.73% 703,602 0.92%
EE Zhaoging 915,226 0.64% 646,973 0.84%
E% Yunfu 662,704 0.46% 440,994 0.57%
1L Foshan 576,483 0.40% 317,327 0.41%
&M Fuzhou 543,613 0.38% 235,147 0.31%
STFT Jiangmen 305,718 0.21% 182,423 0.24%
el Shenzhen 228,830 0.16% 75,360 0.10%
ML Zhongshan 226,699 0.16% 66,614 0.09%
5 Dongguan 109,167 0.08% 73,371 0.10%
Hf5ETIAH Other completed projects 3,595,206 2.52% 2,416,338 3.15%
&5t Total 142,876,372 100.00% 76,719,983 100.00%

20205 - AEEESHWE T FEEIER 120
8 WIS T EEOMN AR BT K (BEAR
EEALRBEIBE (R100%:1H)) (BFEit
THEEEE)  FHRERANABTFTRAR
#3,0317C °

In 2020, the Group acquired a total of 120 projects to replenish its land
bank. The acquired land bank was approximately 41.4 million sgq.m.
(including those of the Group’s joint ventures and associates’ projects
on a 100% basis) (including underground floor area) whilst the average
acquisition cost was approximately RMB3,031 per sq.m..
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Table 3: Details of land acquisition from January to December 2020

vE B Ry TR RELLG  AHEE LREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FRkK)  (CFARK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
Bl IR AR RE FALFI#EB1_05_(2) 1% £ 67.21% 35,978 120,898 3,012
Beijing Land Parcel B1_05_(2) in Xihongmen Residential
Township, Daxing District, Beijing City
! FRMTERER FE 67.21% 39,755 109,569 1,345
Shanghai Seazen Millennium Park Residential
A FIRAHEHBEGI2314110 E= 32.93% 37,254 228,830 2,800
Shenzhen Land Parcel G12314 in Shijing Subdistrict, Residential
Pingshan District
EM BN AR FE 22.16% 52,279 181,822 1,452
Suzhou Weitang Lakeview Chunxiao Project Residential
BAE RIS HE S £ 13.70% 70,304 216,445 2,436
Fenggi Heming Yayuan Residential
BRI T=E 20.14% 58,082 170,582 2,091
Huiying Shidai Garden Residential
FHURRIEER FE 34.24% 31,768 94,052 1,167
Jiayue Shidai Garden Residential
MHEE T= 53.71% 65,675 185,535 788
Heyue Garden Residential
FERT F=E 34.05% 57,334 184,539 1,001
Feili Paradiso Pavilion Residential
KEBHMEWG391 51k T=E 66.77% 44,157 126,915 1,029
Land Parcel No. WG391 in High-tech Zone, Residential
Taicang
DEREL Fx 66.72% 54,921 142,573 1,048
Xinwang Yayuan Residential
M ERIL TF=x 47.05% 57,135 186,242 2,285
Hangzhou Xiangyue Hemingfu Residential
RRE FE 10.07% 65,845 227,794 4,169
Tangyuewan Residential
AR AR EER F=E 64.43% 27,022 73,522 1,150
Nanjing Nanjing Seazen Riverbank Yunji Residential
AREREL £ 32.86% 106,661 336,023 2,220
Nanjing Yunyang Binjiang Residential
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vE B R TR BELS  AHEE LREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FFkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
pk B R 22 1% T=x 54.41% 15,058 53,049 308
Chengdu 22 Mu Land Parcel in Wenjiang Residential
K2 RGRH015 -~ 0177EE T=E 26.37% 87,229 192,847 536
Tianjin Projects 015, 017 in Dazhangzhuang Residential
BENREE195R IR T=x 49.91% 103,962 232,720 1,920
Land Parcel No. 19 in Airport Economic Zone, Residential
Binhai New District
I o EHERE F=E 31.94% 78,099 178,459 1,313
Seazen e Xiyue Xitang Residential
HRRIR R A1 IR FE 66.54% 42,514 91,730 410
Land Parcel No. 41 in Eco-City, Tourism Area  Residential
JER/NE004 SR H F=E 39.93% 28,409 70,435 333
Land Parcel No. 004 in Xiaodian, Beichen Residential
55 B2 AT T=E 20.15% 115,869 264,785 615
Qingdao Jimo Yuefu Residential
TEHERBe 4 F=E 53.73% 36,465 131,642 191
Pingdu Yuejun Daduhui Phase Il Residential
ES BEIBENES [EES 67.21% 76,430 359,336 880
Chongging Chongging Beibei Wuyue Plaza Commercial
BEEAREVES [EES 66.54% 360,556 994,555 898
Chongging Dazu Wuyue Plaza Commercial
EETEEVES [EES 66.54% 223,808 670,234 715
Chongging Jiangjin Wuyue Plaza Commercial
237 ROGHE Fx 20.34% 66,453 254,013 498
Changsha Changsha County Langjun Residential
i e BIE o [EHEE F=E 33.24% 44,127 117,273 311
Seazen ® Hengwei ® Huijun Fenghua Residential
¥ e BRILED F=E 20.34% 214,461 561,469 2,410
Seazen ® Guanshanyin Residential
RAAERFER Fx 53.17% 126,678 369,467 1,352
Changsha Mingyu Dongfang Project Residential
HE AR £ 64.01% 68,769 246,028 428
Wuhan Seazen Tianyue Guanlan Residential
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vE B R TR BELLG  AHEE LAREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FRkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
B Hrik o NS T=x 42.89% 39,477 126,664 172
Zhengzhou Seazen ® Yuejun Mansion Residential
B0 < 155 5% o 58 FE 30.98% 40,134 163,963 783
Land Parcel No. 5 in Jindai, Zhengzhou Residential
SIS MRS 87 " 1 F=E 51.21% 58,396 151,104 311
87 Mu Land Parcel in Donglinhu, Xingyang Residential
T BT RE T=x 32.64% 32,961 93,036 251
Seazen Xiyue Lanting Residential
Hrm B F=E 32.64% 36,022 92,538 209
Seazen Xiyue Huating Residential
=K AT (Ea=2 19.67% 66,624 228,821 1,447
Ningbo Yuefu Residential
HE A ER F= 34.28% 35,308 132,467 516
Nanning Nanning Jinyuefu Residential
i e AR AE T=® 67.21% 13,675 64,338 242
Seazen ® Mingyu Park Residential
[iik:q M E FE 60.34% 36,710 171,293 1,117
Xi‘an Seazen Capital Residential
g5 EGERENES [EES 66.54% 508,586 1,526,156 2,762
Guiyang Guiyang Economic Development Zone Commercial
Wuyue Plaza
EGEEENES [EES 66.54% 99,911 746,878 4,043
Guiyang Yunyan Wuyue Plaza Commercial
EH EBFTI A F=E 67.21% 71,146 173,038 569
Kunming Kunming Seazen Heyue Residential
ERKF68E IR T= 32.93% 45,880 197,438 625
68 Mu Land Parcel in Economic Residential
Development Zone, Kunming
BRAKTENES [EES 66.54% 351,172 1,267,406 1,195
Kunming Taiping Wuyue Plaza Commercial
8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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vE B R TR BELS  AHEE LREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FFkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
Bl Fr i SR X T=x 66.54% 27,441 64,851 283
Nanchang Seazen Yuejun Shidai Residential
MEBSET02555 R FE 39.93% 39,812 121,336 486
Land Parcel No. 025 in Xianghu Binjiang, Residential
Nanchang County
RATE SO ATE 365 IR T=x 22.16% 161,278 525,250 2,783
365 Mu Land Parcel in west of Xueyuan Road, Residential
High-Tech Industrial Development Zone
HEEBENES [EES 67.04% 133,653 464,396 596
Nanchang Jinxian Wuyue Plaza Commercial
AR TR SAT F= 44.49% 70,537 189,035 666
Shijiazhuang Seazen Zhenghongfu Residential
il i AZIES T=x 66.54% 12,449 44,943 504
Jinan Seazen Shiguang Yinxiang Residential
=0 BINEEENES [EES 43.26% 140,000 543,613 1,070
Fuzhou Fuzhou Pingtan Wuyue Plaza Commercial
RIR RERFRERES [EES 66.54% 35,029 198,007 657
Taiyuan Taiyuan Dajingyu Wuyue Plaza Commercial
RERAK SEAEKEBENES [EES 3338% 325286 831,110 1,988
Urumgi Urumgi Shuimogou Wuyue Plaza Commercial
BERABERRENES [EES 66.77% 319,603 864,698 1,051
Urumgi Midong Wuyue Plaza Commercial
AaE AEEHILE N ES [EES 66.54% 144,524 577,974 1,734
Xining Xining Chengbei Wuyue Plaza Commercial
N BMZEERES S 66.66% 81,214 418,838 1,006
Lanzhou Lanzhou Anning Wuyue Plaza Commercial
I WERBEE F=x 38.61% 56,966 154,763 684
Changzhou Shangjun Tianjiao Garden Residential
BMERIER F=E 31.84% 46,057 144,274 1,715
Changzhou Yunyi Garden Residential
EETEE F=x 38.61% 60,515 174,205 694
Huijuan Garden Residential
SIEREIEE F=x 38.61% 55,669 167,989 618
Jintan Yijun Garden Residential
R ERRICA - AOBEE AL F=E 38.61% 50,900 155,177 566
Land Parcel in the north of Jintan Jingui East ~ Residential

Road and west of Yongging Road
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vE B R TR BELLG  AHEE LAREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FRkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
i35 XIE 55 T=x 64.35% 75,699 204,877 2,038
Wuxi Wenhui Mingyuan Residential
BN i e BLILE FE 42.77% 132,688 438,580 1,660
Wenzhou Seazen ® Oujiang Bay Residential
BIMNAKALRIAR [EES 32.94% 76,485 372,788 2,864
Wenzhou Future Community Project Commercial
&M BB F=E 31.69% 54,171 124,335 666
Xuzhou Gulou Yingyue Residential
Hr o B35 FE 63.38% 14,866 34,583 169
Seazen ® Yunjing Residential
EE o REABCIHDIR F=E 32.32% 73,239 120,134 1,422
Puyue ® Yulonghu Land Parcel BC Residential
B o SRR AR F= 44.37% 81,570 236,055 2,412
Puyue ® Yulonghu Land Parcel A Residential
HINEBZEVES [EES 66.54% 294,806 993,774 578
Xuzhou Feng County Wuyue Plaza Commercial
i A Fx 26.86% 77,818 258,915 482
Yancheng Jinyuefu Residential
MR RERLEIEE TF=x 26.86% 104,088 317,896 1,103
Yandangshang Road Project in Economic Residential
Development Zone, Yancheng
ZM FINEEENES [EES 6.88% 307,759 677,848 4,165
Taizhou Taizhou Hailing Wuyue Plaza Commercial
L e AEEN FE 33.27% 65,000 148,703 403
Tai‘an Seazen ¢ Wuyue Capital Residential
ERTHREVES [HES 66.89% 250,160 714,831 754
Tai'an Xintai Wuyue Plaza Commercial
ZRIEHE N ES [EES 66.54% 320,906 778,234 723
Tai'an Feicheng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
A e o EMERT £ 36.66% 104,530 316,850 1,455
Taizhou Seazen Jingling ¢ Yunyue Dongfang Residential
EHEE/ G £ 42.77% 41,844 131,559 822
Yunyue Fenghua Xiaoqu Residential
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vE B R TR BELS  AHEE LREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FFkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
BE BEDLSENES [EES 66.54% 172,441 806,329 349
Sugian Sugian Siyang Wuyue Plaza Commercial
BRMEEHES [EES 63.22% 280,409 917,273 705
Sugian Sihong Wuyue Plaza Commercial
TBEEH 10 F=E 63.38% 74,925 234,126 1,020
Land Parcel 10 in Sucheng, Sugian Residential
&M BN T=x 30.22% 26,504 63,933 221
Yangzhou Yangzhou Shiguangyue Residential
HE HEREENES [EES 66.54% 110,540 389,323 470
Yichang Yichang Xiling Wuyue Plaza Commercial
BN BIEWE RS [EES 66.67% 201,480 762,667 549
Binzhou Binzhou Bincheng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
BN BINEMER 117w 5% T=x 66.54% 78,353 169,428 642
Cangzhou 117 Mu Land Parcel in Yunhe District, Residential
Cangzhou
i BRANENES [EES 66.54% 316,237 1,186,184 1,330
Changde Changde Dingcheng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
k3= HRATESE £ 22.03% 76,482 257,267 924
Nantong Guanggi Huayuan Residential
EIRHI F=E 19.31% 60,885 178,025 847
Yunjing Yayuan Residential
R T R R KB R F= 66.65% 175,005 420,048 4,135
Land Parcel in Central Avenue, Qidong City ~ Residential
FiRERJIIR20021 5% 038 F=x 26.88% 65,064 190,859 1,459
Land Parcel No. R20021 in Chongchuan, Residential
Nantong
AR ARERZRIER T=E 33.58% 40,717 111,915 400
Rizhao Rizhao Time Glory Project Residential
RERREENES [EES 66.54% 209,945 615,902 884
Rizhao Donggang Wuyue Plaza Commercial
T HEANENES [EES 66.66% 89,645 262,195 347
Zibo Zibo Zhoucun Wuyue Plaza Commercial
E ERENENES [EES 66.66% 207,791 795,161 696
Yuncheng Yuncheng Yanhu Wuyue Plaza Commercial
s WA = 33.94% 74,433 214,972 533
Shangrao Taolijun Residential
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vE B R TR BELLG  AHEE LAREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FRkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
% R @A IE R T=x 21.47% 41,476 157,577 769
Huai'an Huai'an Jinyuefu Project Residential
1318 H T=E 65.47% 30,222 92,566 505
Pu 13 Project Residential
ERITRENES [EES 66.54% 119,537 380,996 335
Huai'an Xuyi Wuyue Plaza Commercial
A FHREER T=x 32.50% 52,385 176,823 928
Jiaxing Feicui Fenghua City Residential
FEBERE20181958 R F=E 40.06% 29,791 87,390 507
Land Parcel No. 201819 in Economic Residential
Development Zone, Jiashan County
EEH EEAEMNEE F=E 22.82% 41,478 120,009 651
Lianyungang Lianyungang Haizhou Project Residential
HTHL o B SRS T=E 32.32% 45,820 119,020 315
Seazen ® Haiyue Mingzhu Residential
FBRT FE 31.69% 60,678 180,117 444
Donghaifu Residential
R L F=E 40.33% 69,998 196,931 666
Jinhua Xiangyue Lancheng Residential
=M G FEER T=E 31.37% 64,920 221,099 416
Huizhou Land Parcel in Luoyang Shangtoutang Residential
Wi WA (1% 1183 8 F=E 39.93% 78,320 260,146 519
Liaocheng Land Parcel 118 in Liaocheng Resort Residential
JLP FREERGER FE 51.21% 51,279 173,971 763
Jiangmen Seazen Bofu Linghui International Residential
BEmikik e F= 34.28% 539,200 1,185,148 1,054
EiREAM
Qiannan Buyei and  Seazen Longyuefu Residential
Miao Autonomous
Prefecture
B BEE £ 16.00% 88,102 245,268 457
Luohe Xihe Celestial Mansion Residential
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B R A B TR BELS  AHEE LREEE g
Name of Proportion Site Total Total land
Location Land Parcel Land use  of interest area GFA premium
(AR
(FFkK)  CFRK) BET)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million)
z05 LN EE R ES [EES 66.54% 245,782 780,880 1,052
Anyang Anyang Wenfeng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
TR RRERENES [EES 66.77% 187,958 675,545 516
Ankang Ankang Hanbin Wuyue Plaza Commercial
ISR BHERILENES [EES 66.77% 48,476 139,778 300
Baotou Baotou Kunbei Wuyue Plaza Commercial
i RILEZ B ES [EES 66.54% 344,467 1,269,632 1,044
Baoshan Baoshan Longyang Wuyue Plaza Commercial
HEES W o RE R F=E 67.21% 59,907 186,236 448
Handan Seazen ® Gongyuan Shangfu Residential
RE RIETEM R KRB F=E 32.93% 53,955 213,274 365
Baoding Land Parcel in Great Wall, Lianchi District, Residential
Baoding City
Lo AR B e IR F=E 32.38% 49,547 130,524 414
Bengbu Seazen Yikang Shiguang Yinxiang Residential
e REREEUES [EES 66.54% 317,204 694,818 803
Dongying Dongying Dongying Wuyue Plaza Commercial
E¥ EFERENES [EES 66.54% 178,469 662,704 800
Yunfu Yunfu Yuncheng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
SBN SEAN SR E S [EES 66.54% 208,994 784,866 1,228
Ezhou Ezhou Echeng Wuyue Plaza Commercial
B# BRBEZENES [EES 66.54% 221,676 664,267 488
Guang'an Guang'an Guang'an Wuyue Plaza Commercial
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PROPERTY DELIVERY AND REVENUE FROM SALE
OF PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from sale of properties
by the Group was approximately RMB137,577.9 million, representing
an increase of 71.3% compared to 2019. Properties with a total GFA of
approximately 15,386,229 sq.m. were delivered during the year ended
31 December 2020, representing an increase of 123.7% compared to
2019. Average selling price of properties delivered and recognized as
sales was RMB8,942 per sq.m. in 2020.

The following table sets forth the revenue information relating to the
properties the Group delivered for sale during the year 2020:

Table 4: Details of revenue from sale of properties of the Group in

2020
1HE W L'ON EEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AR¥BBEET) (FRK) (AR FHK)
(RMB million) (sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
ENESEE M 4,457.03 412,831 10,796
Changzhou Liyang Project Changzhou
ARtz R 4,305.87 166,395 25,877
Nanjing Yuefeng Nanjing
ML B RESTIIE B KR 3,779.21 360,853 10,473
Huai'an Eco-City Project Huai'an
aMlEEE aMm 3,453.64 298,714 11,562
Taizhou Xianju Project Taizhou
BRMMOCEA T B &N 3,078.11 166,626 18,473
Suzhou MOC Xinchenghui Project Suzhou
EHZEEA EEA 2,786.82 235,778 11,820
Kunming Chenggong Project Kunming
EMHEIER M 2,740.99 248,412 11,034
Changzhou Taoli Garden Changzhou
MR 542 BB N 2,738.08 122,104 22,424
Hangzhou Jingjun Mingdi Hangzhou
BEEESERIER ) 2,594.50 395,237 6,564
Lianyungang Ganyu Project Lianyungang
EHERIER E 2,410.56 367,450 6,560
Hanzhong Hantai Project Hanzhong
B E R ERE pile| 2,350.14 175,221 13,412
Jinan Fragrant Xiangyi Huating Ji'nan

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report



HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
EMNREIERB M 2,304.32 196,174 11,746
Changzhou Tianning Project Changzhou
REMRIAR ®& 2,137.88 247,681 8,632
Changchun New District Project Changchun
WMNERE EEE BN 2,076.69 277,968 7,471
Huzhou Nanxun Haishangfenghua Huzhou
TR B A S 1 R AR 2,065.05 180,541 11,438
Qidong Diehu Shijiewan Qidong
AMEIREER am 2,015.99 210,589 9,573
Taizhou Yuhuan Project Taizhou
B & 1,969.34 106,572 18,479
Binhu Daduhui Hefei
BEEGMNIER EEE 1,914.91 167,585 11,426
Lianyungang Haizhou Project Lianyungang
TN A ZEM 1,846.75 129,322 14,280
Taizhou Rongyue Taizhou
R BFRIEE 597 1,801.82 256,058 7,037
Changsha International Metropolis Changsha
INER 28R UM 1,796.31 87,732 20,475
Hangzhou Future Legend Mansion Hangzhou
ERFOZIAR B 1,747.23 173,644 10,062
Ningbo Cixi Project Ningbo
EINFTI AR N 1,715.73 123,246 13,921
Changzhou Legend Mansion Changzhou
B B AR IR B B3 1,714.69 183,921 9,323
Yancheng Yandu Project Yancheng
BEBKNBE BE 1,640.23 201,149 8,154
Sugian Shuimuginghua Sugian
AR $ET 1,518.02 174,305 8,709
Jurong Yuefu Zhenjiang
HMEREIER M 1,393.18 167,704 8,307
Yangzhou Baoying Project Yangzhou
RS 22 ] # BE 1,267.52 146,693 8,641
Shuyang Country Garden Seazen Sugian
FHRIBREIME R 2 % D 1,259.80 174,915 7,202
Chingbaijiang Vanke Seazen Time Glory Chengdu
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HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
KRB AEE1790 RK A 1,239.39 108,112 11,464
Zhangjiagang Mansion 1790 Zhangjiagang
ML EIEE R 1,200.40 165,107 7,270
Huai’an Shangjun Garden Huai'an
BT L BB 1,174.64 133,633 8,790
Jianyang Yuejun Jiangshan Chengdu
(i it ik 1,174.06 95,196 12,333
Xi'an Fengxi Project Xi'an
R FH & 1,165.96 161,859 7,204
Changsha Heyue Changsha
SEREIER e 1,154.73 137,410 8,404
Hefei Feidong Project Hefei
KIS KL 1,141.51 159,166 7,172
Huai‘an Yuejun Huai'an
MARNEN SRR ez 1,129.74 107,990 10,462
Nantong Rugao Yuejun Shidai Nantong
B SR B ED 1,113.66 131,816 8,449
Jianyang Yuejun Fenghua Chengdu
B R X B 1,106.08 159,637 6,929
Yancheng Yuejun Shidai Yancheng
M SEIE R L 1,103.36 173,356 6,365
Huaibei Duji Project Huaibei
ERN LS SR T M 1,093.13 123,887 8,824
Suzhou Yuejun Pinglanfu Suzhou
BINBIBIEE G 1,091.45 115,330 9,464
Suzhou Yong Qiao Project Suzhou
FTLRIIAE RE 1,079.02 122,505 8,808
Tai'an Taishan Project Tai'an
EFPEATE BE 1,076.92 73,221 14,708
Chongging Langjun Daduhui Chongging
B5@EMIER B85 1,073.10 101,646 10,557
Fuyang Yingzhou Project Fuyang
AZHEAEE (ks 1,065.39 144,989 7,348
Xi'an Yuejun Gongyuanli Xi'an
R4 BB 97 1,049.65 144,488 7,265
Changsha County Xiyue Changsha
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HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
S EBEEIR R i 1,022.25 103,618 9,866
Jiaxing Haiyan Project Jiaxing
BER AT EHOE BEB 1,021.37 97,733 10,451
Longquan Xinli Taoxichuan Chengdu
M BT BB 1,005.24 184,467 5,449
Seazen Jinyuefu Chengdu
RERREBRIT R 1,003.74 116,159 8,641
Tianjin Dagang Gangdongfu Tianjin
AN IR A 1,001.23 149,645 6,691
Shaoxing Shengzhou Project Shaoxing
EP DN SN LY 992.69 153,473 6,468
Yancheng Dafeng Yuejun Yancheng
NERMLIAR RL 976.61 130,481 7,485
Lu‘an Yu'an Project Lu‘an
HEMEREER HERD 934.03 167,825 5,566
Huainan Tianjiaan Project Huainan
EMERIEIER EZN 931.92 131,510 7,086
Guilin Lingui Project Guilin
R R B FiE 918.67 86,706 10,595
Jinan Fragrant Legend Ji'nan
AL EMEENT (i 912.14 54,919 16,609
Xi'an Xiyuelifu Xi'an
PR EIAE R R 911.32 183,694 4,961
Qinzhou Qinnan Project Qinzhou
BN EEREIE B BRI 905.58 117,129 7,732
Chuzhou Nangiao Project Chuzhou
AR R E 8 865.95 119,917 7,221
Kunming Seazen Yayue Kunming
B¥SHIER B 864.43 121,371 7,122
Baoji Hi-Tech Project Baoji
BE M g 859.33 111,481 7,708
Chongging Jinyuefu Chongging
FEERENERER  REERENBEER RE 853.04 92,658 9,206
Seazen Tingrui Junyue Guanlan Project/ Wuhan

Wuhan Tingrui Junyue Guanlan Project
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HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
EEMSBE BE 849.00 136,161 6,235
Chongqging Heyu Linyun Chonggqing
RMEEIER R 846.77 149,849 5,651
Xuzhou Jiawang Project Xuzhou
B REIER B3 836.18 93,647 8,929
Yancheng Dafeng Project Yancheng
RGBS 2K RE 834.92 103,860 8,039
Dongyang Shengyu Zhiguang Jinhua
IR EE||IE R IS 817.54 112,991 7,235
Bengbu Bengshan Project Bengbu
BMEARIEE FM 807.90 165,354 4,886
Huizhou Mingyu Garden Huizhou
AMAILE SRR aM 778.92 83,679 9,308
Taizhou Xianju Shangjun Mansion Taizhou
BRI ES piE] 778.50 81,116 9,597
Jinan Seazen Ling Yu Ji'nan
BIER o FTRE B 776.23 91,199 8,511
Gedian Seazen e Xinjinghui Ezhou
REEMIAR R 774.39 74,586 10,383
Tianjin Jinnan Project Tianjin
EEEHERE 55 736.38 68,453 10,758
Qingdao Excellent Queen’s Road Qingdao
= E e A Tk 709.13 123,110 5,760
Gaotang Jinyuefu Liaocheng
MRS TEE N 689.50 82,070 8,401
Changzhou Huyue Langjun Garden Changzhou
—KRBRERE B0 683.17 53,237 12,833
Sanshui Jinghui Haoyuan Foshan
FEBIRERME = 680.36 68,383 9,949
Haiyan Jingjun Lanting Jiaxing
S BT E R 55 676.70 53,510 12,646
Qingdao Seazen Yunyue Xiaoyuan Qingdao
SR I L ] 675.81 80,387 8,407
Zibo Seazen Yuejun Jiangshan Zibo
BEERAMNEE EE 668.19 129,167 5,173
Sugian Lakeview Park Sugian

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited

20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report



HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
BEOMMEAE &R 663.16 116,108 5,712
Huangshi Seazen Langjun Huangshi
RENENE & 659.03 60,578 10,879
Changfeng Yuejun Jiuli Hefei
= ED I 656.91 77,155 8,514
Seazen Shangjun Zhengzhou
HMEEIER %M 642.40 89,612 7,169
Yangzhou Gaoyou Project Yangzhou
aMNEsIas am 610.51 46,109 13,240
Taizhou Huangyan Project Taizhou
HEFTAL S e 601.10 91,363 6,579
Laiwu Seazen Yuejun Jinan
DS EE ML 591.24 98,071 6.029
Jinhu Yuejun Fenghua Huai'an
B TSI B BEY 587.89 70,742 8,310
Yancheng Sheyang Project Yancheng
EEIAN 22 RIE A E3 581.84 71,578 8,129
Zhaoging Seazen Heyu Construction Project Zhaoging
=g ) AN 580.38 43,190 13,438
Duhui Lanting Huzhou
BEERIEHR (2FE 562.93 29,890 18,834
Baotou Kunqu Project Baotou
RE WA Ea= 527.42 89,523 5,891
Changge Jinyuefu Xuchang
ZRF « BT F R 522.06 88,129 5,924
Xiaogan Seazen e Jingyuefu Xiaogan
FEHMER 55 502.85 51,611 9,743
Qingdao Seazen Xiyue Qingdao
TEES E 492.82 77,731 6,340
Jinhua Yunyu Jinhua
2 RHTER A R 488.84 75,631 6,463
Xiaogan Seazen Xiyue Xiaogan
IRINBET R 476.41 68,787 6,926
Zhuzhou Yuefu Zhuzhou
ARiBMEI%IE A FR @ 467.48 27,948 16,727
Zhaotong Zhaoyang Project Zhaotong
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HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
B R AIRE By 453.59 23,741 19,106
Yancheng Dongtai Project Yancheng
PR HTARL S =M 449.30 72,670 6,183
Qihe Seazen Yuejun Dezhou
M ST BB 443.47 184,467 2,404
Seazen Jinyuefu Chengdu
BB L& BRE 241 423.94 98,431 4,307
Emeishan Jinyue Tianxi Leshan
=M E(IAR Z)M 422.86 19,785 21,372
Taizhou Xinghua Project Taizhou
#oKERE #R N 419.77 47,941 8,756
Linshuiwan Jingyuan Suzhou
BT E ] 417.88 103,083 4,054
Nanzhang Seazen Yuejun Xiangyang
HBRE HE 411.39 87,110 4,723
Xiangtan Jingjun Xiangtan
B S BT B 396.85 71,621 5,541
Yancheng Jianhu Yuejun Capital Yancheng
75 R T ER A =M 393.78 40,225 9,789
Qihe Seazen Xiyue Dezhou
BHBILIER 5 380.13 26,222 14,497
Guigang Gangbei Project Guigang
BMESIEE £yl 363.83 48,328 7,528
Huizhou Yunyu Garden Huizhou
MDD THIEE FIM 362.48 15,668 23,135
Jingzhou Shashi Project Jingzhou
RERR HE 360.11 37,354 9,640
Wuhan Jingtang Wuhan
R R BERAN L =P 349.27 31,281 11,165
Nanjing Puyue Heshan Nanjing
2R IR T & R = Tz 322.09 54,181 5,945
Ya'an Seazen Ruisheng Jinyue Lan'an Ya'an
RAWIEEE 92 309.47 16,442 18,822
Changsha Yuhua Project Changsha
FILEF A G| 304.14 27,334 11,127
Zhongshan Lancai Mingyuan Zhongshan
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HE B A BEEE FHEE
Average
Projects City Revenue GFA selling price
(AREBET) (FRHK) (AR TFHK)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
TR i 286.40 31,602 9,063
Pinghu Seazen Yuejun Jiaxing
FBEEER 8 280.81 119,141 2,357
Shangrao Guangxin Project Shangrao
IR EEHY T 263.09 54,805 4,801
Zhenjiang Yuejun Wuyuefang Zhenjiang
S R FTIRR 2 S B A Ly pie] 258.60 39,139 6,607
Jinan Seazen Hechang Lakeview Yueshan Jinan
NN HAE 200.51 33,012 6,074
Xingsheng Yuejun Tianjiao Chengde
HithIE R 2,377.17 440,577 5,396
Others
Gl Total 137,577.93 15,386,229 8,942

HZE2020F 128310 S NEEEMENE
36,000,898 F K REBEHNARK377,9958
ELHNYECESEEEABRARN (EXEEE
ERBEIEE)  EAASBRR—FHRARE
TFEETE TEENER -

REBIEEMEEZRMN2020F12 A31HEH
¥WISETIHES ©

Of the properties the Group had pre-sold, a total GFA of approximately
36,000,898 sq.m. with value of approximately RMB377,995 million,
but had not been delivered as at 31 December 2020 (including those
of the Group's joint ventures and associates’ projects). This laid a solid
foundation for a steady growth in the Group’s revenue for the year to
come.

Property Investment

The Group's investment properties were mainly derived from the 95
Wuyue Plazas in operation as at 31 December 2020.

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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R5:2020F R2019FAKEREYVEREER

NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Table 5: Details of rental and management fee income from

EEEWARMA : investment properties of the Group in 2020 and 2019:
BZ12A31ALEE

Year ended 31 December

HEREBRERA Rental and management fee income Ry 20206 2019 e Opening date
Occupancy

rate 2020 2019

ARETR  ARETR

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
BMNHEENES Changzhou Wujin Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 197,243 207,265 201244 April 2012
BINENERES Changzhou Wuyue International Plaza 100.00% 135,815 153,363 20129128 December 2012
HEERENES Shanghai Qingpu Wuyue Plaza 99.39% 90,129 139,205 20149128 December 2014
FINRIENES Suzhou Wujiang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 66,981 77,243 201566 A June 2015
IR EEES Suzhou Zhangjiagang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 71,911 79,789 2015973  September 2015
BINGERES Zhenjiang Danyang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 96,512 101,612 20159128 December 2015
BOENES Haikou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 116,308 116,663 2016F 10 October 2016
HETNES Nanchang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 68,765 77,442 2016118 November 2016
BMeEENES Changzhou Jintan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 89,748 93,784 20169128 December 2016
ZEEWES Anging Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 89,002 78,989 2016%128  December 2016
MEENES Chengdu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 91,355 91,969 2016%128  December 2016
RERSERES Jiaxing Tongxiang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 109,359 105,606 201745 A May 2017
BMERES Quzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 73,202 79,517 201746 A June 2017
REENES Changchun Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 86,531 94,887 2017%7R8 July 2017
HIENES Zhenjiang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 85,717 93,669 2017%8A August 2017
EETUES Qingdao Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 94,445 114,433 2017497  September 2017
REFMNERES Shaoxing Shengzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 88,201 85,007 2017107 October 2017
ARNRERES Nantong Rugao Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 88,652 82,668 2017118 November 2017
BRENES Ningbo Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 63,068 67,813 2017118 November 2017
BRENES Nanjing Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 58,397 64,075 20174128 December 2017
REBREENES Chengdu Wuhou Wuyue Plaza 95.67% 45,565 52,219 2017F128  December 2017
SMNEBEIERES Quanzhou Jinjiang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 53,066 60,574 20179128 December 2017
BEENES Weinan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 48,462 39,945 201845 A May 2018
BNREENES Wenzhou Rui'an Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 122,108 121,519 20184%7A July 2018
PEESENES Jinhua Yiwu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 98,554 92,279 20184%7A July 2018
ErRE NS Huainan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 71,037 69,503 20188 A August 2018
aMEEEES Taizhou Huangyan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 84,951 82,902 2018%9A  September 2018
FRTHENES Jiaxing Pinghu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 81,860 74,541 2018%9F  September 2018
HINRLENES Suzhou Kunshan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 69,038 66,524 201849A  September 2018
BMEGES Yangzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 71,767 75,467 2018497  September 2018

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
HEREBRERA Rental and management fee income YR 2020% 2019 e Opening date
Occupancy
rate 2020 2019
ARETR  ARETR
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
HEMBRENES Nanchang New District Wuyue Plaza 96.85% 43,229 57,286 2018118 November 2018
BHRERES Kunming Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 61,279 76,730 2018118 November 2018
FNREENES Taizhou Taixing Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 78,668 81,636 2018% 118 November 2018
ROEVES Changsha Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 109,059 102,862 2018% 118 November 2018
HEEES Nanning Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 56,048 64,702 2018% 128  December 2018
BIOAENES Zhenjiang Jurong Wuyue Plaza 98.52% 49,462 67,014 2018F 128 December 2018
rERES Linyi Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 71,959 77,553 2018%F 128 December 2018
aMERENES Taizhou Yuhuan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 71,442 80,207 2018F 128 December 2018
HRMRERES Nantong Qidong Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 69,802 68,659 2018F 128 December 2018
aINULE &S Taizhou Xianju Plaza 100.00% 46,417 61,899 2018F 128  December 2018
ERZEENES Ningbo Cixi Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 68,146 89,292 2018128 December 2018
LEBES Shangrao Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 70,730 46,750 20196 A June 2019
REERES Hefei Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 87,757 61,384 20196 A June 2019
EREN RS Huai'an Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 75,761 44,283 20197 A July 2019
PMNELES Qinzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 60,214 35,334 2019%7A July 2019
ARAREHES Xi‘an Xixian Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 100,706 40,193 2019%9A  September 2019
*E’W % Yan'an Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 53,192 21,392 201998  September 2019
EREES Lianyungang Ganyu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 70,633 26,779 2019494  September 2019
H%*E’\Rf‘;ﬁ% Changzhou Tianning Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 117,197 35,066 2019410 October 2019
EREWES Baoji Wuyue Plaza 95.80% 63,480 18,616 201910 4 October 2019
BMNEREENES Yangzhou Baoying Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 62,102 18,433 2019F 10 October 2019
KEZEEWES Tianjin Jinnan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 91,184 20,214 20194118 November 2019
EILEG B Huaibei Wuyue Plaza 95.28% 38,469 12,218 20194118 November 2019
ERENRES Hanzhong Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 86,080 15,933 2019411 H November 2019
ENERES Guilin Wuyue Plaza 96.29% 48,372 6,469 20194 11 November 2019
BZEFNBES Lianyungang Haizhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 78,603 11,600 2019¢1ZH December 2019
BNEGENES Changzhou Liyang Wuyue Plaza 98.05% 58,225 9,213 2019% 128  December 2019
ERENES Yancheng Wuyue Plaza 98.50% 46,348 7,652 20194128 December 2019
BHEBENES Yangzhou Gaoyou Wuyue Plaza 96.22% 64,225 7,205 20194128  December 2019
HEENES Bengbu Wuyue Plaza 97.36% 62,339 6,970 2019%128  December 2019
EMNERES Suzhou Wuyue Plaza 97.98% 65,830 4,174 2019%128  December 2019
EORETHES Changsha High-speed Rail Wuyue Plaza 95.69% 71,818 6,566 20194128 December 2019
RERETWES Shaoxing Zhuji Wuyue Plaza - - 43,935 201797 A July 2017
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BZ12A31ALEE

Year ended 31 December

HEREBRERA Rental and management fee income AR 2020% 20194 e Opening date
Occupancy

rate 2020 2019

ARETR  ARETR

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
RREENES Harbin Wuyue Plaza - 19,313 - 2020% 1A January 2020
ARERENES Xi'an Fengxi Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 30,282 - 202098  September 2020
RELHENES Changchun Beihu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 23,388 - 202098 September 2020
BREEMNERES Fuyang Yingzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 25,444 - 202098  September 2020
ERGETHES Jiaxing Haiyan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 26,468 - 2020698  September 2020
ERZEENES Kunming Chenggong Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 23,783 - 2020%9H  September 2020
MBI ERES Taizhou Xinghua Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 28,307 - 2020F9F  September 2020
RBENES Zhaotong Wuyue Plaza 99.90% 22,579 - 2020F9A8  September 2020
DERRENES Baotou Kunqu Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 23,506 - 20204698  September 2020
BERENES Guigang Wuyue Plaza 96.83% 11,804 - 202010 A October 2020
NEERES Lu‘an Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 16,041 - 2020107 October 2020
BNETITRES Xuzhou Jiawang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 12,909 - 2020F 107 October 2020
HINE B Huzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 16,855 - 202010 October 2020
BULERES Tangshan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 23,781 - 202010 A October 2020
EWSIGENES Yancheng Sheyang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 14,719 - 2020410 October 2020
FNmEERES Suzhou High-speed Rail Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 24,078 - 2020118 November 2020
HERAEENRES Yancheng Dafeng Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 16,551 - 20209118 November 2020
FINE GBS Jingzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 14,530 - 2020F11H  November 2020
BB ES Chuzhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 8,683 - 2020F118  November 2020
AERRENES Xining Chengdong Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 17,415 - 2020118 November 2020
EBENES Xiangyang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 12,721 - 2020F11A  November 2020
HRAREERES Nanjing Yuhua Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 17,282 - 20205118 November 2020
EGREENES Guiyang Qingzhen Wuyue Plaza 99.10% 7,562 - 20209118 November 2020
BETVES Zunyi Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 6,582 - 20209128 December 2020
BMERES Suizhou Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 7,054 - 2020128 December 2020
HRRABERES Yancheng Dongtai Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 8,086 - 2020128 December 2020
EZEKENES Huai'an Lianshui Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 7,913 - 2020128 December 2020
ILBENES Beihai Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 4,575 - 20209128 December 2020
BRAREENES Kunming Anning Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 4,828 - 20209128 December 2020
BMEEEENES Wenzhou Longwan Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 11,908 - 2020128 December 2020
ElE RS Deyang Wuyue Plaza 99.61% 2,520 - 20209128 December 2020
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BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December

HEREBRERA Rental and management fee income YR 2020% 2019 e Opening date
Occupancy
rate 2020 2019
ARBTRE ARETEX
RMB'000 RMB' 000
BMARENRES Chuzhou Tianchang Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 4,507 - 2020128 December 2020
S ES Tongling Wuyue Plaza 100.00% 4,588 - 2020128 December 2020
EPEWEREEES  Changsha Wangcheng Wuyue
Lifestyle Plaza 94.58% 1.876 - 202012 December 2020
MR ERAERE Seazen Holdings Tower B
(BT#E) (office building) 96.48% 47,931 39,524 2016%F 1A January 2016
At Total 5,356,897 4,108,210
B EE Notes:
1. HZE2020F 128310 AEEHENCHESHE 1. As at 31 December 2020, the Group owned 93 Wuyue Plazas in operation and 2
BAIIE  EEBRENCHESTUESRA2E It Wuyue Plazas in operation providing entrusted management services. In addition, the
Sh o REBASEEEHHIER 2020 F FEHMF Group had 5 entrusted management projects that were newly contracted projects at
HIEE - RIEAA2020F 2 F 54 ¢ the end of 2020 and have not been included in the 2020 annual results;
2. MEEETIRESN2020FE10 ARG AE & 2. The partnership in connection with Harbin Wuyue Plaza has been terminated since
October 2020; and
3. HHRA2020F12 A3 BHEHEEYELHBR - 3. The occupancy rate represents the occupancy of the commercial property on 31
December 2020.
HZE2020F12 8310 » "NEBAS6EAEET As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 56 investment properties

HIREE o

Br Eitis EM SN - REER2020F12H31H
WEFEEMEMERNRE -

under development.

The Group did not hold any other significant investments except for the
aforementioned investment properties as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEEMEXEBEREREWEHEE - HkE
PIEER - e A RNFRIREHE R RE
B - REEREXEHEE20194F
12A31BIEFEHARYS6,851.2H &N
68.2% ZEHZE2020F 12 A31BEFEHAR
¥146,118. 7687 °

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue comprises income from sale of properties and, to
a lesser extent, property management, rental and other related services
earned during the year. The Group’s revenue increased by 68.2%, to
approximately RMB146,118.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from approximately RMB86,851.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

BZ128318LEE
For the year ended 31 December

20205 20194
2020 2019
ARKBBER ARBBHET
RMB million RMB million
ES TN Revenue from sale of properties 137,577.9 80,322.3
PEMEESEREWA  Revenue from commercial property management services 2,373.1 1,640.1
HelA Rental income 2,935.3 2,296.8
H W A Other income 3,232.4 2,592.0
146,118.7 86,851.2

SHER R KA Cost of Sales and Services

HEMRBRKAFEREAEEEWEREE
B HENMYEEEAREGESPEEES
HIRC AN o SHE RARFEA A B IEEEMA « L
FRAERAE - e RMImME - EXMEFBERE
MEBKAR c AEENHEERRBEKAHEZR
201912 A31HIEFEHARK60,505.88

BT NN89.3% ZE = 2020F 12 A31 81L&
BHARE114,530588 T °

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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Cost of sales and services consists primarily of the costs the Group
incurred directly in relation to property development activities, leasing
and property management and other businesses. Cost of sales and
services includes construction costs, land use right costs, tax and
surcharges, capitalized interest and other business costs. The Group’s
cost of sales and services increased by 89.3% to approximately
RMB114,530.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB60,505.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR TRFREAEAREHEERLNER

The following table sets forth information relating to the Group’s cost
of sales for the years indicated:

Table 6: Details of the Group’s cost of sales and services

®6: NEEHERRERAAMA

20194

BEZ12A31ALFE 7 b 4 B

Year-on-

Details of the Group’s cost

For the year ended year change

TEBHERRBKRABAM  of sales and services 31 December compared to
20204 20194 2019
2020 2019
ARBT T ARETT %
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 %
T AR Land use right costs 37,195,956 19,875,924 87
RERX Construction costs 61,489,124 26,955,905 128
ERFE Capitalized interest 9,240,143 8,714,263 6
e kWmne Tax and surcharges 1,198,376 357,855 235
LS RERIEE Provision for impairment of properties
LE R I=EE L] held or under development for sale 1,597,021 939,796 70
B Other expenses 3,809,835 3,662,008 4
a5t Total 114,530,455 60,505,751 89
ERfTEEMELARE (FHK) Total GFA delivered (sq.m.) 15,386,229 6,878,657 124
BEEFFHKRFHRAR Average cost per sg.m. sold
(AR =) (RMB) et 7,014 8,075 -13
BEEFTHRTEHEE Average selling price per sq.m. sold
(AR¥) (RMB) 8,942 11,677 -23
FHRAMEFHEERN Average cost as percentage of
AL average selling price 78.44% 69.15% 13

M CESF RO TFERAEAREMEHENFHRA
(TREASENEERMEEILLE)  UFRNLHE
PR~ BERARAASMEH S BMRAFANE R
RIREEEST -

Note: Average cost per sq.m. sold refers to the average cost of the Group’'s property sales
(excluding the Group's leasing and property management operations) and is derived by
dividing the sum of land use right costs, construction costs and capitalized interest for
the year by the total GFA delivered in that year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ER

NEENEMBHEZ2019F12A31BIEFEEY
AR¥26,345.4B8TIEN19.9% ZH E2020
F12A31MBIEFENARKE3,883BET
EREOIEINEZRYEHEWAMNILGM - K
EEEHZE2020F12 A31 B ILFEHREEFRY
21.6% °

REWMHXLAEERE

AEERBWHEETRHEYE  URDES
WA REERNEE  flnTEmes - BYE
SREBN - AREENERENESFHEILY
EEEMETTE  AEBIREMENFESK
RWEBIREHFBRTERAEAABAEKS
HEIE - HE2020F 12 A3 B ILEEREYME
HERAMBSEHARE2,3062887T - HEY
ERBATERSTEREHEEEAEELA
FTER -

H Al 14y 355 7 4R

HipamFEOARK20448E8T - T2RE
EETFRAEEAWE -
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Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 19.9% to approximately
RMB31,588.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB26,345.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from sale of properties. The Group recorded a gross
profit margin of approximately 21.6% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain of its commercial properties such
as retail shops, shopping malls and carparks for rental income or capital
appreciation. The Group's investment properties are appraised annually
by an independent property valuer. Any appreciation or depreciation in
the Group's investment property value is recognized as fair value gains
or losses in the Group’s consolidated statements of income. Valuation
gains on investment properties was approximately RMB2,306.2 million
before tax for the year ended 31 December 2020. The fair value gain
recorded for investment properties was primarily attributable to the
increase in capital value on the whole.

Other Gains - Net

Net other gains amounted to approximately RMB294.4 million, mainly
derived from the gain arising from disposal of certain subsidiaries.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 25.7% to approximately
RMB5,560.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB4,422.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in selling
and marketing expenses incurred as the Group launched more projects
for pre-sale in 2020.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 9.9% to approximately
RMB4,728.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately RMB4,301.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase in administrative expenses was primarily attributable
to an increase in staff costs resulting from an increase in number of
employees of the Group in 2020.

Finance Costs — Net

The Group’s finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on
bank loans, senior notes and corporate bonds less capitalized interest,
and foreign exchange gains and losses. Interest on borrowings relating
to project development is capitalized to the extent that it is directly
attributable to a particular project and used to finance the development
of that project. Net finance costs of the Group decreased by 56.7%
to approximately RMB580.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from approximately RMB1,339.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The decrease in net finance costs was mainly
attributable to the increase in foreign exchange gains in 2020.

Income Tax Expense

The Group's income tax expenses include provisions made for land
appreciation tax, PRC corporate income tax and deferred income
tax during the year. Income tax expenses increased by 13.8% to
approximately RMB10,267.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from RMB9,019.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The increase in income tax expenses was primarily due to the increase
in the Group's profit in 2020.

Profit for the Year

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
30.3% to approximately RMB10,178.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB7,812.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Core earnings attributable to equity holders of the Company increased
by 25.9% to approximately RMB8,564.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately RMB6,802.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

The Group operates in a capital-intensive industry and has primarily
financed and expects to continue to finance its working capital, capital
expenditure and other capital requirements through borrowings from
financial institutions, proceeds from the pre-sales and sales of properties
and income generated from our property management services and
investment properties.

Cash position

The Group's cash at bank and on hand is as follows:

M12A31H
As at 31 December
20205 20194
2020 2019
ARBEHER ARBBET
RMB million RMB million
RITRFHERE Cash at bank and on hand
(BRIZRHIRE) (including restricted cash) 63,368.2 65,574.0
REMRSZEY Cash and cash equivalents 58,965.9 59,691.7
HBMEZ T E Other fund raising activities
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On 21 January 2020, the Company has completed a placing of
311,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company under general
mandate (the “Placing”) granted by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at the annual general mandate on 8 May 2019
to not less than six placees that are professional, institutional or other
investors who are independent third parties at the placing price of
HKD8.78 per share. The aggregate nominal value of the placing shares
is HKD311,000.

The reason for the Placing is to supplement the Group’s long term
funding of its expansion and growth plan. The Placing represents an
good opportunity for the Company to strengthen its capital base and
financial position to better equip itself for the long term business
development of the Group without any interest burden, within a
relatively shorter time frame and at lower costs when compared with
other means of fund raising.

The net placing price (after deducting related costs and expenses to
be borne by the Company) is approximately HKD8.72 per share while
the aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares is HKD311,000. The
market price of the shares was HKD9.05 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
13 January 2020, being the day on which the terms of the issue were
fixed.
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As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds of approximately
HKD2,711 million are used in accordance with the disclosure made in

FRAFBEET the said announcement, details of usage are as follows:
BERCHAMEGRERE HABARSENRE
FRSFIEFEEAE (B ) FEREFERERR (Br)RBAAH RERT AR

Total net proceeds (in HKD)

Intended use of net
proceeds

Actual net proceeds
used (in HKD) and
the month of usage

Remaining balance of
unused net proceeds

2,71 BEETT

HKD2,711 million

VERUIE AL PP BT & -
EMATIAN i

As the purchase
consideration for land
located in Jiangsu,

2,71MBEBETT
202043 A

HKD2,711 million
March 2020

Nil

Yunnan and Jiangxi, China
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Issuance and Redemption of Senior Notes during the Year

In June 2020, the Company issued the 6.45% senior notes due 2022
with a principal amount of USD400 million (the “2022 Notes”). In
August 2020, the Company issued the 6.0% senior notes due 2024
with a principal amount of USD250 million (the “2024 Notes”). The
2022 Notes and 2024 Notes are listed and traded on the Singapore
Stock Exchange. Details of the issuance of the 2022 Notes and the 2024
Notes are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 4 June
2020, 5 June 2020, 5 August 2020 and 6 August 2020. The proceeds
have been fully used to repay certain of its offshore indebtedness.

On 16 February 2020, the Company has fully redeemed the 5.0%
senior notes at maturity of the principal amount of USD350 million
together with all accrued interests thereon. On 14 September 2020, the
Company has fully redeemed the 6.5% senior notes at maturity of the
principal amount of USD300 million together with all accrued interests
thereon. Details of the redemptions are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 16 February 2020 and 14 September 2020.
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Borrowings and charges on the Group’s assets

The Group’s outstanding current and non-current borrowings amounted
to RMB104,643.6 million. The maturity groupings of the borrowings are
as follows:

R12A31H

As at 31 December
2020%F 20194
BRFR Borrowing terms 2020 2019
AR¥EER AREBEET
RMB million RMB million
1F AR Within 1 year 31,226.5 40,849.0
1A EBERBBE2F Over 1 year but within 2 years 36,867.0 31,100.3
2F M HERIBBSF Over 2 years but within 5 years 33,236.4 15,480.2
S5 E Over 5 years 3,313.7 417.4
104,643.6 87,846.9
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans were approximately
RMB43,267.7 million. Bank loans include unsecured loans and
guaranteed borrowings. Guaranteed borrowings were secured by one
or a combination of the following methods: land use rights, properties
under development, investment properties, property, plant and
equipments, shares of the Company'’s subsidiaries, financial assets, bank
deposits and/or guarantees by the Company’s subsidiaries. The Group's
bank borrowings are from major commercial banks, all of which are
independent third parties.

The proportion of the Group’s long-term borrowings in the total
borrowings reached 70.2% as at 31 December 2020, ensuring the
healthy and stable cash flow of the Group in the future. The Directors
believed that the constant optimization of the Group's debt level
and financial structure had laid a solid foundation for the Group to
withstand market volatility and diminish financial risks.

The weighted average interest rate for the Group’s bank borrowings,
senior notes and corporate bonds, etc. as at 31 December 2020 was
6.69%.
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Net debt-to-equity ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio was
50.7% (as at 31 December 2019: 38.5%). Net debt-to-equity ratio is
calculated by dividing net debt at the end of the period by total equity
and multiplying by 100%. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
less cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash.

Contingent Liabilities

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, banks require the Group to
guarantee its purchasers’ mortgage loans. Guarantees for mortgages
on pre-sold residential properties are generally discharged at: (i) the
obtainment by the purchase of the real estate ownership certificate
and the completion of registration of mortgage at the mortgagee
bank; or (ii) the satisfaction of mortgage loans by the purchasers
of the properties (whichever is earlier). If a purchaser defaults on a
mortgage loan, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding
mortgage principal together with accrued interest and penalties owed
by the defaulting purchasers to the banks, and the Group is entitled to
take over the legal title and possession of the related properties. The
Group's guarantee period typically starts from the date of grant of the
mortgage.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s contingent liabilities in respect
of the guarantees given to the financial institutions for mortgage loan
facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’'s properties amounted
to approximately RMB80,015.1 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB67,426.5 million). In light of relatively low historical
default rates of such mortgage loans facilities, the Directors consider
that the likelihood of default of payments by the purchasers is minimal
and therefore the financial guarantee measured at fair value is
immaterial.

As at 31 December 2020, there are certain corporate guarantees
provided by the Company’s subsidiaries for each other in respect of
borrowings. The Directors consider that the Company’s subsidiaries are
sufficiently and financially resourced to settle their obligations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantee with
the amount of RMB13,605.2 million (as at 31 December 2019:
RMB19,299.6 million) to its joint ventures and associates.

Save as those disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no other
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

As at 31 December 2020, the cash balances held by the Group are as
follows:

®W12H31A

As at 31 December
2020%F 20194
b Cash balances 2020 2019
BB EX-Wv
million million
AAREEE Denominated in RMB 61,465.2 62,263.2
A TTEHE Denominated in HKD 80.2 15.2
AZETTEHE Denominated in USD 1,822.8 3,295.6
63,368.2 65,574.0

AEEETF2HLLRPDHETBEET  MA
MORXBHAARBEE - ARAEEE TR
SREBRETIABT BT —RETRERMN
Ko Bt B FRUA SR TT 3808 7T 45 B AN S B T R 52
TRBTTE AR MELHIMNERR -

ERBTEERE  ~EEEHARELET
[EXRB I HINERR - SEFTEVERIN
EEENRBEBRE - LARKIZEEEHEERA SN
PEE g o

SN - ARBEAR B EBRNE - MAKA
R ¥ R NE 78 5 o B 28 i #9 51 BE B )
FTE RARBIFR

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the exposure of USD and
HKD against RMB as a result of certain cash balances and the settlement
of certain general and administrative expenses and other loans in USD
or HKD.

As a result of the issuance of these senior notes, the Group became
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the exposure of RMB
against USD. Each of the Directors has closely monitored the scale
of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies to reduce the foreign
exchange risks to the largest extent.

In addition, RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies and
the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERRBRHEESH

HZE2020F 12 A3V BIEFE - AEEWELM
EAKERHET AR BERRHNEE -

BEAREHEFREEN KRS

EEMR RAFRAY  BRASEEYER
EOAEERKI  BALESRBENERR

BERFMBOR

R2020F 12 A310  AEBEFRELESER
32,127% 2B EE - EF29,405%EENER
HEREREEEREBR2, 728 EHME
f% °

AEEFRBEIEARR  TELBFMRITH
BEHEKTET2RETI (BFES) T A
G WEREANEZMEH#ETREE - BT
HEHNEEBEELRTS  BeEAL UKD
REBORYH - AEERITUBFERZRRR
#o AUFHERENRER - WIRHETREIZ
MEH & RTR - REBREZE2020F12 A
3B IEFEERARG BEEORMEZ AA
R#¥196. 98B T (B ZE2019F12A31HLEF
£ ARE41.08ET) °

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or assets.

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report, there
are no current plans to acquire any material investment or capital assets
other than in the Group’s ordinary business of property development.

Employees and Compensation Policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 32,127 full-time employees
in the PRC and Hong Kong, 29,405 of which worked in the property
development operations and management of commercial complexes and

2,722 were engaged in other operations.

The Group determines the remuneration packages of all employees
(including the Directors) based on their performance, work experience
and the prevailing market wage level, and provides promotional
opportunities for them with reference to their individual strengths
and potentials. The remuneration package of the employees’ consists
of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based payments. The Group
has established a performance appraisal system so as to evaluate the
performance of its employees on an annual basis and use the evaluation
results to determine their salary increment or promotion accordingly.
The Group recognized an expense in relation to share-based payments
of RMB196.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: RMB41.0 million).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lv Xiaoping (&) ¥), aged 59, was appointed as our executive Director and
chief executive officer in January 2016. Mr. Lv was appointed as our non-
executive Director for a period from 6 November 2012 to 7 January 2016. Mr.
Lv joined the Group in 2001. Mr. Lv served as the vice president of Seazen
Holdings Co., Ltd.* Gz SEERDERAF]) (“Seazen Holdings")
between September 2001 and August 2004, the general manager of Seazen
Holdings between 30 March 2015 and 15 December 2015 and has served as
a director of Seazen Holdings since March 2015. From August 2004 to January
2013, Mr. Lv had been a director and the president of Jiangsu Seazen Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Seazen”) (stock code: 900950), principally responsible for the
overall management of the Group's residential property development business
carried out by Jiangsu Seazen. Since February 2013, Mr. Lv has been the vice
chairman of Jiangsu Seazen. Since April 2018, Mr. Lv has served as a non-
executive director of S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1755).
Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in 1983. Mr. Lv later graduated from China European
International Business School with an MBA degree in 2007. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lv worked in Changchai Company Limited, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000570) between 1987 and 2001
and served as the secretary to the board of directors and head of investment
of the company, where he was responsible for business development and
investment strategies.
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Lu Zhongming (B £ 88), aged 49, was appointed as our executive Director
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) in January 2016. He is the chief financial
officer of the Company, overseeing the financial management and risk
management functions of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in 2001
after Jiangsu Seazen acquired its listing status on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and became the finance general manager of Jiangsu Seazen in
2002. Mr. Lu has been a director of Jiangsu Seazen and a vice president
of Future Land Wanbo Property Co., Ltd. since 2010. He served as the
vice president of Seazen Holdings between 2011 and December 2014.
He became a vice president of the Company in January 2015. He served
as a supervisor of Seazen Holdings in December 2015, and served as the
chairman of supervisory committee in April 2018. Since April 2018, Mr. Lu
has served as a non-executive director of S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
(stock code: 1755). Mr. Lu completed his accounting study from Nanjing
Institute of Finance & Economics (FAR I 4EEFt) in 1999, and obtained a
degree of master of business administration from Tongji University (&)X
£) in 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu served as the deputy head
of finance and audit department of Jiangsu Wuling (acquired by Seazen
Holdings in our B-Share restructuring in 2001) between 1998 and 2001.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Xiaosong (EM#2), aged 33, was appointed as our non-executive
Director in October 2013 and appointed as our chairman in July 2019. Mr.
Wang joined Jiangsu Seazen in 2009 as civil engineer and subsequently as
project manager. Between November 2011 and January 2013, Mr. Wang
became the vice president and general manager of the marketing department
of Jiangsu Seazen where he was responsible for and gained valuable
experience in sales and market research. Mr. Wang has served as a director of
Jiangsu Seazen since April 2013. In February 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed
as the president of Jiangsu Seazen, and has been responsible for its general
management; and from 14 December 2015 to 26 October 2016, he served as
the general manager of Seazen Holdings. In addition, since March 2015, Mr.
Wang has been a director of Seazen Holdings, and has been appointed as the
chairman of Seazen Holdings in July 2019. He was appointed as the President
of Seazen Holdings from 24 August 2018 to January 2021. Since July 2019,
Mr. Wang acted as a non-executive director of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
Limited (stock code: 1755). Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University (F3
FAE) with a bachelor's degree in Environmental Sciences in 2009.

Qu Dejun (BHfE#E), aged 56, was appointed as our executive Director
and vice-Chairman in July 2019 and was redesignated to non-executive
Director in March 2020. In addition, Mr. Qu was appointed as a Director
of Seazen Holdings in November 2019, and was appointed as the co-
president of Seazen Holdings in March 2020. He has more than 15
years' experience in real estate development and corporate finance. Mr.
Qu was also an executive director from December 2012 to November
2015 and a non-executive director from November 2015 to September
2016 of Dalian Wanda Commercial Property Company Limited (stock
code: 3699, delisted in September 2016). He was a non-executive
director of Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (stock code:
169) from July 2013 to November 2017. He was the chairman of the
board of Wanda Kids Palace Group from December 2018 to May 2019
in charge of the strategic planning, operation and management of the
company. He was the president of Wanda Internet Financial Services
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from October 2016 to December 2018 in charge of
the company’s innovative development, operation and management. He
was the president of Wanda Finance Group Co., Ltd. from September
2015 to October 2016 in charge of the operation and management
of Wanda Group's financial and Internet technology business. Mr. Qu
also served as a chief officer of Dalian Bureau of Foreign Trade and
Economy. Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor's degree in economics from
the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in July 1986, and a
master’'s degree in financial management from the Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics in November 1999.
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Zhang Shengman (E2£), aged 63, was appointed as our non-
executive Director in March 2018. He has over 30 years of experience in
corporate and financial matters. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in August
2016 and served as a Director of Seazen Holdings, a subsidiary of the
Company with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from August 2016 to March 2018. Since December 2006, Mr. Zhang
has been an independent non-executive director of Fosun International
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and the issued shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 656). From May 1981 to October 1992, Mr. Zhang served various
positions in the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, including deputy
director. From November 1992 to October 2005, Mr. Zhang took up
various roles in the World Bank, namely executive director for China,
vice president and secretary and senior vice president, responsible for
the World Bank’s corporate and support functions. Mr. Zhang was
then promoted as managing director of the World Bank and chairman
of the World Bank's operations committee, sanctions committee and
corporate committee on fraud and corruption policy from January 2001
to December 2006. Subsequently, Mr. Zhang joined Citigroup (listed on
the New York Stock Exchange with stock code: C) in February 2006 as
the chairman of the Public Sector. From February 2006 to May 2016,
Mr. Zhang was the vice chairman of Global Banking and chief operating
officer, president and chairman of Citigroup’s Asia Pacific Region.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in English literature from
Fudan University in January 1984 and a master’s degree in public
administration from University of the District of Columbia in December
1985. Mr. Zhang completed the Harvard Advanced Management
Program from Harvard University in June 1997.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chen Huakang (PRZ EZ), aged 68, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), and a member of the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) in November 2012. Mr. Chen
joined the Group in November 2012. He was awarded a certificate in
Modern Economic Management Professional Studies GRAAASEE IR H 2
2% by Beijing Economic Management College (It 48 EE 12 KX 22
Ft) in 1988. Mr. Chen has been a certified public accountant in China
since 1998 and a registered expert consultant in Jiangsu Province (T &k
BB ESR) since 2004. He has over 40 years of experience in the
field of accounting. Mr. Chen is and has been serving as the principal
accountant and managing partner of Jiangsu Wujin Certified Public
Accountants (TR & Z5TRIS=H5FT), a registered PRC accounting firm
in Jiangsu province, since 1995. He also served as managing partner
of Wujin Assets Valuation Association (Ri#E&ZETAEEEFAT) between
1995 and 2000, and is and has been the president of Changzhou lJieling
Investment Management Consultant Limited (B/MNEZZRREEER
AR A]) since 2004. Mr. Chen at present is managing partner of
Changzhou Huifeng Accounting Office (FMIEZEFHEISEEFT). Mr
Chen served as independent director of Jiangsu Seazen between May
2002 and May 2010 and the independent director of Jiangsu Shunfeng
Photovoltaic Co., Ltd. (L#IEE BRI AR A F]) between 2009 and
May 2012.

Zhong Wei (##1&), aged 52, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee in December 2014. Mr. Zhong
has been a professor at the Department of Economics and Business
Administration, Beijing Normal University since July 2003. Mr. Zhong worked
as a lecturer at the Business School of Jiangnan University (JTEJAE2r523085%)
from July 1994 to July 1997. Mr. Zhong also served as an assistant engineer
at Wuxi Alarm Devices Factory (#E#5REZLEM) from July 1990 to July
1992. Mr. Zhong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of China Resources Land Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109) in April 2017. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of China Jinmao Holdings Group Limited,
a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 817),
in August 2020 and an independent non-executive director of Yunnan Water
Investment Co., Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6839), in November 2020. Mr. Zhong graduated from
Nanjing University (F3AE2) in 1990 majoring in applied physics and from
Southeast University (BREFAZ) in 1994 majoring in industrial economics
management. Mr. Zhong received his doctorate’s degree in 1999 from Beijing
Normal University (It AM#EAE) majoring in international economics.
Between September 2001 and July 2004, Mr. Zhong engaged in postdoctoral
research in management science at Tongji University ([ AE2).
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Zhu Zengjin (%k3E#), aged 57, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
in November 2012. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in November 2012. He
graduated from Nanjing University (FAZAX5%) with a bachelor’s degree in
law in 1985 and from Beijing University (1t A K&%) with an EMBA degree
in 2005. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu has successively served
as the head of the business department, the deputy head and partner
of Jiangsu C&T Partners Law Firm (T&rtt42 E{Z BN ESFT) from July
1985 to the present. Mr. Zhu was also a listing committee member of
the GEM Board of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (FEI#&
ESAIXIREEZEZZE) between August 2009 and August 2011. Mr.
Zhu has served as an independent Director of JTSI Group Co., Ltd. (B
RIEBEBRMHBER AT (stock code: 300284) since April 2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The table below shows certain information in respect of senior
management of the Group:

HE Fie B
Name Age Position
WO 52 IR B

Liang Zhicheng®
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President, Seazen Holdings

(1) Employed at Seazen Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company

Liang Zhicheng (&), aged 52, has been the deputy general
manager and chief financial officer, vice president, director and co-
president, director and president of Seazen Holdings since September
2014. Mr. Liang served as an executive Director and the president
of the Company from November 2014 to January 2016. Between
February 2003 and August 2014, Mr. Liang worked at Jiangsu Seazen
and its subsidiaries serving as deputy manager in the administration
and management department of Jiangsu Seazen, general manager of
Suzhou Seazen Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd., (BRMNFHE=ZEHES
fRAT]) chairman and general manager of Jiangsu Seazen Property
Management Co., Ltd., (L& ERBERQF) general manager
of Wuxi Seazen Wanjia Property Co., Ltd., (BB ERZEEGR A F)
general manager of Shanghai Seazen Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/&
¥ EmEEAMR AR and assistant president and vice president of
Jiangsu Seazen, where he was responsible for administrative affairs and
operations management respectively and had accumulated extensive
experience in overall management. Jiangsu Seazen is a subsidiary of
the Company principally engaged in residential property development
and the B-Shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 900950). Suzhou Seazen Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Jiangsu Seazen Property Management Co., Ltd., Wuxi Seazen Wanjia
Property Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Seazen Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd.
are subsidiaries of Jiangsu Seazen. Between August 1988 and January
2003, Mr. Liang worked at Jiangsu Xinya Chemical Group (T#F¥fas
{E TEE), where he was responsible for the administration. Mr. Liang
graduated from Southwest University (FAESAZ) in 2014 majoring in
visual communication design and was qualified as an economist (4 7RM)
in 2003.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development, property
investment and commercial property management in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 by principal activities is set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS
Review for 2020

In 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic had a significant
impact on the socio-economic condition of the world. Despite
the complex and volatile economic environment domestically and
internationally, the PRC’'s GDP exceeded RMB100 trillion for the first
time, achieving the dual victory of fighting against the epidemic and
significant economic development.

As “Homes are for living in, not for speculation” was included into the
five-year plan for the first time, monetary policies became stabilised
and there were increasing real estate regulations. Policies such as the
“Three Red Lines (Z1§4L4%)", the New Regulations on Management of
Financing for Real Estate Development Enterprises (5 iz Fo 251> % @l
BEEH), the Management of Concentration of Real Estate Lending
amongst Commercial Banks (BX|RITFEHEEREFREEIE) and the
“Two Concentrations” of Land Transfer in 22 Hot-spot Cities (22ZA24
W EE " REF ") were successively implemented, reflecting the
central government’s determination in emphasizing that “Homes are for
living in, not for speculation” and stabilising the market, which will be
conducive to the long-term sustainable development of the real estate
industry.

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
20204 %k 2020 Annual Report

99



100

EFEWE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ClEE20204F - EHRIBHE - 728 EME
g% 2ERAIBRARSKE - BFEAZEE
DICEIEIR 0 2020F - AEEBBEE 1126
ML BAR400EEE ERANBEEHOAR
#2,510187C « AEBE 2 FHENIEE 1201 -
g R EA, 1398 F 5K - BBIR T AL
EREERER EREEMES - HE2020F
K- AEBEFE - FEMREBEGRAERS
156/ B FE100 @ £EEEL48E
FhKk 2EERHASMERBRAHARE
53187T R EE30% °

2020F R E£2021F %] » BB = KFEARILEE
T BELBEEE D BRF RSB MR
#=BB,/IEM - BB+ BE KBal 1BE ' B
REHASEKERBERVBERZE TR
ARRE - HE2020FK - AEEFAGFHEE
= ERS0.7% B - AEERHAGEROME
LhiBmEK RS BBELED2.036 &5
ERIBFEEL  AEEMBIARE NFEN
% o

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
2020 4%k 2020 Annual Report

Looking back to 2020, facing the impact of the epidemic, the industry
change and the market fluctuations, all of our staff made concerted
efforts and successfully realized various major performance targets. In
2020, the Group achieved contracted sales revenue of approximately
RMB251 billion by launching over 400 projects in 112 cities. Throughout
the year, the Group newly acquired 120 projects and additional land
reserves that cover an area of 41.39 million sg.m., demonstrating
the Group’s potential on intensive development strategy to enhance
its efficiencies. As of the end of 2020, the Group had a total of 156
commercial complexes in operation, under development and under
management, including 100 complexes in operation, with an area under
management of approximately 9.48 million sq.m. which realized rental
and management fee incomes of approximately RMB5.3 billion for the
year, representing a year-on-year increase of over 30%.

During the period from the end of 2020 to the beginning of 2021,
Standard & Poor’s, Fitch and Moody’s, the three major international
rating agencies, upgraded the Group’s international ratings to BB/
positive, BB+/stable and Bal/stable successively, demonstrating
their recognition of the Group’s sound operation and efforts for
strengthening financial soundness. As of the end of 2020, the Group's
net debt-to-equity ratio was 50.7%, of which the portion of the Group's
long-term borrowings exceeded 70% and our ratio of cash to short-
term borrowings reached 2.03 times, thus optimizing debt structure as
well as enhancing the Group’s resilience against financial risks.
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Prospects for 2021

While the current international environment remains relatively uncertain,
the PRC’s economy has a clear advantage in its recovery. The central
government has made the construction of “Dual-cycle” the main line of
macroeconomy during the 14th Five-Year Plan period, emphasizing the
deepening of supply-side structural reform, enlarging domestic demand
and stressing demand-side management. For the real estate industry,
the trend and direction of regulation in 2021 will remain adhering
to “Homes are for living in, not for speculation”, reducing financial
attributes and returning to physical attributes, while the real estate
industry will maintain the trend of stable and healthy development.

In 2021, the Company will further strengthen the shift from scale
oriented to quality oriented, stabilize growth and increase profit at
the same time, accelerate enhancement of the capacities of operation,
investment, productivity and marketing, and continue to provide
customers with good products and services, building a leading domestic
platform for quality residential development and the most valuable
platform for commercial real estates. Meanwhile, the Company will
pay full attention to environment, society and governance while
consolidating its strengths and improving its shortcomings.

For 2021, the Group's target for contracted sales is RMB260 billion,
with a plan to add 30 new Wuyue Plazas and a target for rental and
management fee income including tax at RMB8.5 billion. As the journey
begins again, we will gather new momentum and continue to focus
on quality development. Externally, we will respond to policies and
strengthen benchmarking, while emphasizing on optimizing internally
and incentivize the organization. On the road towards building
a centenarian company, Seazen will work together and advance
courageously.
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KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the year is
set out in the sections of “Financial Summary/Financial Review"” and
“Financial Highlights” of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review and outlook of the Group for the year is set out in
the sections of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 17 and note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The PRC’'s economy has been transitioning from a centrally planned
economy to a more market oriented economy. For more than four
decades, the PRC government has implemented economic reform
measures to utilize market forces in the development of the PRC's
economy. The Group cannot predict whether changes in the PRC's
economic, political and social conditions and in its laws, regulations
and policies will have any adverse effect on the Group’s current or
future business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition,
many of the economic reforms carried out by the PRC government
are unprecedented or experimental and are expected to be refined
and improved over time. This refining and adjustment process may
not necessarily have a positive effect on the Group’s operations and
business development.
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The PRC property market is volatile and may experience undersupply or
oversupply of property units and significant property price fluctuations.
The Group’s business depends and will continue to depend on the
growth of the economy in the PRC. A significant downturn in the
PRC's economy could adversely affect the demand for commercial and
residential properties. The PRC central and local governments frequently
adjust monetary, fiscal or other economic policies to prevent and curtail
the overheating of the economy, which may affect the PRC property
market. Such policies may lead to changes in market conditions,
including price instability and an imbalance of supply and demand in
respect of commercial and residential properties, which may materially
and adversely affect the Group’s business and financial condition.

The property market in the Yangtze River Delta and major cities along
the Shanghai-Nanjing Economic Corridor has been highly competitive
in recent years. Property developers from the PRC and overseas have
entered the property development markets in the Yangtze River Delta
and major cities along the Shanghai-Nanjing Economic Corridor where
the Group has operations or where the Group may expand into. Many
of the Group’s competitors, including overseas listed foreign developers
and top-tier domestic developers, may have more financial or other
resources than the Group and may be more sophisticated than the
Group in terms of engineering and technical skills. Competition among
property developers may cause an increase in land costs and raw
material costs, shortages in quality construction contractors, surplus
in property supply leading to decline of property price, further delays
in issuance of governmental approvals, and higher costs to attract or
retain talented employees. Moreover, property markets across the PRC
are influenced by other various factors, including changes in economic
conditions, banking practices and consumer sentiment.

The business of the Group is subject to the overall economic and social
conditions in the PRC. Natural disasters, epidemics and other acts of
God which are beyond the Company’s control may adversely affect the
economy, infrastructure and livelihood of the people in the PRC. An
outbreak of epidemics in the PRC, such as the avian flu, the human
swine flu or another outbreak of COVID-19, especially in the cities
where the Group has operations, may result in material disruptions
to the Group's property development projects and the Group's sales
and marketing efforts, which in turn may adversely affect the Group's
financial condition and results of operations.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The PRC property market is heavily regulated and subject to frequent
introduction of new regulations, including further measures taken by
the PRC government to slow down the growth of the property sector,
which may adversely affect property developers. The PRC government
exerts considerable direct and indirect influence on the growth and
development of the PRC property market through industry policies and
other economic measures such as setting interest rates, controlling
the supply of credit by changing bank reserve ratios and implementing
lending restrictions, increasing tax and duties on property transfers and
imposing foreign investment and currency exchange restrictions. From
2004 to 2020, the PRC government introduced a series of regulations
and policies designed to control the growth of the property market,
including, among others:

(i) strictly enforcing the idle land related laws and regulations;

(ii) restricting the grant or extension of revolving credit facilities to
property developers that hold a large amount of idle land and
vacant commodity properties;

(iii) prohibiting commercial banks from lending funds to real estate

developers with an internal capital ratio of less than a certain

prescribed percentage; and

(iv) restricting PRC commercial banks from granting loans to property

developers for the purpose of paying land grant premiums.

In particular, the PRC government also introduced the following policies,
among others, to specifically control the growth of the residential
property market by:

(i) limiting the maximum amount of monthly mortgage and the
maximum amount of total monthly debt service payments of an
individual borrower;

(i) imposing tax levy on the sales proceeds for second-hand
transfers subject to the length of holding period and type of
properties;

(iii) increasing the minimum amount of down payment of the

purchase price of family residential property;
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(iv) tightening the availability of individual housing loans in the
property market for individuals and their family members with

more than one residential property; and

(v) limiting the availability of individual housing provident fund
loans for the purchase of second (or more) residential properties
by labourers and their family members.

These measures resulted in downward pricing pressures on the
PRC property market. The PRC government may implement further
tightening measures to restrain the PRC property market at the national,
provincial, municipal and/or local level, which may lead to the declining
trends in transaction volume and selling prices of properties in the PRC.
As a result, the Group's financial condition and results of operations
may be affected.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Property developers in the PRC are subject to a number of
environmental laws and regulations including the Environment
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (F%E A RHLMEER
IR X)), the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution Law of the
People’s Republic of China (HZE A RAMBIRERES 20805)),
the Environmental Impact Assessment Law (BRI EFFEL)), and
Administrative Regulations on Environmental Protection in Relation
to Construction Projects ((FERIE B RIFREEIEEMN)). The Group
is subject to these laws and regulations concerning the protection of
health and environment. The local authorities may request a developer
to submit the environmental impact documents, issue orders to
suspend the construction and impose a penalty for a project where
environmental impact assessment documents have not been approved
before commencement of construction. The Group is in compliance in
all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations
in the PRC.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained good relationships with its customers and
suppliers. The major suppliers of the Group are construction material
suppliers and construction contractors, and the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 8.1% of the total purchases for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.2% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Group engages third-party contractors to carry out various services
for most of its property development projects, including design, pile
setting, foundation building, construction, equipment installation,
electromechanical and pipeline engineering, elevator installation and
landscaping. The Group generally selects third-party contractors through
a tender process and endeavors to engage companies with good
reputation and track record, high performance, reliability and adequate
financial resources.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.41
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMBO0.31 per
share) to the Shareholders.

The proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 30 July 2021
after approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM").

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong
Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be
converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong
dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the business
days during the period from 20 May 2021 to 24 May 2021.

It is the Group's dividend policy that the Group's dividend payout ratio
is linked to its core net profit.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group'’s results, assets
and liabilities for the last five financial years are set out on page 5 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 8.1% (2019: 13.4%) of the Group's
total purchases and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases in the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 0.2% (2019: 0.2%) of the Group's
revenue and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue in the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out on pages F-19 to
F-20 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law"”), amounted to approximately
RMB2,608.5 million (as at 31 December 2019: RMB1,985.5 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the section of “Share
Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lv Xiaoping

Mr. Lu Zhongming

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Qu Dejun (Note )
Mr. Zhang Shengman

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Huakang
Mr. Zhu Zengjin

Mr. Zhong Wei
Note:
1. Mr. Qu Dejun has been appointed as an executive Director and the vice-chairman

of the Board with effect from 8 July 2019 and was redesignated as a non-executive
Director on 27 March 2020.

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Xiaosong, Mr. Zhang Shengman and Mr. Zhong
Wei shall retire from office as a Director and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming
AGM are set out in the circular to the Shareholders dated 23 April
2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 92 to 98 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Mr. Lv Xiaoping and Mr. Lu Zhongming have entered into appointment
letters respectively with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 7 January 2019, and may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the appointment letter.

Mr. Qu Dejun has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 27 March 2020 (in relation
to his position as an non-executive Director) and may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract. Mr. Wang Xiaosong
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 18 October 2018, and may be terminated
in accordance with the terms of the appointment letter. Mr. Zhang
Shengman has entered into a service contract with the Company on
21 March 2021 for a term of three years and may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract.

Mr. Chen Huakang and Mr. Zhu Zengjin have signed letters of
appointment respectively with the Company on 6 November 2020 for a
term of two years commencing from 6 November 2020. Mr. Zhong Wei
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of two years commencing from 3 December 2020.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of the Directors,
there was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
subsisting during or at the end of the financial year with any member of
the Group, the Company’s fellow subsidiaries or its parent company as
the contracting party, in which a Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong) where the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)
(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Group has adopted a pre-IPO share award scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Award Scheme”), a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”), a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and
a subsidiary share incentive scheme (the “Subsidiary Share Incentive
Scheme”) as incentive to eligible employees, details of the schemes
"Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”,

“Share Award Scheme”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Subsidiary Share

are set out in the sections headed

Incentive Scheme"” below, respectively.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

CHANGES TO
DIRECTORS

On 27 March 2020, Mr. Qu Dejun was redesignated as the non-
executive Director. Save as disclosed above, during the year ended
31 December 2020, there were no changes to information which are
required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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(i) RART RO WES (i) Interest in Shares of the Company
RBRAELTETAT
BEZRHHEE HIRFER
EEpE ERMtE FREBER2HED RHEE BHBEDL
Number of
Shares or
underlying
Number of Shares held Approximate
ordinary shares under equity percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest held™ derivatives  shareholding
B/ F EmEEA 12,000,000 (L) 1,500,000 (L) 0.22%
Lv Xiaoping Beneficial owner
ErXamA (RiFEERIN) 2,500,000 (L)® - 0.04%
Beneficiary of a trust
(other than discretionary interests)
FBER EHERA 6,000,000 (L) - 0.10%
Wang Xiaosong Beneficial owner
o EHEBA 5,000,000 (L) 1,200,000 (L)® 0.10%
Lu Zhongming Beneficial owner
SRER A (BIEEaRIN) 2,000,000 (L)® - 0.03%
Beneficiary of a trust
(other than discretionary interests)
ER= BEmfEiB A - 1,200,000 (L)@ 0.02%
Zhang Shengman Beneficial owner
ERIZHEA (BEEREIN) 2,000,000 (L)® - 0.03%

Beneficiary of a trust
(other than discretionary interests)

MEE
(1) FEILRTRBROZHFE

(2) BERBRESS  EF2/NTE4E  BER
AEERERSRER2019F11A18S
B4 F1,500,0008% - 1,200,0000% &
1,200,00017 AR - BRAE— L HIEFS
BITER [ REAR ST &I -

(3) BIER G RETE - EFERNTEEE -
BERBEERERELEN2020F9 A1
H %% F2,500,0004% + 2,000,000 8% &
2,000,000 f% Z2EIAR 5 ©

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report

The letter “L" denotes the long position in Shares.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, Mr. Lu Zhongming and Mr. Zhang Shengman, Directors,
were granted 1,500,000, 1,200,000 and 1,200,000 share options
respectively on 1 November 2019 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
Please refer to the “Share Option Scheme” below for more details.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, Mr. Lu Zhongming and Mr. Zhang Shengman, Directors,
were granted 2,500,000, 2,000,000 and 2,000,000 award shares on 1
September 2020 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.
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(i) REELZENEZ (ii) Interest in Associated Corporations
RBRALTETAT
BEZRONEE HIRFER
EEpE B EE RS EatE ROEE BHRBEDL
Number of
Shares or
underlying
Shares held Approximate
Name of Associated Nature of under equity percentage of
Name of Director Corporation interest derivatives  shareholding
ghiEA BRI SR E R D B IR A A BmEAA
Qu Dejun Seazen Holdings Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 928,000 (L)™ 0.04%
(1) fhoe A D BIARIRM B A T I EEREET 2 2 (1) Mr. Qu was granted 328,000 share options and 600,000 restricted shares

B8 2 BIRR 1 e SR R B R 32.8 8
73 i S HEE N 6.0 88 IR A 1 AR -

B EXXE#EFEE SN - 12020 12 A 31
H BMEZERAQREIBITHRAER
RABIERAEEE (EEEFEH M
EEBIEXVER) & - BEKRGOKEF
BESWEBREBEELRESFRPE
EBIE352E M EAGTENELMRA -
SR EIZESTRIAMG ARD A B AT
ME ks skA A ©

under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme and the Subsidiary Restricted
Incentive Scheme respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded in the register of the Company and
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, for the year ended 31
December 2020, there were no such rights to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire
such rights in any other corporation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 26 March 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the

114

SFO:
FEEER EREMN
FTERRER 56, EmtE ZEBM BROasH
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest shares held™ shareholding

FiR#ER 24
Wang Zhenhua® 3and4)

Gl
Chen Jing®

Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited®

Infinity Fortune Development Limited®
First Priority Group Limited®
EHEBREBRAR®

Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited®

PREEFEMEIIAA

Founder of a discretionary trust

fR B =S

Interest of Spouse®
REEEEE R

Interest in a controlled corporation
B R

Interest of Spouse

ZIEA

Trustee

REEEEE R

Interest in a controlled corporation
MNEEGEEE R

Interest in a controlled corporation
EmfEE A

Beneficial owner
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4,223,794,000 (L)

67,904,000 (L)

67,904,000 (L)

4,223,794,000 (L)

4,223,794,000 (L)

4,223,794,000 (L)

4,223,794,000 (L)

4,223,794,000 (L)

68.02%

1.09%

1.09%

68.02%

68.02%

68.02%

68.02%

68.02%
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) FiRE LA BHua ShengfEsEMAIBA - BEiBHua
Shengf=#% * Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited A #EAH)
S BB E G A R1FEA 4,223,794,000 A5 B 4F

P

B

(3) BREg 2t (ERESLAEMEE) 100%55H Set Hero
Developments Limited * if1Set Hero Developments
Limited# B A1 767,904,000 R & 15 o BREF 22 L%
BRIREE S LB GO TIRE L SO #
BiEm R2MA -

(4) Chen Ting Sen (PTC) LimitedfE&Hua Shengfg
R(ATREAEERMERTAUREREREE
RE@mARL) WZFEA - AFAInfinity Fortune
Development Limited 100% 8 E#/THEA M
Infinity Fortune Development Limited#57First
Priority Group Limited 100% E) 2 BT AN

(5) B E B E AR AR AFirst Priority Group Limited
FAH100% M EBITRA

B EXHEEIN 0 R2021F3 8268 F EE
TRZE - FWAT (WFEEFELARTEEITH
AB) AR BN AR I B IR IEF 5
LERE GBI EXVEE 2 R3D AR EAFTHEN
RERIBNRE - HBREEF KB KD 3361
BRRZIGFTR MR R B MRS AE -

Notes:

(1) The letter "L" represents the long position in Shares.

(2) Mr. Wang Zhenhua is the founder of the Hua Sheng Trust, through which Chen Ting
Sen (PTC) Limited held long position in 4,223,794,000 Shares through its controlled
corporations in its capacity as trustee.

(3) Ms. Chen Jing, spouse of Mr. Wang Zhenhua, holds 100% of Set Hero Developments
Limited which holds the 67,904,000 Shares of the Company. Ms. Chen lJing is
deemed under SFO to be interested in the shares of Mr. Wang Zhenhua and vice
versa.

(4) Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited, as trustee of the Hua Sheng Trust, which was
established by Mr. Wang Zhenhua as the settlor in favour of his family members,
held 100% of the issued share capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited,
which in turn held 100% of the issued share capital of First Priority Group Limited.

(5) Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is held as to 100% of its issued share

capital by First Priority Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 26 March 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of the Directors,
no controlling Shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

INTERESTS IN

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands where the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s listed
securities.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Wang Zhenhua and Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited (the "Controlling Shareholders”) has executed a deed of
non-competition through which they have irrevocably and unconditionally
warranted and undertaken to the Company not to, whether directly or
indirectly or as principal or agent, and whether on its/his own account or
with each other or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company or through any entities (except in or through any subsidiary of the
Company), engage in businesses that are in competition with the Group.
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The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company
of their compliance with the deed of non-competition for disclosure in
this annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders with the
undertakings in the deed of non-competition during the year ended
31 December 2020. The independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no breach by any
of the Controlling Shareholders of the undertakings in the deed of non-
competition given by them.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed below, the Board confirmed that none of the
related party transactions set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group had not entered into any other connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in
this annual report pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company has engaged Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co.,
Ltd.* (PRI W ZEREARDBRAF]) (“Yue Property Services”)
in the ordinary and usual course of business to provide property
management services and the property services framework agreement
(the “2020 Property Services Framework Agreement”) was
entered into between Seazen Holdings and Yue Property Services on
25 November 2019 in relation to provision of property management
services by Yue Property Services for a term of one year from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 subject to the annual cap of RMB1,173
million. During the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
the fees incurred by the Group for the property management services
provided by Yue Property Services were approximately RMB1,008
million. As the 2020 Property Services Framework Agreement expired
on 31 December 2020, the renewed property services framework
agreement (the “2021 Property Services Framework Agreement”)
was entered into between Seazen Holdings and Yue Property Services
on 29 October 2020 in relation to provision of property management
services by Yue Property Services for a term of one year from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 subject to the annual cap of RMB1,350
million.

Yue Property Services was controlled by Mr. Wang Zhenhua, a
Controlling Shareholder. Accordingly, Yue Property Services is a
connected person of the Company and the entering into of the 2020
Property Services Framework Agreement and the 2021 Property Services
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) in
respect of the 2020 Property Services Framework Agreement and the
2021 Property Services Framework Agreement is more than 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the 2020 Property Services Framework
Agreement and the 2021 Property Services Framework Agreement are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in
Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules and exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcements published
by the Company on 25 November 2019 and 29 October 2020,
respectively.
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In order to ensure that the terms of the property management services

provided by Yue Property Services are not less favourable than those
available from independent third parties, the Group has adopted the
following measures:

Vi.

where applicable and commercially sensible, the Group will
continue to request Yue Property Services to provide the
property management services through a bidding process,
on arm’s length basis and on the best available terms, with
reference to the prevailing market prices;

the relevant department of Seazen Holdings in charge of
property management will conduct research on the service fees
of relevant comparable services provided by at least 3 property
management companies in the market based on the type of
development projects and the scope of services quarterly for
ascertaining that the range of the service fees of the residential
property management services provided by Yue Property Services
is marked to market;

as part of the internal control procedures, the implementation
of the 2020 Property Services Framework Agreement and 2021
Property Services Framework Agreement and the actual number
and amount of services provided by Yue Property Services will be
monitored and reviewed by the Board (including the independent
non-executive Directors) and the senior management on a
regular basis, with reference to terms of similar transactions with
the independent third parties;

the Director(s) and/or the Shareholder(s) with an interest in the
relevant transaction(s) shall abstain from voting in respect of the
resolution(s);

the Group shall use the best endeavour to comply with
the relevant reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the continuing connected
transactions;

the Company will engage its auditor to report on the continuing
connected transaction every year in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules; and
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vii. the Group will duly disclose in the annual reports and accounts
the transactions of provision of property management services
by Yue Property Services during each financial period, together
with the conclusions (with basis) drawn by the independent
non-executive Directors whether the transactions are conducted
on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has followed the pricing policies and payment terms, as
disclosed in the announcement published by the Company on 25
November 2019, of the continuing connected transactions conducted
during the year. The internal audit department of the Company
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and the adequacy
and effectiveness of the internal control procedures, and provided the
findings to the independent non-executive Directors to assist them
in performing their annual reviews. The independent non-executive
Directors also made appropriate enquiries with the management to
ensure that they have sufficient information to review the transactions
and the internal control procedures. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the transactions were entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms or not less favourable terms that
the Group receives or provides services from an independent
third party or obtains from an independent third party; and

3. in accordance with the agreements related to the above
continuing connected transactions, the terms of which are fair
and reasonable and in the interest of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company has engaged its auditor to report on the disclosed
continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company confirmed
to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions:

1. have not been approved by the Board;

2. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
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3. have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 disclosed in its announcement
dated 25 November 2019.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme on 12 September
2011.

1. Objective

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme to
recognize the contribution of certain of our employees and
officers, especially those whom we consider have contributed to
the early development and growth of the Group, and to align
their interests with those of the Shareholders.

2. Implementation

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, a total of
current and former employees, officers and business partners
of the Group (the “Selected Persons”) were awarded Shares
representing approximately 3.19% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. As instructed by Wealth Zone Hong
Kong Investments Limited, the Company issued a nominal value
of 181,050,000 new shares to Wellink Global (PTC) Limited
and Dynasty Snow (PTC) Ltd. (the “Trustees”), for the benefit
of the Selected Persons. As of 31 December 2016, a total of
181,050,000 shares (the “Awarded Shares”), representing
approximately 2.92% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, were granted to
the Selected Persons and there were no outstanding unvested
shares under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

3. Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The vesting principles of the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme are
summarized as follows:

- The Selected Persons are not entitled to exercise or enjoy
the rights to, or transfer the Awarded Shares pending to
the vesting of the Awarded Shares.

- The vesting period for a Selected Person is determined based
on his or her (i) performance appraisal; (i) length of service;
and (iii) seniority (if applicable).
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The Awarded Shares granted to any particular Selected
Person will vest in four equal tranches on 31 December
2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 (Note 1), respectively.

The first vesting date for all the relevant Selected Persons
was 31 December 2013. The second vesting date for all
the relevant Selected Persons was 31 December 2014,
the third vesting date for all the relevant Selected Persons
was 31 December 2015 and the fourth vesting date for
all the relevant Selected Persons was 14 December 2016
(Note 1).

The Selected Persons are not required to pay any
consideration for the Awarded Shares for the purpose of
vesting.

The vesting period of a Selected Person is subject to
postponement in the event of unsatisfactory work
performance based on his or her annual performance
appraisal (if applicable).

Prior to vesting, the Selected Persons are not entitled to
the voting rights to the Awarded Shares.

All dividends declared and paid in respect of the Awarded
Shares shall be held by the Trustees for the benefit of the
respective Selected Person prior to vesting.

All the Awarded Shares have been vested by 31
December 2016.

Note:

(1) Pursuant to the resolutions of the Shareholders dated 30 June
2012, the vesting period of the Awarded Shares awarded under
the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme was amended for the four years
from 2012 to 2015, from 2013 to 2016.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 1 November 2019, the Board has resolved to adopt the Share Award
Scheme.

1. Objectives

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are: (i) to recognize
the contribution of employees of the Company ("Employees”)
and to provide incentives for the Employees to continuously
make substantial contributions for the Group’s long-term growth
in the future; and (ii) to attract and retain talented Employees
who may be beneficial to the growth and development of the
Group.

2. Administration

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Board in accordance with the rule of the Share Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”).

3. Scheme Limit

The aggregated maximum number of Shares that the trustee
(who is an independent third party) appointed by the Board to
manage the Share Award Scheme (the “Trustee”) may purchase
must not exceed 0.5% of the total share capital in issue of the
Company on 1 November 2019.

4. Voting Rights

The Trustee, the Board and the authorised representatives
appointed by the Board by passing ordinary resolutions delegated
with authority to give instructions or notices to the Trustee on
all matters in connection with the Share Award Scheme and
other matters in the routine administration of the Trust (the
“Authorised Representatives”) shall not exercise any voting
rights attached to any Shares held on the trust constituted by
the Trust Deed (the “Trust”).
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Restrictions

The Awarded Shares awarded to the employee(s) selected by
the Board pursuant to the Scheme Rules to participate in the
Share Award Scheme (the “Selected Employee(s)”) under
the Share Award Scheme shall be personal to such Employee
and shall not be transferable. Each of the Selected Employees
shall not sell, transfer, pledge or create any encumbrance by
any means in respect of the unvested Awarded Shares. The
Selected Employees are not entitled to any rights attached to the
unvested such number of Shares awarded by the Board pursuant
to the Scheme Rules (the “Awarded Shares”), including but
not limited to any voting right and entitlement to dividends that
have accrued prior to the vesting of such Awarded Shares. If
any Director or Authorised Representative possesses unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company, or where dealings
by Directors are prohibited under any code or requirement of
the Listing Rules or any applicable laws from time to time, no
payment shall be made to the Trustee and no instructions to
acquire Shares shall be given to the Trustee under the Share
Award Scheme. Further, the Board shall not award any Awarded
Shares to any Director during the periods in which dealing
in Shares is prohibited pursuant to the Listing Rules or any
corresponding code or securities dealing restrictions adopted by
the Company.

Operation

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board or the
Authorised Representatives may from time to time instruct the
Trustee to purchase the existing Shares in the open market,
and determine, among other things, the timing of awards, list
of Selected Employees, number of Awarded Shares, Vesting
Dates and conditions of vesting mainly based on the overall
results and performance of the Group and contributions made
by the Employees. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at
its discretion, the Trustee shall hold Awarded Shares until such
Shares are vested in the Selected Employees in accordance with
the Scheme Rules.
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Vesting and Lapse

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion,
the relevant Awarded Shares held by the Trustee on behalf
of the Selected Employees on Trust shall not vest in the
relevant Selected Employee in the following circumstances:
(i) the Selected Employee ceases to be a Selected Employee
for whatever reason; or (ii) other circumstances as provided
in the Scheme Rules. Upon occurrence of any of the above
circumstances, any Awarded Shares awarded but have not been
vested in the Selected Employee will be returned to the Trust
in accordance with the Scheme Rules. In respect of a Selected
Employee who retires at his normal retirement date at any time
prior to a Vesting Date, all the Awarded Shares of such Selected
Employee shall be deemed to be vested on the day immediately
prior to his retirement at his normal retirement date.

The following table discloses movement in the Company’s
Awarded Shares which were granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the Reporting Period. Save as to below, during
the year ended 31 December 2020, no Awarded Shares were
granted, vested, or lapsed under the Share Award Scheme.

RER
LA gH
Number of
SHEHEHSE Name of Participant Date of Grant Awarded Shares
(a) E= (a) Directors
BN E Mr. Lv Xiaoping 2020F9 A1H 2,500,000
1 September 2020
FE BB Mr. Lu Zhongming 2020F9 A1H 2,000,000
1 September 2020
EREXE Mr. Zhang Shengman 20209818 2,000,000
1 September 2020
(b) ARQTEE (b) Employees of the Company 20209 A1 H 1,000,000
1 September 2020
&t Total 7,500,000

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
20204 %k 2020 Annual Report

125



EFEWE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BRrestal

X ERFR2012911 A6 BBBME MR H A KT
HAMERES -

1. =B
BIRETEEESARRMAERSHE
EROBREEAFSHAERNE R
B IE B RAAY BB Sk (Bl 3R o

2. RERSHE
EEgURBERERDBREAITEE
RBEETAREENEBEEE TR

7

(i) ARRHEEFFRANEMNE
BERBEE  TBRAERSHR
AE

(i AREHEEMRFAREAE
= (BREFATESRBEILIFH
TE=E):

(i)  ANRFHELA T RRHE(EE
M HBAAL H#HER - BFEK
RIE: &

vy EFe2EI/BERCLAXR
SEFHERMEMAL

126 N RIEREPR A A Seazen Group Limited
20204 F %R 2020 Annual Report

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme conditionally adopted by the written resolutions
of the Shareholders passed on 6 November 2012.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

2. Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new shares as the Board may
determine an exercise price for:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents

of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$0.10 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances be refundable. Any
offer to grant an option to subscribe for shares may be accepted
in respect of less than the number of shares for which it is offered
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing
in shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof
and such number is clearly stated in the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptance of the option. To the extent that the offer
to grant an option is not accepted by any prescribed acceptance
date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted (including shares in respect of which options, whether
exercised or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of Listing (but taking no
account of any shares which may be issued under the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the prospectus)), being
566,800,000 Shares (the “Scheme Limit").

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised, outstanding options and
shares which were the subject of options which have been
granted and accepted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other scheme of the Company but subsequently cancelled to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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Price of Shares

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
except that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director who
is the grantee of the options).

Restrictions on the times of grant of options

A grant of options may not be made after a price sensitive event
has occurred or a price sensitive matter has been the subject
of a decision until such price sensitive information has been
announced. In particular, no options may be granted during
the period commencing one month immediately preceding the
earlier of (i) the date of the Board meeting; and (ii) the deadline
for the Company to publish an announcement of the results
for any year, or half-year, or quarterly or other interim period
and ending on the date of actual publication of the results
announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage,
encumber or create any interest (legal or beneficial) in favour of
any third party over or in relation to any option or attempt so to do
(except that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose name
the shares issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme may be
registered). Any breach of the foregoing shall entitle the Company to
cancel any outstanding options or any part thereof granted to such
grantee.
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10.

Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share
Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of ten years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, and no option may be exercised after it has
been granted for more than ten years. No option may be granted
for more than ten years after the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme by the then sole Shareholder of the Company (the
“Adoption Date"). Subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years from the Adoption
Date. A grantee may be required to hold an option for a minimum
period and/or achieve any performance targets as the Board may
then specify before any options granted under the Share Option
Scheme can be exercised.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme does
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of Listing.
The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with
the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of
the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the
time.

As at 31 December 2020, the numbers of Shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme was 14,375,000, representing
approximately 0.23% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2020.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report is
551,725,000, which is approximately 8.88% of the issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report and the remaining life
of the Share Option Scheme was one year and seven months.
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The following table discloses movement in the Company’s share

options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme,
during the Reporting Period:

BREHE
Number of share options
SRENRR BRITHEE R2020F REEHR  REEHA RAREER REREER R2020%F
REH R B () T 1818 B¥ (i i X¥ 128318
Lapsed
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled during
price per Asat  duringthe  during the  during the the As at
Name or category of Date of share Exercise 1lJanuary  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participant Grant (HKS) period 2020 Period Period Period Period 2020
(a) €%
(a) Directors
aVEEE 111172019 8.62 1/11/2020 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
Mr. Lv Xiaoping ES0)
31/10/2029
BERBRLE 1/11/2019 8.62 1/11/2020 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000
Mr. Lu Zhongming Zto
31/10/2029
ERERE 1/11/2019 8.62 1/11/2020 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000
Mr. Zhang Shengman £to
31/10/2029
et - - - - - 3,900,000
Sub-total
(b) &AFEE 11172019 8.62 1/11/2020 11,175,000 - - - (700,000) 10,475,000
(b) Employees of £to
the Company 31/10/2029
@ 15,075,000 - - - (700,000) 14,375,000
Total
Mizr1: BERESEEEELHLEE2023F10A8 Note 1: The share options are valid from the relevant Vesting Date (for this
MTEER (R MES > BREKTEBZ purpose, the date of each such date on which the Share Options are to
HEWEE@ERE TXHEAs BBE vest being hereinafter referred to as a “Vesting Date”) to 31 October
) - 2023.
MizE2 : 282019911 818 (BEERESE Note 2: The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before 1

MERERL AN (ERRRE)) A
REIBGD T ER8.29/8TT -

8% R Z R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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November 2019, being the date of grant of the share option under the
Share Option Scheme (as defined in the Reports), was HK$8.29.
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BTEB2BEREZADL

Percentage of Share Options to vest

2020911 A1H
1 November 2020
202111818
1 November 2021
2022911 A1H
1 November 2022

BN BFERLNBREBENFIEHRT
KA G R ERRMIFE20 ©

BREEE

B LT RAIE17.0816  FREE N ERE
BEERREIFBBHNRAEERRRAX
o
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EREBREZEZ40%
40% of the total number of share options granted
ERHEREEZZ30%
30% of the total number of share options granted
ERHERIERSZ30%
30% of the total number of share options granted

Details of value of share options granted during the financial year are
set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 17.08 of the Listing Rules, the value of the share
options granted during the year is to be expensed through the Group's
statement of profit or loss over the 3-year vesting period of the options.

The fair values of share options granted by the Company were
determined by using Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Model”).
The Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair
value of an option. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the management's
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of
a number of subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an
option.

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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The inputs into the Model were as follows:

RHBAH
Date of grant

201911 81H
1 November 2019

P B BRI R U B
Closing share price at the date of grant
1TEE

Exercise price

B R

Risk free rate

i Pl e 78 EA 5 AR

Expected life of option

& HR 7 b

Expected volatility
TBEREFRE

Expected dividend per annum
BOBRENGGFALEE

Estimated fair values per share option

B B~ Bl IR R B =t 8l

RABEFREFNIER (HABRR EEBAEAL
ST T (B - 601155)) EYAR Z 2Byt
EIETHRFZEETE ((HMEARREREST
2 ) 272019410 A30 BEMRE#E (12019
FERBERIRE] - W£L2019F11 A 138
TR —EEEEE AR EARAE

AT HHEE) -

1. MWELARARIHMESTEHEN

B A RIS B A 86 B &0 i —
FET - REFPEREIRBES
WEIMBEEEAS - RO HDIHWE
REF SREBAE HEBBAER
Rz LB ®HERIE - B RS
PREV B R A g - BTIER A S A E IR
BAFRESE L - E57 KRBT
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8.628 7T
HK$8.62
8.62/8 7T
HK$8.62
2.85%-2.95%

2.5-3.5F
2.5-3.5 years
48.87%-53.20%
3.2%

2.588 7T
HK$2.58

SUBSIDIARY SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

The share option scheme under the Share Incentive Scheme of Seazen
Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company with its A Shares listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601155) (the “Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the Shareholders on 30 October
2019 (the 2019 EGM"), and has been partially adjusted after being
considered and approved by the twenty-second meeting of the second

session of the board of directors of Seazen Holdings on 13 November

2019.

1. Purpose of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Subsidiary Share Incentive Scheme is to
further establish and improve Seazen Holdings’ long-term
incentives mechanism, attract and retain quality talents, fully
motivate the directors, senior and middle management and

key personnel of Seazen Holdings, and effectively integrate the

shareholders’ interests of Seazen Holdings, Seazen Holdings’
interests and individual interests of the management such that
the parties will make joint efforts for Seazen Holdings’ long-term

development.
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Eligible Participants

As at 31 December 2020, there are a total of 92 participants
under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, including:

1. Directors and senior management of Seazen Holdings;
and

2. middle management and key personnel of Seazen
Holdings.

The participants under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
exclude independent Directors, supervisors of Seazen Holdings
and Shareholders who individually or in aggregate hold more
than 5% of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings (the “A Shares”)
or the de facto controllers and their respective spouse, parents
and/or children.

Total number of A shares available for issue under
the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme and percentage
of the issued share capital that it represents as at
the date of this annual report

Seazen Holdings intends to grant 15,568,800 share options
under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme to the participants,
and the underlying shares of the share options are RMB ordinary
A Shares, representing 0.69% of the total share capital of
Seazen Holdings (i.e. 2,256,724,186 shares) as at the date of the
2019 EGM, of which, after making the adjustment announced
by Seazen Holdings on 14 November 2019, 14,172,000 share
options will be granted under the initial grant, representing
0.63% of the total number of shares of Seazen Holdings (i.e.
2,256,724,186 shares) as at the date of the 2019 EGM and
91.03% of the total number of share options under this grant;
and 1,396,800 share options will be reserved, representing
0.06% of the total share capital of Seazen Holdings (i.e.
2,256,724,186 shares) as at the date of the 2019 EGM.

As at 31 December 2020, the numbers of A Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme was 12,595,400,
representing approximately 0.56% of the total issued share
capital of Seazen Holdings as at 31 December 2020.

The total number of A Shares available for issue under the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme of Seazen Holdings as at the
date of this annual report is 886,800, which is approximately
0.04% of the issued share capital as at the date of this annual
report and the remaining life of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme was about 3 years.
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Maximum entitlement of Shares of each participant

None of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings granted through all
valid equity incentive schemes held by each of the Participants
above exceeded or will exceed 1% of the total share capital of
Seazen Holdings.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The validity period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
commence from the registration completion date of grant of
the share options and end on the date on which all of the share
options granted to the participants have been exercised or
cancelled, which shall not exceed 54 months.

6. BRERATITEMXEREZRE Minimum period for which an option must be held
B before it can be exercised
BRABETHOEBRETREA RS HITER The following table sets forth the exercise period of the share
MZB TR : options under the initial grant and the exercise schedule for each
tranche:
TR TR 1T RELL
Exercise arrangement Exercise Duration Exercise proportion
E—ErTHEHR ERTEEERZBRNREARNEERSBRER 40%

FTELTKZ AE24H BNHRE—EZXZBEEHIE
First exercise period Commencing on the first trading day after expiry
of the 12-month period from the registration
completion date of the grant and ending on the
last trading day of the 24-month period from the

registration completion date of the grant

BRTER Az AR24EARNEERXSBRER 30%
FELTKZ BRE36EH B NMREZE—ERZSEEHLE

Commencing on the first trading day after expiry

of the 24-month period from the registration

completion date of the grant and ending on the

last trading day of the 36-month period from the

registration completion date of the grant

£ {ATTHEH]

Second exercise period

BRTECTERZBEIEAARNERARZALEER 30%
FEILTH 2 BRE48E R NHRE—EAZXSBEEHLE
Commencing on the first trading day after expiry
of the 36-month period from the registration
completion date of the grant and ending on the
last trading day of the 48-month period from the

= AT

Third exercise period

registration completion date of the grant
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The following table sets forth the exercise period of the share options

under the reserved grant and the exercise schedule for each tranche:

TR

Exercise arrangement

TRERGFE

Exercise Duration

ITHELL B

Exercise proportion

£ —{ETT R

First exercise period

(AT TR

Second exercise period

BRTERTKBRI8EARNEEARSARER
TERITKZ AE30EAARNRE—ERXSREHIE
Commencing on the first trading day after expiry
of the 18-month period from the registration
completion date of the grant and ending on the
last trading day of the 30-month period from the
registration completion date of the grant

BERTERLTA 2 BRE30EAZNEER S BREER
FELTKZ BRR2ERNNRE—EZXZEEHIE
Commencing on the first trading day after expiry
of the 30-month period from the registration
completion date of the grant and ending on the
last trading day of the 42-month period from the
registration completion date of the grant

50%

50%

7. BANERENENSEEES N 7. Amount payable on acceptance of an option and the
period within which payment shall be made

T E

BEARTHERENTEESAEERA
R¥27.4070 - FRIBERE Eli /T

A e

8. {ITHEEMNEEKRE

BRETHOBERETRERTERAK
FHEH  BTMERTIERRSE

The exercise price of the share options under the initial grant
is RMB27.40 per share. The payment shall be payable in

accordance with the exercise period above.

8. Basis of determination of the exercise price

The exercise price of the share options under the initial grant
shall not be lower than the par value of the A Shares, and shall

be not less than the higher of the followings:

(i) ZASHEANERS B8 BNEFR (i) the average price of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings

TREARZ S E (B 1R 5
BARZ 545/ /1EX5 A8
ABRRSBRE) BERARE
274070 ¢ &

for the last trading day preceding the date of the
announcement (the total transaction value of the A
Shares for the last trading day/total trading volume of the

A Shares for the last trading day), being RMB27.40 per

share; and

i % RZ R ER A F Seazen Group Limited
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(ii) ZAE BHEIRT201E% 5 B BT
ZRARR S¥9E (A1201E % 5
HARR 5485 /51201 5 H
ABRRZHEE)  AERARE
26.137C °

BEETHBRETEER TMERAK
SHEH  ETMERTIERRSE

JER D %%%&%ﬁﬁ?%é
FERERD m1m %Emﬁ
WIERRAR R BB

(i) TER S BRER TRIERE
EgREALR20@XRSA -
60X ZHEE 120X F HE
FRIERARZ (8 -

9. MWEBLARAREHEANRGFESH

B8~ Bl IR SR HA e AT 818 U B R R
TRETTKZ AREHBE RERN
BRECETR, 2HNERREXCIE
A BIE - &RTEBS4EA -
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(if)

the average price of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings
for the last 20 trading days preceding the date of the
announcement (the total transaction value of the A
Shares for the last 20 trading days/total trading volume
of the A Shares for the last 20 trading days), being
RMB26.13 per share.

The exercise price of the share options under the reserved grant

shall not be lower than the par value of the A Shares, and shall
be not less than the higher of the following:

)

(i)

the average price of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings
for the last trading day preceding the date of the
announcement on the resolution of the Seazen Holdings
Board on the share options under the reserved grant; and

the average price of the A Shares of Seazen Holdings for
the last 20, 60 or 120 trading days preceding the date
of the announcement on the resolution of the Seazen
Holdings Board on the share options under the reserved
grant.

Remaining life of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme

The validity period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
commence on the completion date of registration of Shares
Option exercised and end on the date on which all of the

share options granted to the participants have been exercised/

unlocking all restrictions or cancelled, which shall not exceed 54

months.
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The following table sets out the movements of the number of share
options granted under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme during the

year ended 31 December 2020 and the outstanding share options at
the beginning and end of the year:

BREHE
Number of share options
1#2020F 142020F
BROEE 118 REEER  RESER  REEER RESER 12A31H
SRENAGEE R AH (AE®) fTEHE o RATHE By e e %X i R AT
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
price per asat duringthe  duringthe  during the  during the as at
Name or category of Date of share Exercise 1January  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participant Grant (RMB) period 2020 Period Period Period Period 2020
() MRERES
(a) Directors of
Seazen
Holdings
WEELE 08/05/2020 31.97 02122021 - 328,000 - - - 328,000
Mr. Qu Dejun Zto
01/12/2023
BEIRE 13/11/2019 2570 24/12/2020 328,000 - - - - 328,000
Mr. Liang Zhicheng Z10
23/12/2023
(b) BHREER
(b) Senior
management
ERLRE 13/11/2019 ® 25702 24/12/2020 254,000 - - - - 254,000
Mr. Guan Youdong Z10
23/12/2023
BRiEtE 13/11/2019 0 2570 @ 24/12/2020 121,000 - - - - 121,000
Mr. Chen Peng Zto
23/12/2023
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EREHR
Number of share options
1#2020F 142020F
BROEE 1818 REEHER  RESHA REEHR REEER 128318
SHEREAER R RS (AR®) TREHE R BF (i3 B %X i R AT
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding
price per asat duringthe duringthe  during the  during the as at
Name or category of Date of share Exercise 1lJanuary  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participant Grant (RMB) period 2020 Period Period Period Period 2020
Htt 13/11/2019 25.702  24/12/2020 13,469,000 - - (2,086,600) - 11,382,400
Others Zto0
23/12/2023
08/05/2020" 31.97  02/12/2021 - 182,000 - - - 182,000
Zto
01/12/2023
st 14,172,000 510,000 - (2,086,600) - 12,595,400
Total
FRET © FTIZRR 2 RO R B BB (DA E 20196 11 Note 1: The closing price of the shares of Seazen Holdings immediately before the date of
A13B) Aiz W mEAARE33.287T ° grant (i.e. as of 13 November 2019) was RMB33.28.
R RN B S Z REBRERE BE (A The closing price of the shares of Seazen Holdings immediately before the date of
202055 A8H) ZAIMKRTER/ARKE31.11TT © the second grant of the share option (i.e. 8 May 2020) was RMB31.11.
FisE2 TS — A TR TEER R AR 27407, R Note 2: The exercise price for the first exercise period of the share option is adjusted from

AR ABARE25707T /B

BREEE

BRI EHRBIE17.0816&  FANE KL ERE
BEEBREIFHBHARAEBBEERAX
B ©

HWERERBME R — RITHEEBEER
(ZERX ) EFEROBRENAAEBE -Z
BEARFEBREAABEEREEAN &R
A EBREAABERERNZEHLER
TREEE 2 REFNG BRENEESRT
ZETERR BHEMAELTRNMGEE - £
MERABZEHMERES  AegHEEE
NAREBEEZGTELEEATE -
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RMB27.40 per share to RMB25.70 per share.

VALUE OF SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 17.08 of the Listing Rules, the value of the share
options granted during the year is to be expensed through the Group's
statement of profit or loss over the 3-year vesting period of the options.

The fair values of share options granted by Seazen Holdings were
determined by using Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Model”).
The Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair
value of an option. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the management's
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of
a number of subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an
option.
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The inputs into the Model were as follows:

RHBH 201911 H13H 202055H8H
Date of grant 13 November 2019 8 May 2020
AR B BRI R U B AR#32.437T AR#32.297T
Closing share price at the date of grant RMB32.43 RMB32.29
1T1E(E AR#27.407T AR#31.977C
Exercise price RMB27.40 RMB31.97

MR R

Risk free rate

i e i TR HA S AR

Expected life of option

& HR A

Expected volatility

EHSFRE

Expected dividend per annum
BHBRENGHAAEE

Estimated fair values per share option

A RAR M I EARIR T B 1 R IR M A AT 8
) B R AR B (A RO R B RS R & O BE A5 R Y
20 -

HEBR

HZE2020F12 A31BIEFE - AEBIEHHOA
R#29.0887T (20194 : ARK127EETT)
KZEE R EMIBK -

2.74%-2.96%
1.54-3.5%
1.5-3.5 years
19.29%-20.29%

0%

ARKET7927T
RMB7.92

1.45%-1.53%
29F-3%F

2-3 years
20.11%-20.21%

0%

ARKEATTT
RMB4.77

Details of value of share options under the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme granted during the financial year are set out in Note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
and other donations of approximately RMB29.0 million (2019: RMB12.7

million).
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ERLECDHEEE NINERBATEEAE
BEMN S EL RBRAREZ2020612A4
31 AL FEEEZA M ®RE -

EEEEEHE%%%%E?@E%Zﬁ%&
VIS

AEBR2019F1 BET—HMFEH3EET
75%MEREE  H2019F4 A 3817 —HAM4E
HI2EEIT6.15% MELEFE - 7202096 A%
T— M FE4BET6.45%NEXLZERR
20208 A 81T —HIMMF Hi2.5183£706.0% 1Y
EBEEE(EE]) - Bt - WEE (EhaiE)
EHAHBEA(EELT) AARXEBAR LT
DRE0N%BIREE EEBABTENRE
ETHEFESR(NER) BRNELEEAF
ZTAEM  AAQRERZBEME RER
2R BEESHREELASTMI01% S MERE
(BTEE) BE B HIEMEST RARMNFLE (1
) B ERRKTEUAREESER B A
R ESER EmRAIE 13 18ETHIRES
£

FERETE - [ERFAIFAAIE TIERK RS
EN

(i) FIRERE

(i)  FERFELEZEMBEA

ITIRELREZEFTEAARERRER
B (WER) skt 2 xR E - &

(iii)

HBRAREZZERD (RHBETE
HEGED) ATIREALEREBHA
HEH80% A EZEDEA °

(iv)

HR2020F2R816H » A RARIERHBEE—H=
FHI35EEIILS.0%MELERE - 1202059
R128  ARFAERHBEE —PRFEHIEE
TL6.5%MEBERE - FMlBEDWITINEES
REGMERBEFRTHE IR -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Group successfully issued a tranche of two-year USD300 million
7.5% senior notes in January 2019, a tranche of four-year USD200
million 6.15% senior notes in April 2019, a tranche of two-year
USD400 million 6.45% senior notes in June 2020 and a tranche of four-
year USD250 million 6.0% senior notes in August 2020 (the “Notes”).
Pursuant to which the Company will make an offer to repurchase all
outstanding Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principal
amount of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but
not including) the repurchase date, upon the occurrence of, among
other things, the Permitted Holders (defined below) are the beneficial
owners of less than 50.1% of the total voting power of the voting
stock of the Company and Mr. Wang Xiaosong ceases to be the
chairman of the Board (if applicable) accompanied by a rating decline.
Such requirements as to the maintenance of the level of ownership in
and composition of the members of the Board result in the disclosure
obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

In this paragraph, “Permitted Holders” means any or all of the
followings:

(i) Mr. Wang Zhenhua;

(ii) any affiliate of Mr. Wang Zhenhua;
(iii) the trust, estate and any immediate family member (if applicable)
of Mr. Wang Zhenhua or the legal representative thereof; and
(iv) any legal person of both the capital stock and the voting stock
of which (or in the case of a trust, the beneficial interests in

which) are owned 80% or more by Mr. Wang Zhenhua or any of
his affiliates.

On 16 February 2020, the Company has fully repaid the tranche of
three-year USD350 million 5.0% senior notes. On 12 September 2020,
the Company has fully repaid the tranche of two-year USD300 million
6.5% senior notes. The said notes has been cancelled and delisted from
the official list of the Singapore Stock Exchange.
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AR E BN £ AR BB 8% 1 AT A IZ 2 S
Bl {FAEEBESTENTESFRIZBRTE
Al - G EBEEELFTEENRNE  SESH
REREZE2020F12 A31B L FEEETEE
SPAN ©

TEERER
AEERNORRBEEERAOSIZE - LURE
BERERMESREACEEBERMEGE - X2 F
—ERMEBRAES LRSS
ERTAIRGEEARE ([LEERA]) AT
HWSTRIFRE - XRFINEE2020F12 531
HitEFE—BETEEERTAMEGEATA
B - AREBEERTREEHEMCES RS
o ARERESFREEIRTA

HERGBFERT
UEEEREERRBFAGLREZRR

RERMIBE B
Latest date for lodging transfer:
B it @ s E e A

Period of closure of register:

LI ER IR AR AR B 2 RR

REARRSBRFER -

Ex-entitlement date for final dividend:
g m @A A E

Latest date for lodging transfer:
=P IRRR (0 38 = & 50 BAfE -

Period of closure of register:

ok HH

Record date:

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all the
Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he has complied
with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance. The Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2020. The Company will continue to review and monitor
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the identity of Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting

202145 420H (28W) TFEE =15
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20 May 2021
2021F5F21A (EHA)E

202145H26R (28=) (BIEEEMX)
Friday, 21 May 2021 to

Wednesday, 26 May 2021, both days inclusive

To determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to the final
dividend

20216 A1 (287)

Friday, 11 June 2021

202156 15 (EHZ) TFOEE=1T%5
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 June 2021
2021F6R16A (EH=)%

202156 18R (28H) (BIEEEMK)
Wednesday, 16 June 2021 to

Friday, 18 June 2021, both days inclusive
20216 A 18H (28F)

Friday, 18 June 2021
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In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM and/or entitled to
the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than the
corresponding latest date for registration.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital, being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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RITREBEOEERE

M2021F 18 - RRRIETR2025F R EARE
HA300EBETH4.45% BT EIE([2025 5
B 2025 RBERTINEBRSFZ M LT
FMEE  BHET2025FZBMFBHNA
NRIHEA2021F1H6B X2021F187HH
NE SR BEERHANEERARRETE
IMERS 2021418228 - KA TR EE
BRHERASIEI00EBETHN7 5% ELE
BEREMABEANNE - BEBEMNFE
HARATIBEA2021FE1 A22BHAE -

BER
FEMEE
E& 202193 H26H

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Connected Transaction — Disposal of Assets

On 8 February 2021, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an asset
disposal agreement with a subsidiary of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
Limited, and agreed to dispose the assets (including courier lockers
and their spare parts inventory and intangible assets relating to courier
lockers), at a consideration of RMB32,931,300. For details of the
disposal, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
February 2021.

Issuance and Redemption of Senior Notes

In January 2021, the Company has issued the 4.45% senior notes
due 2025 with a principal amount of USD300 million (the “2025
Notes”). The 2025 Notes are listed and traded on the Singapore Stock
Exchange. Details of the issuance of the 2025 Notes are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 January 2021 and 7 January
2021. The proceeds have been fully used to repay certain of its offshore
indebtedness. On 22 January 2021, the Company has fully redeemed
the 7.5% senior notes at maturity of the principal amount of USD300
million together with all accrued interests thereon. Details of the
redemption are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
January 2021.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
CG Code as its own code of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The Company will continue to review
and enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs, the Board has established four Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
the Group's Directors for their liabilities arising from corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Lv
Xiaoping and Mr. Lu Zhongming, three non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Xiaosong, Mr. Qu Dejun and Mr. Zhang Shengman, and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Huakang, Mr.
Zhu Zengjin and Mr. Zhong Wei. The biographies of the Directors are
set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. The details of the service contract of the Directors
are set out in the Report of the Directors of this annual report.

As disclosed in this annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Board met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, issuers are required to appoint
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board. As disclosed in this annual report, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors currently representing one-third of
the Board and therefore the Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.

Listed issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy. The
Company has adopted a board diversity policy and therefore complied
with this code provision. A summary of the board diversity policy is set
out under “Board Committees — Nomination Committee” below.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
personal relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) with any other Director.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose to
the issuer the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments, as well as their
identity and an indication of the time involved, all the Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments and any change to the Company
in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

To assist the Directors in the discharge of their duties, each newly
appointed Director will be provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as their responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal
and regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also
provided with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Joint Company Secretaries, from time to
time, update and provide written training materials relating to the roles,
functions and duties of Director.

During the year, each of the Directors, namely Mr. Lv Xiaoping, Mr. Lu
Zhongming, Mr. Wang Xiaosong, Mr. Qu Dejun, Mr. Zhang Shengman,
Mr. Chen Huakang, Mr. Zhu Zengjin and Mr. Zhong Wei, received and
studied these training materials. The Company has received confirmation
from all Directors of their respective training records for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals. The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are segregated and are held by Mr. Wang Xiaosong and
Mr. Lv Xiaoping respectively. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang
Xiaosong, is responsible for material matters such as business strategies
and overall development of the Company. With the assistance of the
Joint Company Secretaries, the Chairman, draws up the agenda for each
Board meeting, ensures that good governance practices and procedures
are complied with, makes sure that all the Directors are provided with
sufficient and reliable information in a timely manner required for
necessary analysis based on their expertise and encourages all Directors
to make an active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead
in ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.
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The chief executive officer, Mr. Lv Xiaoping, is responsible for managing
the day-to-day operations of the Group's business.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are separate
and independent, with clear division of responsibilities.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 18 October
2018, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 7 January
2019, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Qu Dejun has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 8 July 2019 (in relation to
his position as executive Director) and subsequently for a term of three
years commencing from 27 March 2020 (in relation to his position as
non-executive Director), and may be terminated in accordance with the
terms of the appointment letter.

Mr. Lu Zhongming has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 7 January
2019, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Zhang Shengman has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 21 March 2021
and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
contract.

Mr. Chen Huakang and Mr. Zhu Zengjin have entered into appointment
letters respectively with the Company on 6 November 2020, for a term
of two years commencing from 6 November 2020.

Mr. Zhong Wei has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company on 3 December 2020, for a term of two years commencing
from 3 December 2020.

None of the Directors has entered into a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for election by Shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment and new Directors appointed in addition to
the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at
the next following AGM of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Company’s articles of association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession
planning of Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopted the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
The agenda and accompanying Board papers are despatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are
kept by the Joint Company Secretaries with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are recorded
in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, and any concerns raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors for consideration within a reasonable
time after the date on which the meeting was held. The minutes of the
Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

The chairman also held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without presence of other Directors during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held 11 Board

MREESSS  1ARERAFEARE (A20204F meetings and 1 annual general meeting (held on 10 June 2020). The
610817 - REEHEZZESZNIERE attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set out in the
RTE table below:
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Exeed REEFKE
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Board General
Meetings Meeting
FREMSEE Mr. Wang Xiaosong 11/11 11
BN FERAE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 11/11 11
B fR R S A Mr. Lu Zhongming 11/11 1/1
HhiEE Sk Mr. Qu Dejun 11/11 1/1
ERELE Mr. Zhang Shengman 11/11 0/1
BREEERSE A& Mr. Chen Huakang 11/11 1/1
RIGHE S Mr. Zhu Zengjin 11/11 0/1
EEEE Mr. Zhong Wei 11/11 01
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Mr. Wang Xiaosong, the chairman of the Board who took the chair
of the 2020 annual general meeting, together with other members of
the Board who attended that meeting, were of sufficient calibre for
answering questions at that meeting and had answered questions at
that meeting competently.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, each
of the Directors has confirmed that he has complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has also adopted
its code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standards set out in the Model
Code for compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to own
inside information of the Company in respect of their dealings in the

Company'’s securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflicts of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company'’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Nomination Committee which include:

(i) to develop, review and implement the Company's policy and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(vi) to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the
Shareholders’ communication policy to ensure its effectiveness,
and make recommendations to the Board where appropriate to
enhance Shareholders’ relationship with the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has updated
the compliance manuals on notifiable transactions and price-sensitive
information (inside information) in accordance with the Listing Rules
as guidelines for its employees to report unpublished price sensitive
information (inside information) to the Company to ensure consistent
and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the Company's continuous
disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, including one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors. It is
chaired by an independent non-executive Director. The members of
the Nomination Committee are Mr. Zhu Zengjin (chairman), Mr. Lu
Zhongming and Mr. Zhong Wei, the majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

° to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

. to identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors;

o to make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
decision. Their written terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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With a view to enhance Board effectiveness and corporate governance,
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so
that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blends
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company'’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will review such
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

BEHERE THERE

= Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
RIGHE S Mr. Zhu Zengjin 2/2
BREEE Mr. Zhong Wei 2/2
PR RA e A Mr. Lu Zhongming 2/2
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In 2020, the Nomination Committee nominated the redesignation of
director to the Board, reviewed and assessed the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and considered the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Zhu Zengjin (chairman), Mr. Chen Huakang and Mr. Zhong
Wei, three of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving/determining the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for formulating
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. Their written terms of reference are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance record of the Remuneration
Committee members is set out in the table below:

EHRERE WHERE
BEE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
RIGHE S Mr. Zhu Zengjin 2/2
BREEFRSC A& Mr. Chen Huakang 2/2
EEEE Mr. Zhong Wei 2/2
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The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed during the year
2020 the service agreement, appointment letter and remuneration
policy for Directors and senior management of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board on the service agreement, appointment
letter and remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.
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Details of the remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group by band, whose biographies are set out on page 98 of this
annual report, for the year are set out below:
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5,000 to 7,000 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Mr. Zhu
Zengjin and Mr. Zhong Wei. The main duties of the Audit Committee
include the following:

Chen Huakang (chairman),

o to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal audit division
or the external auditor before submission to the Board;

o to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and

o to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system,
management system, and associated procedures, including the

internal control system and risk

adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members is set out in the table below:

BHERE  AHERE

BE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
PREERRSTAE Mr. Chen Huakang 2/2
RIGHE S Mr. Zhu Zengjin 2/2
BEEE Mr. Zhong Wei 2/2
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The Audit Committee reviewed during the year 2020 the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control (including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions),
and processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Board had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit

Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of

internal control and risk management systems

the external auditor.

They also reviewed interim and final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as well as the
audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in the course of auditing. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and other
matters. Their written terms of reference are available on the websites

of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ESG Committee

On 20 November 2020, the Company has set up the environmental,
social and governance committee (the "ESG Committee”). The
ESG Committee comprises five members, including two executive
Directors and three non-executive Directors, and is chaired by a non-
executive Director. The members of the ESG Committee are Wang
Xiaosong (chairman), Lv Xiaoping, Qu Dejun, Zhang Shengman and Lu
Zhongming.

The main duties of the ESG Committee include: (i) formulating and
reviewing the Company’s environmental, social and governance ("ESG")
responsibilities, vision, strategy, framework, principles and policies, and
strengthening the materiality assessment and reporting to the Board on
a regular basis to ensure the continued execution and implementation
of ESG policies; (ii) considering and approving the Company’s ESG
goals, and regularly reviewing the achievement of ESG goals; (iii)
monitoring main ESG trends and related risks and opportunities and
evaluating whether the Group’s ESG-related structure and business
model are adequate and effective in this regard, adopting and updating
the Group's ESG policies when necessary and ensuring that such
policies are up-to-date and comply with applicable laws, regulations,
regulatory requirements and international standards; and (iv) reviewing
the Company’s annual ESG report and recommending to the Board
for approval, at the same time advising action plans or policies for the
Board to consider.

Since the establishment of the ESG Committee to 26 March 2021, one
ESG Committee meeting was held and the attendance record of the
ESG Committee members is set out in the table below:

EHERE AHERE
BEE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
FREMSEAE Mr. Wang Xiaosong 11
=2/ EEA Mr. Lv Xiaoping 11
fhiE=E LA Mr. Qu Dejun 1/1
ERELE Mr. Zhang Shengman 11
PR BR S A Mr. Lu Zhongming 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and the Group's
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are provided
to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages F-11 to F-14 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure and main
features of risk management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the Company
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis.
Risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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As disclosed in its terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee is responsible for the oversight of the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
oversees the risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems by conducting the
following procedures:

° reviewing the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° reviewing with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating compliance with the risk management policy;

° discussing with senior management at least annually the
Company’s major risk exposures and the steps senior
management has taken or should take to assess and treat such
exposures; and

° reviewing the ongoing effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management practices.

Senior management is responsible for administering the Company's
risk management process and is accountable for ensuring that the
Company'’s business operations are conducted in compliance with
our risk management policy, taking into consideration changes in the
environment and the Company'’s risk tolerance.

Responsibilities of the Company’s senior management include:

° designing and implementing a Company-wide risk management
policy;
° reviewing and updating the risk management policy on a

timely basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking
into account changes in the environment, industry and the
Company’s operations and risk profile and, where necessary,
recommending changes to the risk management policy for the
Audit Committee to review;

° ensuring that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process and vice versa;

° designing and establishing a risk management methodology
which provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and
manage business exposures;
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o establishing a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure
that the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee
and the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and
business exposures;

° ensuring necessary management controls and oversight processes
are in place to monitor compliance with the risk management
policy and the risk management methodology;

° approving and monitoring key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities;

° reviewing and discussing the Company's overall risk profile,
key and emerging risks and risk management activities through
periodic risk discussions among senior management; and

° reviewing the key business strategies and initiatives to assess
their impact on the Company's overall risk position.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board's oversight responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks and to resolve material internal control defects (if any).
Senior management, through the Company’s internal audit department,
is responsible for the annual risk reporting process. Members of the
internal audit department meet with various members of the senior
management to review and assess risks and discuss solutions to address
material internal control defects (if any), including any changes relevant
to a given year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by certain
members of senior management and presented to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
(i) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the velocity or speed
at which the risk could occur.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has ensured that
the risk management and internal control provisions under the CG
Code have been complied with. The Board, during its annual review
on the risk management and internal control systems, has confirmed
the adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications and experiences
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Inside Information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
event that may impact the price of the shares or their trading volume
and decides whether the relevant information is considered as inside
information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors
and the joint company secretaries also may have responsibility for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal Audit Department

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions and
internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive audits
of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and considered the risk management and internal
control systems to be effective and adequate.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

Annual audit and interim review fees of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 payable to the Company's external auditor are
approximately RMB2.4 million. In addition, there are fees incurred
in 2020, including fees of approximately RMB5.4 million for annual
audit of Seazen Holdings charged by its external auditor, and fees
of approximately RMB1.9 million for non-audit services including tax
consulting.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Zhang Wanling
(appointed on 20 November 2020) and Ms. Ng Sau Mei (appointed on
21 August 2020) were the Joint Company Secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Zhang Wanling is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures,
and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei, deputy director of TMF Hong Kong
Limited (a company secretarial services provider), as its Joint Company
Secretary to assist Ms. Zhang Wanling to discharge her duties as
company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Ms. Zhang Wanling, the Joint Company
Secretary.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Zhang Wanling and Ms. Ng
Sau Mei have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training, respectively, in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of
the Group's business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company, and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meeting to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the Company will
also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor's
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence. The Company
has held an AGM for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 on 10
June 2020.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship, communicate between the Company and its
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.seazengroup.com.cn,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

In support of environmental protection and saving of printing and
mailing costs of the Company, arrangements have been made since
January 2021 to ascertain shareholders’ preferences as to the means of
receiving corporate communications and shareholders are encouraged
to elect for electronic communications. For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 15 January 2021.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance and the Company’s
articles of association. As regards proposing a person for election as a
Director, the procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 31/F, Tower Two, Times
Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email address:
ir@xincheng.com).
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEAZEN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Seazen Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages F-15 to
F-293, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;
o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

1. Fair Value of Investment Properties
2. Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
3. Provision for Impairment Loss of Properties Held or Under

Development for Sale
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Key Audit Matter 1: Fair Value of Investment Properties
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)
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Refer to note 4.5 (Fair value of investment properties) and
note 7 (Investment properties) to the consolidated financial
statements.

BZE2020F12A310 EEEREMERAER/ARE
85,705B BT - BEZRAILFE EXEERRBREVELIR
BEKRSEARKE2306B8T -

As at 31 December 2020, carrying amount of investment
properties of the Group amounted to RMB85,705 million.
For the year then ended, the Group recognised fair value
gains on investment properties of RMB2,306 million.

EEEERBUEESERGEMELNGESERETIRE
MENRAAEBE - AABENEES REXRSHE &G
i BREMERENEEARERBAZRE (WHEEESE - &
FIARKES  HBAWSEE  EHERAEX  ERTIMMHAER
BRARBERFAEBEAOMETRIMZNMGEFEER) B
A o

The Group determined fair value of the investment
properties based on the results of valuations done
by independent professional qualified valuers. The
determination of fair value involved significant accounting
judgements and estimates, including selection of valuation
method, and usage of key inputs, such as current rental,
estimated future rental, term yield, reversionary yield,
estimated construction costs to completion, and estimated
profit margin required to hold and develop property to
completion.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BAERTATENEF

We performed the following procedures:

() HMEFEEEUREVEZARBEZEFNAR
2 - WP E BN REE MR IRE A RAE M R
FHMOK T ERERRAAE SRR o

) We obtained an understanding of the internal
controls over the Group’s estimating of fair value of
investment properties and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of complexity and
subjectivity.

(2) BEMFAELARTREDELAREBEMTABBIES
(2) We evaluated and tested the key controls over the
fair value estimation of investment properties.

3) BB T E B ERE A INBEERD A B M B
7 e

(3) We assessed the independence and competence of
the external valuer which issued valuation report.

@) HEMEFEFAERANGETENSEL -
(4) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
method adopted.

()  HREETFHKANREEES  BMAKEHEZHEE
ZHEARIKEESR -

(5) For current rental used in the valuation, we checked
the amount to rent roll and lease arrangement on a
sample basis.



B ZHERE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
pwc

BT TS IE (8)
BEEHEE RENENAAEE (E)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter 1: Fair Value of Investment Properties (Cont'd)

HRREMENEEHSEREAHMBRA R BEREAALE
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We consider fair value of investment properties a Key Audit
Matter because the valuation of the investment properties
has a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial position and financial performance, and the
involved accounting estimates and judgements are subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the fair value of investment properties is
considered significant due to the complexity of methods and
the subjectivity of significant assumptions used.

BAENET M ELRERETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit matter (Cont'd)
(6) HREFARKRES - HEAREE - B E R
TR - 2ERATEBRBLEMEANSER
BEby - RMEGEM R NIEREIEE - BEBE
FrEIRABHEEEBMIITELRT EZ M RER
FRARLAAE -

For estimated future rental, term yield, reversionary
yield, and estimated profit margin, we compared

(6)

them with market transaction data on a sample basis.
Where we identified estimates and assumptions that
were outside the typical ranges used, we discussed
these with the valuers to understand the rationale
and then assessed, based on all the available
evidence and our experience in this sector, whether
the use of the estimate or assumption was justified.

HRERTOMEFRA - RIEHEE R E ST IL L
A BB IR B A ETHALLE - AR - AR
BHRTIMENEBERARRERERANET TR
NFHEZIE B FREN A L -

For estimated construction costs to completion, we

)

(7)
compared them to the project budgets which were
developed and approved internally by management
on a sample basis; we also compared the actual costs
of the newly completed properties to their budget
costs to assess the reliability of the project budgets.

BEZMENTOERTERF BB REBEHREMER
R EENGG RABGABBRMAESHBEXFE -

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider
management’s estimates and judgements on fair value of
investment properties were supported by the evidence we
gathered.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter 2: Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate

AREE2RAHMBRRMEL6(FRA  AZERERY
EBRAMDE) MEI(RBERRNKRE) - HE10(RA

ERENERE) RMEN (FRAEIFFE)

Refer to note 4.6 (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture
and associate), note 9 (Investments in associates), note 10
(Investments in joint ventures) and note 41 (Particulars of
subsidiaries) to the consolidated financial statements.

2 e A
Hi=a

EREGFEMEEBEAM £ - BIEZ 2020412
A31H  REBMEAARGLECENEHED I RARKE
12,724 BB TR ARE10,184BE T - Ak - 72020412
RA318  BEREEASZRIFRETFRT @ FERBREERE
BAARKLS,702EHETT

The Group co-operated with other entities in property
development business. As of 31 December 2020, carrying
amounts of investments in associates and joint ventures
amounted to RMB12,724 million and RMB10,184 million
respectively. At the same time, the Group had a large
number of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with total
non-controlling interests of RMB45,702 million as at 31

December 2020.

9% R IZ R AR A A Seazen Group Limited
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RN ESTMAESBRETSER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HREBEBHELNERNIRE  HACSHEREGHFHETH G
WHAITLA TR -

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
have assessed management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:

P

s g s

AN
g B o= (=]

e Al AR A
B N R ) SR BB -

Yp ‘= AN
We understood, evaluated and validated the internal

) RS a/NSI ¥R
M

controls over the Group's classification of subsidiary,
joint venture and associate.

B EESR T RREREN AR - B
REAH BRERFNEZEREREMARERX
- ARF BRI IG - YEHBIAEER  REE
EVRER RIS - DALY BRERELES -

We examined, on a sample basis, the legal

(2)

(2)
documents associated with investments, including
investment contracts, investee company’s articles
of associations and other relevant legal documents,
to assess the key terms, with a particular focus on
governance structure, rights of the investors, decision
making mechanism, profit-sharing arrangements, exit
and termination, etc.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter 2: Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate (Cont'd)

EXERBRESD BREQANEBEEREMEEX
BRI RSN LRGN REDERTRARA a8 ER
BENE e FRANERENMBRERAHAR  BISEE
E BERXSGHUITHRESENEG KT BERE - MRS
NAIREERPENREEANEBEREI TN G O BRI
o BUEEEA BBV HERAFE -

The Group classified the investments into subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates based on the power and
return terms specified in the investment contracts, articles
of association of the investee companies and other legal
documents. Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each
asset, liability and transaction are shown in the Group's
financial statements, whereas investments in associates
and joint ventures are shown as a single line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a single
item of income/loss for their net results.

HRBEREDBERTAR  AEPEIBMELTIRERG
R BRmoETeHEE  E-—THESENEER
BABEEE WA RARFEXELEEATE - Bt FHM
KFRF - AERCERBENRNDERT RAKRETEHE -
We consider classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates a Key Audit Matter because the classification of
an investment as a subsidiary, joint venture or associate
involves significant accounting judgements and the
classification determines consolidation scope which further
significantly affects the Group’s total assets, total liabilities,
revenue, costs and expenses.

RAENETNAEEEEENEE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

BAZRMEEERRAEEXREEEENAIETTK
R - BIECBEE  REZOEN  RE
HEl - DALY RERKLIES - MEBEEXHIOR
BEBREREBZERN  RMEHILZEZLERES
FEBURDN -

We sought for confirmation on a sample basis in
written or via phone calls from the Group’s co-
operating parties to confirm key terms, including
governance structure, rights of the investors, decision
making mechanism, profit-sharing arrangements,
exit and termination, etc., in cases where there have
been subsequent changes to the legal documents or
governance structures, we critically assessed whether
these change the initial analysis.

3

3)

HAFETREIEEREINFRENEERDR
RAFRGPORFEDE °

We assessed whether the consideration paid or
received in acquisition or disposal of investment
represents the fair market value in arm’s length
transaction.

4)

BMEREEBE FAA  GEPERBERTZD
BEEEmEN 2| RREET -

We assessed the Group’s presentation and disclosures
in respect of the classification and carrying values of
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates.

(5)

(5)

BRERMENTHEARF  RMRREBEHFLF - B
BRARREECENDANFHSARRMAESNELEX
o

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgements on classification of subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures were supported by the
evidence we gathered.

#1182 RZ R ERA F Seazen Group Limited
20204 %k 2020 Annual Report



F-7

BB

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

_E
pwc

BT TS IE (8)
BEEHEE3 SIAERERNESYLNRERERE

W

w
M

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter 3: Provision for Impairment Loss of Properties Held or Under Development For Sale

BEREEL2AGHUBREANT42(TRLHEEXERHEED
XMRERBERE) M5 (RIHEE R REEEWE) -
Refer to note 4.2 (Provision for impairment of properties
held or under development for sale), note 15 (Properties
held or under development for sale) to the consolidated
financial statements.

BZE20205F12A8310  ERENTIHFENEREENESR
AREE270617HET  NHERBEEETEN49.70% °

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's properties held
or under development for sale is RMB270,617 million,
representing approximately 49.70% of the Group’s total
assets.

EEERTEIAENERHEMENTERFEENAZE
WEHERRREBEELRE TIGERERHEEDE
AETFENET S RERGT G5 BREMGTIHEER
HEEEMNIHER S RER TR -

The Group made provision for impairment loss when the net
realisable value of the properties held or under development
for sale is lower than their respective carrying amounts. The
determination of net realisable value of properties held or
under development for sale involves significant accounting
estimate, including the estimated selling price, selling
expenses to be incurred and costs to completion.

9% R IZ R AR A F Seazen Group Limited
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB AITA TR R ¢
We performed the following procedures:

M

(M

2)

(2)

3)

3

HMEREEEU T T HEREREEME L ATER
B R ET R B IE I BB E R R E B - AR
WiBEEMAFHZE A ERERR AN EE =R

We obtained an understanding of the internal
controls over the Group's estimating of net realisable
values of properties held or under development for
sale and making provisions for impairment loss and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation.

BMAETAREEEE T ISENTEREENEL
A IR RE 2 (A ET ) BASR 12 30 RE R E S R VR L B4 -
We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the Group’s estimating of net realisable values of
properties held or under development for sale and
making provisions for impairment loss.

BT LGSR ERHENENER SR EEIRE
RBEFEERNGTETHERLEE - ARFRBE
EREFELNAZRFETLRBAEEEXEEER
-7 X

We compared, on a sample basis, the actual
realisation of properties held or under development
for sale with management’s estimate made in the
prior years to consider, with hindsight, whether
management’s net realisable value assessment and
process had been subject to management bias.
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Key Audit Matter 3: Provision for Impairment Loss of Properties Held or Under Development For Sale (Cont'd)

RAENETNAEEEEENEE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

HRBEASERFRNENGT A FERSEEMNGBTT @) RMAFARFAE2020F12 431 BRREREEED

BEN  BMETIAENEREEYENREBERER ERERRGTETHGYEEMREENITUTE
ERARENFTE RMERT R LEERERIEEYEDN R
BB EERER E A R - (4)  We assessed management’s key estimates used in
We consider provision for impairment loss of properties calculating the provision for impairment loss as at
held or under development for sale a Key Audit Matter 31 December 2020 and performed the following
because of the significance of the amount and the involved procedures on a sample basis:
accounting estimate are subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the provision for . BMEEMEEERETNMIERSETT
impairment loss of properties held or under development for R UW2EZE5BERABEEEEEMNHEERE
sale is considered. % SEORE - B RiB A AR
EIRITHE °
o We compared the estimated selling price

to the recent market transactions, making
reference to the Group’s selling price of the
same project’s pre-sale units or the prevailing
market price of comparable properties with
similar size, usage and location.

. A EENHER X DIREEBRZETH
DR HMY LA A D L MEEEER
FERTHHEFAEP AN RETLE -

o We compared the estimated selling expenses
to be incurred which is estimated based on
a certain percentage of selling price with the
actual average selling expenses to revenue
ratio of the Group in recent years.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matter 3: Provision for Impairment Loss of Properties Held or Under Development For Sale (Cont'd)
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RAENETNAEEEEENEE (8)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. HRERMEERTOMBFAA - HPIREE
RTHERARKERE]ENTEL - WIE
MEER ERHCOBRFNEEALY  NEEE
BEUR T ENBERRAEITLR -

o For estimated costs to completion for
properties under development, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the
budgets approved by management and
examined, on a sample basis, the signed
construction contracts or compared to the
actual costs of similar completed properties of
the Group.

BREZMERTOETIREF  BHMRREEBHTIHFE
EREEDENREBEREN G SUBRMAESNE
SR I

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s estimates on provision for impairment loss
of properties held or under development for sale were
supported by the evidence we gathered.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
chairman’s statement and management discussion and analysis (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, financial summary/financial
review, financial highlights, breakdown of major properties, directors
and senior management, report of the directors, corporate governance
report and environmental, social and governance report which are
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the corporate information, financial summary/financial
review, financial highlights, breakdown of major properties, directors
and senior management, report of the directors, corporate governance
report and environmental, social and governance report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to audit committee and take appropriate
action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kam Chin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72020412 A31H As at 31 December 2020

2020128311
31 December

019124311

31 December

2020 2019
it sx AR®TR ARETT
Note RMB’ 000 RMB'000
-3 ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
mE - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 6(a) 6,498,269 4,899,719
EREEE - HibFERE Right-of-use assets - Land use rights 6(b) 992,978 426,306
FRERE - Hib Right-of-use assets — Others 6(b) 77,185 191,934
REME Investment properties 7 85,705,342 66,182,793
B EE Intangible assets